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PART |
Item 1. Business
Overview

We are a specialty finance company. Our business fgirchase and service retail automobile cordradginated primarily by franchis
automobile dealers and, to a lesser extent, bytsieldependent dealers in the United States irsdhe of new and used automobiles, light tr
and passenger vans. Through our automobile conrachases, we provide indirect financing to thetamers of dealers who have limi
credit histories, low incomes or past credit praidewho we refer to as syisime customers. We serve as an alternative sadrfieancing fo
dealers, facilitating sales to customers who otfmrwnight not be able to obtain financing from itiadal sources, such as commercial ba
credit unions and the captive finance companidabaaéfd with major automobile manufacturers. In gidd to purchasing installment purch
contracts directly from dealers, we have also @Quared installment purchase contracts in four reergnd acquisition transactions,
purchased immaterial amounts of vehicle purchaseesmntans from nowffiliated lenders, and (iii) directly originated anmaterial amount
vehicle purchase money loans by lending money tijrée consumers. In this report, we refer to dlsoch contracts and loans as "autom¢
contracts."”

We were incorporated and began our operations irctMa991. From inception through December 31, 20d2 have purchased a tota
approximately $9.6 billion of automobile contrafiem dealers. In addition, we acquired a total gpraximately $822.3 million of automob
contracts in mergers and acquisitions in 2002, 22084 and, most recently in September 2011. Tipge8wer 2011 acquisition consistel
approximately $217.8 million of finance receivablbat we purchased from Fireside Bank of Pleasai@aiifornia. In 2004 and 2009, we w
appointed as a third-party servicer for certaintfpios of automobile receivables originated andnea by noraffiliated entities. From 20(
through 2010, our managed portfolio decreased gaahdue to our strategy of limiting contract puashs to conserve our liquidity during
financial crisis and resulting recession, as disedsfurther below. However, since October 2009, hage gradually increased cont
purchases which, in turn, has resulted in recerreases in our managed portfolio. Recent contracthase volumes and managed port
levels are shown in the table below:

Contract Purchases and Outstanding Managed Portfodi
$ in thousand:
Contracts Purchased = Managed Portfolio at

Year in Period Period End
2008 $ 296,817 $ 1,664,12;
2009 8,59¢ 1,194,72;
2010 113,02: 756,20:
2011 284,23t 794,64
2012 551,74. 897,57

We are headquartered in Irvine, California, whemshoperational and administrative functions argredized. Most credit and underwriti
functions are performed in our California headgerartvith some credit functions performed in ourrigla office. We service our automot
contracts from our California headquarters and fthrae servicing branches in Virginia, Florida dlfidois.

We direct our marketing efforts primarily to dealerather than to consumers. We establish reldtipaswith dealers through our emplo
marketing representatives who contact a prospedtater to explain our automobile contract purchlsgrams, and thereafter provide de
training and support services. Our marketing regrgives represent us exclusively. They may batésteither in our Irvine headquarters
in the field, in which case they work from theirrhes and support dealers in their geographic area.n@arketing representatives pre:
dealers with a marketing package, which includaspsamotional material containing the terms offetgdus for the purchase of automo
contracts, a copy of our standdatm dealer agreement, and required documentagi@timg to automobile contracts. As of December281l,2
we had 77 marketing representatives and we wengebcteceiving applications from 12,202 dealersdin states. As of December 31, 2(
approximately 76% of our active dealers were frésedh new car dealers that sell both new and uséditles, and the remainder w
independent used car dealers. For the year endedniber 31, 2012, approximately 91% of the autoreobintracts purchased under
programs consisted of financing for used cars &adcOnsisted of financing for new cars, as comp#&edb% financing for used cars and 1
for new cars in the year ended December 31, 201d.pWchase contracts in our own name (“CP&i), until July 2008, also purcha
contracts in the name of our wholtyvned subsidiary, The Finance Company ("TFC"). Raog marketed under the CPS name serve &
range of sulprime customers, primarily through franchised new @ealers. Our TFC program served vehicle purchamdisted in the U.
Armed Forces, primarily through independent usediealers. In July 2008, we ceased to purchaseamistunder our TFC program.




We purchase automobile contracts with the intentébrfinancing them on a lontgrm basis through securitizations. Securitizatiare
transactions in which we sell a specified pool arfitcacts to a special purpose subsidiary of ouhéchwvin turn issues asskacked securities
fund the purchase of the pool of contracts fromDepending on the structure of the securitizattbe, transaction may be treated, for finar
accounting purposes, as a sale of the contraets arsecured financing.

We depend upon the availability of short-term warete credit facilities and access to long-termraiag through the issuance of asse
backed securities collateralized by our automobdatracts. Since 1994, we have completed 57 tecurisigations of approximately $i
billion in contracts. From July 2003 through AD08 all of our securitizations were structuredsasured financings. The second of our
securitization transactions in 2008 (completed épt8mber 2008) was in substance a sale of theedetaintracts, and is treated as a sal
financial accounting purposes. The remaining readgias from that September 2008 securitization wessecuritized in September 2010 i
structure that maintained sale treatment for aciogipurposes. In 2011, we completed three sezatitins of approximately $335.6 million
newly originated contracts. During 2012 we compuleftaur securitizations of approximately $603.5 millin contracts, including $58.2 milli
in contracts that were repurchased from 2006 aQd 2@curitizations in 2012. The 2011 and 2012 s$tations were all structured as sect
financings and represented our first securitizatiohnew contracts since 2008.

From the fourth quarter of 2007 through the en@@39, we observed unprecedented adverse changfes imarket for securitized pools
automobile contracts. These changes included redligeidity, and reduced demand for assatked securities, particularly for securi
carrying a financial guaranty and for securitieskeal by sulprime automobile receivables. Moreover, during ffetiod many of the firms tF
previously provided financial guarantees, which evan integral part of our securitizations, suspdnafering such guarantees. The adv
changes that took place in the market from thetfoquarter of 2007 through the end of 2009 causetb conserve liquidity by significan
reducing our purchases of automobile contracts. évaw since October 2009 we have established nedirfg facilities and gradual
increased our contract purchases. In September 2@1ok advantage of the improvement in the mafteebisset-backed securities by re
securitizing the remaining underlying receivablesf our unrated September 2008 securitization. Taissaction was our first rated te
securitization since 1993 that did not utilize maficial guaranty. Similarly, the three 2011 and 2012 securitizations were also structi
without financial guarantees. Since February 201d have maintained two $100 million credit facdgiwith aggregate funding capacity
$200 million.

Sub-Prime Auto Finance Industry

Automobile financing is the second largest consufinance market in the United States. The automadiilance industry can be divided i
two principal segments: a prime credit market arglilaprime credit market. Traditional automobile finarm@mpanies, such as commer
banks, savings institutions, credit unions andieagdtnance companies of automobile manufactuggsaerally lend to the most creditworthy
so-called prime, borrowers. The spbime automobile credit market, in which we operatevides financing to less creditworthy borrower
higher interest rates.

Historically, traditional lenders have not servlad subprime market or have done so through programsviiea¢ not consistently availak
Independent companies specializing in puipae automobile financing and subsidiaries of éarfinancial services companies currently com
in this segment of the automobile finance markdtictv we believe remains highly fragmented, withsilagle company having a domin
position in the market.

Recent past economic conditions have negativegctdtl many aspects of our industry. First, asat@teve, throughout 2008 and 2009 t
was reduced demand for asset-backed securitieseskloy consumer finance receivables, including mtilme automobile receivables. Secc
lenders who previously provided short-term warekofiisancing for sulprime automobile finance companies such as ourg waductant t
provide such short-term financing due to the uraiety regarding the prospects of obtaining longrtéinancing through the issuance of asse
backed securities. In addition, many capital mapeeticipants such as investment banks, financiatanty providers and institutional inves
who previously played a role in the spbime auto finance industry withdrew from the inotysor in some cases, ceased to do businessly;
broad economic weakness and high levels of unempay during 2008, 2009 and 2010 made many of thigasb under our receivables i
willing or able to pay, resulting in higher delirencies, chargeffs and losses. Each of these factors has adyea$tcted our results
operations. However, as stated above, since Ocf#9, improvements in the capital markets havenadtl us to obtain new shdgrm credi
facilities, and to regularly access lotegm funding as demonstrated by the eight rated s=curitization we have completed since Septe
2010.




Our Operations

Our automobile financing programs are designedeteessubprime customers, who generally have limited créditories, low incomes
past credit problems. Because we serve customersavéhunable to meet certain credit standardsneur igreater risks, and generally rec
interest rates higher than those charged in thegdredit market. We also sustain a higher levadretiit losses because of the higher
customers we serve.

Originations

When a retail automobile buyer elects to obtaiarfiting from a dealer, the dealer takes a crediicgtipn to submit to its financing sourc
Typically, a dealer will submit the buyer's apptioa to more than one financing source for revigve believe the deales’decision to choose
financing source is based primarily on: (i) the by payment made available to the dealer's custp(iifethe purchase price offered to
dealer for the contract; (iii) the timeliness, dstency and predictability of response; (iv) furgliturnaround time; (v) any conditions
purchase; and (vi) the financial stability of tfreaihcing source. Dealers can send credit applicaitio us by entering the necessary data o
website or through one of several thpdrty application aggregators. For the year endeckbiber 31, 2012, we received approximately 82
all applications through DealerTrack (the induségding dealership application aggregator), 3%ouawebsite and 15% via other aggrega
Our automated application decisioning system predwur initial decision within minutes on approxielg 98% of those applications.

Upon receipt of information from a dealer, we imiiagely order a credit report to document the bgyeredit history. If, upon review by ¢
proprietary automated decisioning system, or inesaases, one of our credit analysts, we deternhiaethe automobile contract meets
underwriting criteria, or would meet such critew#h modification, we request and review furtheformation and, ultimately, decide whet
to approve the automobile contract for purchase.

Dealers with which we do business are under nayatitin to submit any automobile contracts to us,are we obligated to purchase
automobile contracts from them. During the yeareehBecember 31, 2012, no dealer accounted for thare 1.1% of the total number
automobile contracts we purchased. The followirdetaets forth the geographical sources of thenawitdle contracts purchased by us (bi
on the addresses of the customers as stated secmrds) during the years ended December 31, 20d2@11.

Contracts Purchased During the Year Endec

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Number Percent (1) Number Percent (1)
California 4,86¢ 13.5% 2,59¢ 14.3%
Texas 3,42¢ 9.5% 1,83¢ 10.1%
Pennsylvani: 3,32¢ 9.2% 1,44¢ 8.0%
Florida 1,80z 5.0% 90¢ 5.0%
Other States 22,61: 62.8% 11,32: 62.5%
Total 36,03( 100.0% 18,11( 100.0%

(1) Percentages may not total to 100.0% due to rounc




The following table sets forth the geographic canicgions of our outstanding managed portfolio alB@cember 31, 2012 and 2011.

December 31, 201. December 31, 201.
Amount Percent (1) Amount Percent (1)
State based on obligor's residenc (% in millions)
California $ 160.4 17.9% % 197.5 24.9%
Texas 82.¢ 9.2% 64.¢ 8.1%
Pennsylvani: 59.t 6.6% 38.¢ 4.8%
Florida 42.¢ 4.8% 38.1 4.8%
Georgia 42.7 4.8% 28.¢ 3.6%
All others 509.¢ 56.8Y% 427.( 53.7Y%
Total $ 897.¢ 100.0% $ 794.¢ 100.0¥

(1) Percentages may not total to 100.0% due to rounc

We purchase automobile contracts from dealerspaica generally computed as the total amount firdnender the automobile contra
adjusted for an acquisition fee, which may eithmréase or decrease the automobile contract puwrgtvéce paid by us. The amount of
acquisition fee, and whether it results in an insgeor decrease to the automobile contract purghvaess is based on the perceived credit ris
and, in some cases, the interest rate on the abitemmontract. The following table summarizes tlverage net acquisition fees we chai
dealers and the weighted average annual percerggen our purchased contracts for the periodaisho

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Average net acquisition fee amot $ 83€ $ 1,158 % 1,38 $ 150¢ % 592
Average net acquisition fee as % of amount
financed 5.5% 7.4% 9.2% 11.7% 3.9%
Weighted average annual percentage interes 20.3% 20.1% 20.1% 19.9% 18.5%

We believe that levels of acquisition fees are mheirged partially by competition in the marketplaggich has decreased somewhat <
2009, and also by our pricing strategy. Our prigtrgtegy is driven by our new contract purchaskyéeld objectives.

We offer seven different financing programs to dealership customers, and price each program dogotd the relative credit risk. C
programs cover a wide band of the credit spectmidhaae labeled as follows:

First Time Buyer This program accommodates an applicant who haselihsignificant past credit history, such as a joev auto loai
Since the applicant has limited credit history, tbatract interest rate and dealer acquisition feed to be higher, and the loan amount, loa
to-value ratio, down payment and payment-to-incoati® requirements tend to be more restrictive carag to our other programs.

Mercury / Delta— This program accommodates an applicant who mag had significant past ngrerforming credit including rece
derogatory credit. As a result, the contract irderate and dealer acquisition fees tend to beehjgind the loan amount, loanatalue ratic
down payment, and payment-to-income ratio requirdeend to be more restrictive compared to ouergpinograms.

Standard- This program accommodates an applicant who meg significant past noperforming credit, but who has also exhibited s
performing credit in their history. The contracterest rate and dealer acquisition fees are corblgata the First Time Buyer a
Mercury/Delta programs, but the loan amount, laawalue ratio and down payment requirements areesdrat less restrictive.

Alpha - This program accommodates applicants who may halischarged bankruptcy, but who have also exhilgnfiorming credit. |
addition, the program allows for homeowners who maye had other significant ngerforming credit in the past. The contract interag
and dealer acquisition fees are lower than thedatrahprogram, down payment and paymentitmme ratio requirements are somewhat
restrictive.




Alpha Plus— This program accommodates applicants with pastpeoforming credit, but with a stronger history ettent performin
credit, including auto or mortgage related creditd higher incomes than the Alpha program. Confraetest rates and dealer acquisi
fees are lower than the Alpha program.

Super Alpha— This program accommodates applicants with pastpeoforming credit, but with a somewhat strongetdris of recer
performing credit, including auto or mortgage rethtredit, and higher incomes than the Alpha Phegiiam. Contract interest rates
dealer acquisition fees are lower, and the maxirfaan amount is somewhat higher, than the Alpha plagram.

Preferred This program accommodates applicants with pastpasforming credit, but who meet a certain minimul@® score threshol
Other requirements include a somewhat strongeoryistf recent performing credit than the Super Alginogram. Contract interest rates
dealer acquisition fees are lower than the Supph&program.

Our upper credit tier products, which are our Rreft Super Alpha, Alpha Plus and Alpha progransspanted for approximately 72%
our new contract originations in 2012, 77% in 2@b#l 74% in 2010, measured by aggregate amountiaan

The following table identifies the credit prograserted from highest to lowest credit quality, unddiich we purchased automobile contr
during the years ended December 31, 2012, 201 2@hHa.

Contracts Purchased During the Year Ended (1

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
(dollars in thousands)

Amount Amount Amount
Financed Percent (1) Financed Percent (1) Financed Percent (1)
Preferrec $ 19,71t 36% % 9,97¢ 35% % 3,20¢ 2.8%
Super Alphe 95,30: 17.3% 52,61( 18.5% 15,01¢ 13.3%
Alpha Plus 71,17: 12.9% 40,94 14.4% 17,82 15.8%
Alpha 213,37 38.7% 114,32: 40.2% 47,34 41.9%
Standarc 62,40: 11.3% 34,50¢ 12.1% 13,72¢ 12.1%
Mercury / Delts 52,071 9.4% 15,57¢ 5.5% 8,24« 7.3%
First Time Buyer 37,69¢ 6.8% 16,29¢ 5.7% 7,662 6.8%
$ 551,74 100.0 $ 284,23t 100.0% $ 113,02 100.0%

(1) Percentages may not total to 100.0% due to rounc

We attempt to control misrepresentation regardimg ¢ustomer's credit worthiness by carefully sdreprthe automobile contracts
purchase, by establishing and maintaining professidusiness relationships with dealers, and byudtieg certain representations
warranties by the dealer in the dealer agreemansu@nt to the dealer agreement, we may requireldlaéer to repurchase any automc
contract in the event that the dealer breachegjiesentations or warranties. There can be noaasse| however, that any dealer will have
willingness or the financial resources to satisfyrépurchase obligations to us.

In addition to our purchases of installment contsdoom dealers, we purchased from 2006 througt8 200 immaterial number of vehi
purchase money loans, evidenced by promissory ratdssecurity agreements. A naffiliated lender originated all such loans dirgcth
vehicle purchasers, and sold the loans to us. Warb&nancing vehicle purchases by lending monegctly to consumers in January 2008
terms similar to those that we offered through eesalthough without a down payment requirementwitidl more restrictive loan-tgalue an
credit score requirements. In October 2008 we sudgxt purchases of loans from other lenders andtdeading to consumers. There cai
no assurance as to whether or not we will recommehese programs, the extent to which we may makh bans, or as to their futt
performance.

Underwriting

To be eligible for purchase by us, an automobiletramt must have been originated by a dealer thaehtered into a dealer agreement t
automobile contracts to us. The automobile contracit be secured by a first priority lien on a rewsed automobile, light truck or passel
van and must meet our underwriting criteria. Iniidd, each automobile contract requires the custotm maintain physical damage insure
covering the financed vehicle and naming us ass fayee. We may, nonetheless, suffer a loss tnedinar physical damage of any finan
vehicle if the customer fails to maintain insuraaserequired by the automobile contract and is lentbpay for repairs to or replacement of
vehicle or is otherwise unable to fulfill his orrfebligations under the automobile contract.




We believe that our underwriting criteria enablgaisvaluate effectively the creditworthiness db-guime customers and the adequacy o
financed vehicle as security for an automobile @it The underwriting criteria include standards grice, term, amount of down paym
installment payment and interest rate; mileage,aagktype of vehicle; principal amount of the autdite contract in relation to the value of
vehicle; customer income level, employment anddegsie stability, credit history and debt serviciitgbas well as other factors. Specifica
the underwriting guidelines for our CPS programsegally limit the maximum principal amount of a pbased automobile contract to 1159
wholesale book value in the case of used vehialés ©15% of the manufacturer's invoice in the aafseew vehicles, plus, in each case, ¢
tax, licensing and, when the customer purchases additional items, a service contract or a crifgitor disability policy. We generally do r
finance vehicles that are more than 11 model yeldrsr have in excess of 135,000 miles. Under mbsur programs, the maximum term ¢
purchased contract is 72 months; a shorter maxitesm may be applicable based on the program, néleag age of the vehicle. Automol
contracts with the maximum term of up to 72 montiay be purchased if the customer is among the greditworthy of our obligors and t
vehicle generally has less than 50,000 miles. Aotafa contract purchase criteria are subject tanghdrom time to time as circumstances
warrant. Prior to purchasing an automobile contractr underwriters verify the customer's employmentome, residency, and cre
information by contacting various parties notedtba customer's application, credit information law® and other sources. In addition,
contact each customer by telephone to confirmttietustomer understands and agrees to the terthe oélated automobile contract. Dul
this " welcome call, 'we also ask the customer a series of open endestigue about his application and the contract, vy uncove
potential misrepresentations.

Credit Scoring. We use proprietary scoring models to assign eatbmobile contract several "credit scores" attitme the application
received from the dealer and the customer's ciafditmation is retrieved from the credit reportiagencies. These proprietary scores are
to help determine whether or not we want to appitheeapplication and, if so, the program and pgaive will offer to the dealer. The cre
scores are based on a variety of parameters imgjutie customer's credit history, employment as@lence stability, income, and the spe:
dealer. Once a vehicle is selected by the custameia proposed deal structure is provided to utidylealer, our scores will then conside:
loan-to-value ratio, payment-ineome ratio, down payment amount, sales price taadmake of the vehicle. We have developed theit
scores utilizing statistical risk management teghas and historical performance data from our mashgrtfolio. We believe this improv
our allocation of credit evaluation resources, @cka our competitiveness in the marketplace ancagemthe risk inherent in the spbme
market.

Characteristics of Contracts.All of the automobile contracts we purchase atly famortizing and provide for level payments ottee tern
of the automobile contract. All automobile contsachay be prepaid at any time without penalty. Therage original principal amot
financed, under the CPS programs and in the yededeBecember 31, 2012, was $15,313, with an averagmal term of 60 months and
average down payment amount of 13.3%. Based omiafiion contained in customer applications for fti#anonth period, the retail purchi
price of the related automobiles averaged $15,&8fich excludes tax, license fees and any additioasis such as a maintenance contract
the average age of the vehicle at the time thenamidde contract was purchased was four years. Megage age of our customers:
approximately 42, with approximately $56,000 in ragge annual household income and an average gksbs tenure with his or her curr
employer.

Dealer Compliance The dealer agreement and related assignmerdingepresentations and warranties by the deaderath application fc
state registration of each financed vehicle, nanisigs secured party with respect to the vehides, effected by the time of sale of the rel
automobile contract to us, and that all necesstapsshave been taken to obtain a perfected fiistifyr security interest in each financ
vehicle in favor of us under the laws of the statevhich the financed vehicle is registered. To #xent that we do not receive such ¢
registration within three months of purchasing dliéomobile contract, our dealer compliance groupwaork with the dealer in an attempt
rectify the situation. If these efforts are unswstel, we generally will require the dealer to negase the automobile contract.

Servicing and Collection

We currently service all automobile contracts tlvatown as well as those automobile contracts treatreluded in portfolios that we he
sold in securitizations or service for third pasti®&Ve organize our servicing activities based anttsks performed by our personnel.
servicing activities consist of mailing monthlylbig statements; collecting, accounting for andtipgsof all payments received; respondin
customer inquiries; taking all necessary actiom#intain the security interest granted in the faeghvehicle or other collateral; investiga
delinquencies; communicating with the customer kbaim timely payments; repossessing and liquidating collateral when necess:
collecting deficiency balances; and generally nmimg each automobile contract and the relatechtmihl. We are typically entitled to rece
a base monthly servicing fee equal to 2.5% per mnonamputed as a percentage of the declining owstgrprincipal balance of the non-
charged-off automobile contracts in the securitimapools. The servicing fee is included in interest incometfmse securitization transactis
that are treated as financings.




Collection Procedures.We believe that our ability to monitor performarand collect payments owed from sufime customers is primar
a function of our collection approach and suppgsteams. We believe that if payment problems aratified early and our collection st
works closely with customers to address these prog)] it is possible to correct many problems befloey deteriorate further. To this end,
utilize pro-active collection procedures, which include makéagly and frequent contact with delinquent cust@neducating customers a:
the importance of maintaining good credit; and ayiplg a consultative and customer service appro@elssist the customer in meeting hi
her obligations, which includes attempting to idigrthe underlying causes of delinquency and chesrt whenever possible. In support of
collection activities, we maintain a computerizedllection system specifically designed to serviegomobile contracts with subrime
customers and similar consumer obligations.

We attempt to make telephonic contact with delimjueistomers from one to 15 days after their mgnpalyment due date, depending on
proprietary behavioral scorecards which assessubtmers likelihood of payment during early stages of migliency. Our contact prioriti
may be based on the customers' physical locattagesof delinquency, size of balance or other patars. Our collectors inquire of 1
customer the reason for the delinquency and wheoame=xpect to receive the payment. The collecttbrattempt to get the customer to m.
an electronic payment over the phone or a pronaiséhe payment for a time generally not to exceeel week from the date of the call. If
customer makes such a promise, the account isddota promise queue and is not contacted untibtlieome of the promise is known. If
payment is made by the promise date and the acit®uatlonger delinquent, the account is routedaduhe collection system. If the paym
is not made, or if the payment is made, but theactremains delinquent, the account is returnddeaueue for subsequent contacts.

If a customer fails to make or keep promises fogmpents, or if the customer is uncooperative omapis to evade contact or hide the veh
a supervisor will review the collection activitylagng to the account to determine if repossessefdie vehicle is warranted. Generally, su
decision will occur between the 45th and 90th dagtghe customer's payment due date, but couldr mmner or later, depending on
specific circumstances. At the time the vehicledpossessed we will stop accruing interest on dbhi®wmobile contract, and reclassify
remaining automobile contract balance to othertasse addition we will apply a specific reservethis automobile contract so that the
balance represents the estimated fair value lests tmsell.

If we elect to repossess the vehicle, we assigtasieto an independent local repossession seiSigeh services are licensed and/or bo
as required by law. When the vehicle is recovetied,repossessor delivers it to a wholesale autdmalpiction, where it is kept until sc
Financed vehicles that have been repossessed reealig resold through unaffiliated automobile ames, which are attended principally
car dealers. Net liquidation proceeds are appbeithé¢ customer's outstanding obligation under thieraobile contract. Such proceeds ust
are insufficient to pay the customer's obligatiarfull, resulting in a deficiency. In most cases widl continue to contact our customers
recover all or a portion of this deficiency for tgpseveral years after charge-off.

Once an automobile contract becomes greater thama98 delinquent, we do not recognize additiontdrast income until the borrow
under the automobile contract makes sufficient paysto be less than 90 days delinquent. Any patsrreteived by a borrower that
greater than 90 days delinquent are first appbeactrued interest and then to principal reduction.

We generally charge off the balance of any contbgcthe earlier of the end of the month in whick gutomobile contract becomes
scheduled installments past due or, in the cagepgssessions, the month that we receive the piledeam the liquidation of the financ
vehicle or if the vehicle has been in repossesisieentory for more than three months. In the cdsepossession, the amount of the chastje-
is the difference between the outstanding prindijgddnce of the defaulted automobile contract Aechet repossession sale proceeds.




Credit Experience

Our financial results are dependent on the perfaomaf the automobile contracts in which we retarownership interest. Broad econa
factors such as recession and significant chamgesemployment levels influence the credit perfarogaof our portfolio, as does the weigt
average age of the receivables at any given time.i@ernal credit performance data consistentlgwsthat new receivables have lower le
of delinquency and losses early in their lives,hwdelinquencies increasing throughout their lived &sses gradually increasing to a
between 36 and 42 months, after which they gragluddicrease. The weighted average seasoning ofotalr dwned portfolio excludir
Fireside, represented in the tables below, was t8tms, 27 months and 37 months as of December @12, December 31, 2011, ¢
December 31, 2010, respectively. Our primary methbanonitoring ongoing credit quality of our potifo is to closely review month
delinquency, default and net charge off activitg éime related trends. The tables below documenti¢iaquency, repossession and net ¢
loss experience of all such automobile contractt the were servicing as of the respective datesvishd@he tables do not include
experience of third party servicing portfolios.

Delinquency Experienci
Gross servicing portfolio (1
Period of delinquency (¢
31-60 days

61-90 days

91+ days

Total delinquencies (-
Amount in repossession (3)
Total delinquencies ar
amount in repossession (2)

Delinquencies as a percentay
of gross servicing portfoli

Total delinquencies and
amount in repossession as
percentage of gross servic
portfolio

Extension Experience

Contracts with one extension
accruing (4,

Contracts with two or more
extensions, accruing (4)

Contracts with one extension
nor-accrual (4

Contracts with two or more
extensions, non-accrual (4

Total accounts with extensiol

Delinquency, Repossession and Extension Experience
Delinquency and Extension Experience (1)
Total Owned Portfolio Excluding Fireside

December 31, 201, December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Number of Number of Number of
Contracts Amount Contracts Amount Contracts Amount
(Dollars in thousands)
74,12« $ 825,18t 69,76¢ $ 588,99 84,60: $ 681,15
2,54¢ 18,03« 2,051 10,70¢ 2,85¢ 19,16¢
1,17¢ 9,36( 1,03¢ 6,572 1,537 10,87:
775 5,29 1,601 8,90¢ 1,23: 9,067
4,497 32,69: 4,69( 26,19( 5,62¢ 39,107
1,932 12,50¢ 2,21¢ 10,097 3,26% 23,29(
6,42¢ $ 45,19° 6,90¢ $ 36,28 8,88¢ $ 62,39
6.1% 4.(% 6.7% 4.4% 6.7% 5.7%
8.7% 5.5% 9.€% 6.2% 10.5% 9.2%
9,09/ $ 73,63: 12,18: $ 75,15¢ 16,15! $ 124,06t
7,79 37,76: 10,51¢ 67,98’ 11,307 91,31(
16,88¢ 111,39 22,69¢ 143,14: 27,45¢ 215,37¢
632 4,401 1,211 5,91¢ 1,59¢ 11,13¢
1,044 4,34¢ 2,054 10,737 1,91¢ 14,327
1,67¢ 8,74 3,26¢ 16,65¢ 3,517 25,46¢
18,56 $ 120,13t 25,96: $ 159,79° 30,97t $ 240,84




Delinquency Experience

Gross servicing portfolio (1

Period of delinquency (:

31-60 days

61-90 days

91+ days

Total delinquencies (Z

Amount in repossession (3)

Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession (2)

Delinquencies as a percentage of gross
servicing portfolio

Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession as a percentage of gross
servicing portfolia

Extension Experience

Contracts with one extension, accruing (4)

Contracts with two or more extensions,
accruing (4)

Contracts with one extension, non-accrual
Contracts with two or more extensions, no
accrual (4)

Total accounts with extensions

Delinquency and Extension Experience (1)
Fireside Portfolio

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Number of

Contracts

Amount

Number of
Contracts

Amount

(Dollars in thousands)

(Dollars in thousands)

15,03¢ $ 60,80" 33,25¢ $ 172,24¢
621 2,20¢ 1,08¢ 4,872
204 71C 42( 1,76
114 331 261 90:¢
93¢ 3,24 1,76¢ 7,542
17t 703 22¢€ 1,481
1,114 $ 3,95( 1,99¢ $ 9,02:¢
6.2% 5.3% 5.3% 4.4%
7.4% 6.5% 6.C% 5.2%
3,113 $ 15,26: 724 $ 4,46:
134 717 2 8
3,251 15,97¢ 72€ 4,47(
16C 72€ 3 25
6 2C 0 0
16€ 74€ 3 25
3,41 $ 16,72¢ 72¢€ $ 4,49¢




Delinquency and Extension Experience (1)
Total Owned Portfolio

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Number of Number of Number of
Contracts Amount Contracts Amount Contracts Amount
Delinquency Experienci (Dollars in thousands)
Gross servicing portfolio (1 89,16: $ 885,99: 103,02: $ 761,24: 84,60: $ 681,15
Period of delinquency (¢
31-60 days 3,16¢ 20,24( 3,13¢ 15,58: 2,85¢ 19,16¢
61-90 days 1,38: 10,07( 1,45¢ 8,33¢ 1,537 10,87:
91+ days 887 5,62¢ 1,86: 9,811 1,23 9,06
Total delinquencies (Z 5,43¢ 35,93¢ 6,45¢ 33,73( 5,62¢ 39,10%
Amount in repossession (3) 2,107 13,20¢ 2,444 11,57¢ 3,26: 23,29(
Total delinquencies and
amount in repossession (2 7,54:  $ 49,14¢ 8,90: $ 45,30¢ 8,88¢ % 62,39:
Delinquencies as a percentay
of gross servicing portfoli 6.1% 4.1% 6.2% 4.4% 6.7% 5.7%
Total delinquencies and
amount in repossession as
percentage of gross servici 8.5% 5.5% 8.6% 6.C% 10.5% 9.2%
Extension Experience
Contracts with one extension
accruing (4, 12,21: $ 88,89: 12,907 $ 79,61% 16,15: $ 124,06t
Contracts with two or more
extensions, accruing (4) 7,92¢ 38,47¢ 10,517 67,99t 11,301 91,31(
20,14( 127,37. 23,42¢ 147,61. 27,45¢ 215,37¢
Contracts with one extension
nor-accrual (4 792 5,12 1,21¢ 5,94: 1,59¢ 11,13¢
Contracts with two or more
extensions, non-accrual (4 1,05( 4,36¢ 2,05¢ 10,737 1,91¢ 14,327
1,842 9,491 3,26¢ 16,68( 3,511 25,46t
Total accounts with extensiol 21,98: $ 136,86: 26,69: $ 164,29: 30,97¢ $ 240,84

(1) All amounts and percentages are based on the anreumtining to be repaid on each automobile contraatiuding, for pr-compute
automobile contracts, any unearned interest. Tlermation in the table represents the gross priatgmount of all automobile contra
we purchased, including automobile contracts weseghently sold in securitization transactions theg continue to service. The ta
does not include certain contracts we have servioethird-parties on which we earn servicing fees only, aadehno credit risk

(2) We consider an automobile contract delinquent wareiobligor fails to make at least 90% of a conttedly due payment by the follow
due date, which date may have been extended Wiithits specified in the servicing agreements. Téeqa of delinquency is based on
number of days payments are contractually phs. Automobile contracts less than 31 days deéingare not included. The delinque
aging categories shown in the tables reflect tiiecebf extension:

(3) Amount in repossession represents the contracinisalan financed vehicles that have been reposséessent yet liquidatec

(4) Accounts past due more than 90 days are or-accrual.
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Net Credit Loss Experience (1)
Total Owned Portfolio Excluding Fireside

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands)

Average servicing portfolio outstandil $ 699,03( $ 597,54t $ 827,17t
Net charg-offs as a percentage of average servicing port{@l 3.5% 5.8% 9.C%

Net Credit Loss Experience (1)
Fireside Portfolio (3)

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands)

Average servicing portfolio outstandil $ 103,54t  $ 191,28¢
Net charg-offs as a percentage of average servicing port{@li 4.5% 5.1%

Net Credit Loss Experience (1)
Total Owned Portfolio (3)

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands)

Average servicing portfolio outstandil $ 802,57¢ $ 788,83! $ 827,17t
Net charg-offs as a percentage of average servicing port{@l 3.6% 4.8% 9.C%

(1) All amounts and percentages are based on the péemount scheduled to be paid on each automabitéract, net of unearned inco
on precomputed automobile contracts. The informationha table represents all automobile contracts weviser excluding certa
contracts we have serviced for th-parties on which we earn servicing fees only, aaehno credit risk

(2) Net charg-offs include the remaining principal balance, aftbe application of the net proceeds from the ligtion of the vehic
(excluding accrued and unpaid interest) and amogbtiected subsequent to the date of chasffeincluding some recoveries which h
been classified as other income in the accomparfymagcial statement:

(3) Amounts and percentages associated with theskle portfolio reflect only the period after theqaisition of the portfolio in Septeml
2011.

Extensions

In certain circumstances we will grant obligors anenth payment extensions to assist them with teargarash flow problems. In gene
an obligor would not be entitled to more than twiotsextensions in any I®enth period and no more than six over the lif¢hefcontract. Tt
only modification of terms is to advance the obtigmext due date by one month and extend the matiate of the receivable by one mo
In some cases, a twoenth extension may be granted. There are no athecessions such as a reduction in interest ratgjveness ¢
principal or of accrued interest. Accordingly, wensider such extensions to be insignificant deiaypayments rather than troubled c
restructurings.
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The basic question in deciding to grant an extensavhether or not we will (a) be delaying an iit@vle repossession and liquidation ot
risk losing the vehicle as a result of not beinfgdb locate the obligor and vehicle. In both afgé situations, the loss would likely be hig
than if the vehicle had been repossessed withauegtension. The benefits of granting an extengictude minimizing current losses ¢
delinquencies, minimizing lifetime losses, gettthg obligors account current (or close to it) and building dyeil with the obligor so that t
might prioritize us over other creditors on futygayments. Our servicing staff are trained to idgnithen a past due obligor is facin
temporary problem that may be resolved with anresitan. In most cases, the extension will be grairtembnjunction with our receiving a p
due payment (and where allowed by law, a nomina) feom the obligor, thereby indicating an addiibmonetary and psychologi
commitment to the contract on the obligor's pade§ collected in conjunction with an extensiona@salited to obligorsbutstanding accrut
interest.

The credit assessment for granting an extensiomitiglly made by our collector, who bases the reomendation on the collectar’
discussions with the obligor. In such assessméetsallector will consider, among other things, fibléowing factors: (1) the reason the obli
has fallen behind in their payments; (2) whethenairthe reason for the delinquency is temporang, i&it is, have conditions changed s
that the obligor can begin making regular monthdympents again after the extension; (3) the obkgpast payment history, including f
extensions if applicable; and (4) the obligowillingness to communicate and cooperate on vagpkhe delinquency. If the collector belie
the obligor is a good candidate for an extensi@nmust obtain approval from his supervisor, whd véView the same factors stated at
prior to offering the extension to the obligor. éftreceiving an extension, an account remains sutgeour normal policies and procedures
interest accrual, reporting delinquency and recggicharge-offs.

We believe that a prudent extension program isrdegral component to mitigating losses in our bidf of subprime automobil
receivables. The table below summarizes the statusf December 31, 2012, for accounts that redesxéensions from 2008 through 2011:

Avg
Active or Paic % Active or % Charged Of Charged Off % Charged Of Months tc
Off at Paid Offat Charged Off> > 6 Months <=6 Months <=6 Months Charge
Period of # Extensions December 31, December 31, 6 Months Afte After After After Off Post
Extension Grantec 2012 2012 Extension Extension Extension Extension  Extensior
2008 35,58¢ 12,20t 34.3% 18,56+ 52.2% 4,81¢ 13.5% 17
2009 32,00¢ 12,32¢ 38.5% 13,91: 43.5% 5,76¢ 18.0% 13
2010 22,59:¢ 13,34: 59.0% 7,60¢ 33.7% 1,64: 7.3% 13
2011 17,00: 13,31( 78.3% 2,90¢ 17.1% 78E 4.6% 11

Table excludes extensions on portfolios servicethfcd parties

We view these results as a confirmation of thea#iffeness of our extension program. For the acsoredeiving extensions in 2008, 2(
2010 and 2011, 34.3%, 38.5%, 59.0% and 78.3%, casply, were either paid in full or are active gmeiforming at December 31, 2012. V
each of these successful extensions we receivethued payments of interest and principal (inclgdpayment in full in many cases). With
the extension, however, we would have likely inedra substantial loss and no additional interestmae.

For extension accounts that ultimately charged w#,consider accounts that charged off more thamsinths after the extension to b
least partially successful. For the 2008, 200902&1d 2011 extensions that charged off, the cheffg&as incurred, on average, 17, 13, 13
11 months, respectively, after the extension, TihiScates that even in the cases of an ultimats, lege received additional payment:
principal and interest that otherwise we would mte received.

12




Additional information about our extensions is pd®d in the tables below:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2012 2011 2010
Average number of extensions granted per m 1,49: 1,415 1,88:
Average number of outstanding accot 93,02: 86,28: 95,29
Average monthly extensions as % of average outstga 1.€% 1.€% 2.C%

Table excludes extensions on the Fireside portfatid portfolios serviced for third parties

December 31, 201 December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Number of Number of Number of
Contracts Amount Contracts Amount Contracts Amount

(Dollars in thousands

Contracts with one extensit 9,72¢ % 78,03: 14,12: $ 85,56( 17,74¢ % 135,20
Contracts with two extensiol 4,664 22,48¢ 7,72C 48,61¢ 9,14 73,94
Contracts with three extensio 2,81¢ 13,08¢ 3,65¢ 22,718 3,42( 27,07
Contracts with four extensiol 1,13¢ 5,37( 1,08z 6,61¢ 65C 4,53¢
Contracts with five extensior 19¢ 1,03¢ 101 66E 12 74
Contracts with six extensions 26 12¢ 15 117 2 8

18,56 $ 120,13t 26,69: $ 164,29: 30,97 $ 240,84:
Gross servicing portfoli 74,12:  $ 825,18t 69,76 $ 588,99: 84,60. $ 681,15

Table excludes extensions on the Fireside portfatid portfolios serviced for third parties
Nor-Accrual Receivables

It is not uncommon for our obligors to fall behiimdtheir payments. However, with the diligent effoof our servicing staff and systems
managing our collection efforts, we regularly wavkh our customers to resolve delinquencies. Oaff $¢ trained to employ a counsel
approach to assist our customers with their cash fhanagement skills and help them to prioritizgirtipayment obligations in order to av
losing their vehicle to repossession. Through ogreeence, we have learned that once a contrac @gthe point where it becomes gre
than 90 days past due, it is more likely than hat the delinquency will not be resolved and witinnately result in a chargeff. As a resul
we do not recognize any interest income or retaiour balance sheet any accrued interest for atigtthat are greater than 90 days past due.

If an obligor exceeds the 90 days past due thrdshibthe end of one period, and then makes thessapepayments such that it beco
equal to or below 90 days delinquent at the end setibsequent period, the related contract wouldeb®red to full accrual status for
financial reporting purposes. At the time a corttiaaestored to full accrual in this manner, thea@ be no assurance that full repayme
interest and principal will ultimately be made. Hower, we monitor each obligarpayment performance and are aware of the sewritys
delinquency at any time. The fact that the delimpyehas been reduced below thed¥3-threshold is a positive indicator. Should tbattac
again exceed the 90-day delinquency level at tlleoéany reporting period, it would again be refgtas a non-accrual account.

Our policy for placing a contract on naccrual status is independent of our policy to gam extension. In practice, it would be

uncommon circumstance where an extension was grame the account remained in a ramtrual status, since the goal of the extensido
bring the contract current (or nearly current).
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Securitization of Automobile Contracts

We purchase automobile contracts with the intentibfinancing them on a lontgrm basis through securitizations. All such sda@ation:
have involved identification of specific automobientracts, sale of those automobile contracts @ssbciated rights) to a special purj
subsidiary, and issuance of asssteked securities to fund the transactions. Upenstcuritization of a portfolio of automobile cadis, wi
retain the obligation to service the contracts, exwmkive a monthly fee for doing so. We have beeegalar issuer of assbicked securitit
since 1994, completing 57 securitizations totatimgr $7.7 billion through December 31, 2012. Depreman the structure of the securitizat
the transaction may be treated as a sale of tloemamlile contracts or as a secured financing farfaial accounting purposes. From July 2
through April 2008, we structured our securitizatioas secured financings rather than as sales mifacts. The second of our t
securitizations completed in 2008 (September 20@&8 in substance a sale of the related contrants,isatreated as a sale for finan
accounting purposes. In September 2010 we tookndaga of improvement in the market for asset-badexlrities by reecuritizing th
underlying receivables from our unrated SeptemB@82ecuritization. This transaction was our fieged term securitization since 1993
did not utilize a financial guaranty. In 2011, wampleted three securitizations of approximately383million in newly originated contrac
During 2012 we completed four securitizations opragimately $603.5 million in contracts, includi§$8.2 million in contracts that we
repurchased from 2006 and 2007 securitization®k?2The 2011 and 2012 securitizations were allciired as secured financings and 1
utilized financial guarantees.

When structured to be treated as a secured fingnthie subsidiary is consolidated and, accordintjg,automobile contracts and the rel
securitization trust debt appear as assets anitltlesy respectively, on our consolidated balasbeet. We then recognize interest income o
contracts and interest expense on the securisegdsin the securitization and record as expemse\asion for probable incurred credit los
on the contracts.

When structured to be treated as a sale, the sabsiis not consolidated. Accordingly, the secadtion removes the sold automo
contracts from our consolidated balance sheetrdlated debt does not appear as our debt, andomsokdated balance sheet shows, ¢
asset, a retained residual interest in the solonawnibile contracts. The residual interest represibetsliscounted value of what we expect wil
the excess of future collections on the automatmletracts over principal and interest due on thsetdmcked securities. That residual inte
appears on our consolidated balance sheet as Uadsitterest in securitizations," and the deteritidmaof its value is dependent on
estimates of the future performance of the soldraobile contracts.

Generally, prior to a securitization transaction fuad our automobile contract purchases primarilthvproceeds from warehouse cri
facilities. Since October 2009, we have established funding facilities and gradually increased oantract purchases. We increased
shortterm funding capacity by $200 million with the ddtshment of a $100 million credit facility in Demder 2010 and an additional $:
million credit facility in February 2011. In May 2@, the revolving period of the February 2011 faciéxpired and we entered into a new ¢
million credit facility with a different lender. lIiDecember 2012, we extended the December 2010tfaml February 2013. Our curre
maximum revolving warehouse financing capacity28@million.

In a securitization and in our warehouse credillifegs, we are required to make certain repredenta and warranties, which are genel
similar to the representations and warranties nigddealers in connection with our purchase of ti®raobile contracts. If we breach any
our representations or warranties, we will be aibg to repurchase the automobile contract at @ mqual to the principal balance
accrued and unpaid interest. We may then be ahtitfeler the terms of our dealer agreement to reghi selling dealer to repurchase
contract at a price equal to our purchase pricss &y principal payments made by the customere8uto any recourse against dealers
will bear the risk of loss on repossession andeesfavehicles under automobile contracts that emurchase.

Whether a securitization is treated as a secureshding or as a sale for financial accounting psegothe related special purpose subsi
may be unable to release excess cash to us ifréuht performance of the securitized automobileti@ars falls short of prdetermine
standards. Such releases represent a materiabmparfi the cash that we use to fund our operatiéms.unexpected deterioration in
performance of securitized automobile contractddctherefore have a material adverse effect on bathliquidity and results of operatio
regardless of whether such automobile contractéras¢ed as having been sold or as having beendéth For estimation of the magnitud
such risk, it may be appropriate to look to the 9% our "managed portfolio,” which represents Hatanced and sold automobile contract
to which such credit risk is retained. Our managexdfolio as of December 31, 2012 was approxima®&97.6 million, including $11.6 millic
of receivables on which we earn only servicing fees
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Competition

The automobile financing business is highly conipeti We compete with a number of national, regiara local finance companies w
operations similar to ours. In addition, compestar potential competitors include other types iofifficial services companies, suct
commercial banks, savings and loan associatioasjnig companies, credit unions providing retaihléi@ancing and lease financing for r
and used vehicles, and captive finance companidgatafl with major automobile manufacturers. Maofy our competitors and potent
competitors possess substantially greater finanamrketing, technical, personnel and other ressutban we do. Moreover, our fut
profitability will be directly related to the avalbility and cost of our capital in relation to theailability and cost of capital to our competit
Our competitors and potential competitors include larger, more established companies that havesado capital markets for unsect
commercial paper and investment gradeed debt instruments and to other funding soutisas may be unavailable to us. Many of tt
companies also have lorsganding relationships with dealers and may prowither financing to dealers, including floor planaincing for th
dealers' purchase of automobiles from manufactundrieh we do not offer.

We believe that the principal competitive factoffeeting a dealer's decision to offer automobilatcacts for sale to a particular financ
source are the monthly payment amount made availabthe deales’ customer, the purchase price offered for thenaobile contracts, tt
timeliness of the response to the dealer upon sgoni of the initial application, the amount of ugqd documentation, the consistency
timeliness of purchases and the financial stabdftyhe funding source. While we believe that wa ohtain from dealers sufficient automol
contracts for purchase at attractive prices by istergtly applying reasonable underwriting critesiad making timely purchases of qualify
automobile contracts, there can be no assurantevéhaill do so.

Regulation

Several federal and state consumer protection leekiding the federal Truth-lhending Act, the federal Equal Credit Opportunitgt Athe
federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and Beeleral Trade Commission Act, regulate consumatitctensactions. These laws man
certain disclosures with respect to finance chamesutomobile contracts and impose certain otéstrictions. In many states, a licens
required to engage in the business of purchasitarabile contracts from dealers. In addition, lawa number of states impose limitation:
the amount of finance charges that may be chargedeblers on credit sales. Theled Lemon Laws enacted by various states pr
certain rights to purchasers with respect to autnles that fail to satisfy express warranties. Bpplication of Lemon Laws or violation
such other federal and state laws may give risediaim or defense of a customer against a deatkita assignees, including us and those
purchaser automobile contracts from us. The demdeeement contains representations by the deadr as of the date of assignmen
automobile contracts, no such claims or defense® Iheen asserted or threatened with respect taub@mobile contracts and that
requirements of such federal and state laws hage bemplied with in all material respects. Althowgtealer would be obligated to repurcl
automobile contracts that involve a breach of suahranty, there can be no assurance that the de#ldrave the financial resources to sat
its repurchase obligations. Certain of these lda @egulate our servicing activities, including owethods of collection.

In July 2010 the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform &whsumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) beealaw. The Doddrrank Ac
restructured the regulation and supervision of fihancial services industry and created the ConsuRieancial Protection Bureau (i
“CFPB”"). The CFPB has rulemaking and enforcemetharity over “non-banks,” including us. Many of theovisions of the Dodérank Ac
have extended implementation periods and delayfedtafe dates and will require extensive rulemakiAg a result, the ultimate effect of
Dodd+rank Act on our business cannot be determinediisittime. We believe that we are currently in matecompliance with applicak
statutes and regulations; however, there can kassarance that we are correct, nor that we wilitile to maintain such compliance. The
or future failure to comply with applicable statsitend regulations could have a material adversetetfin us. Furthermore, the adoptiol
additional statutes and regulations, changes inirttegpretation and enforcement of current statates regulations or the expansion of
business into jurisdictions that have adopted nstrieagent regulatory requirements than those inctviie currently conduct business cc
have a material adverse effect on us. In additiue to the consumeamrented nature of our industry and the applicatércertain laws ar
regulations, industry participants are regularlyned as defendants in litigation involving allegedlations of federal and state laws
regulations and consumer law torts, including fraddny of these actions involve alleged violati@igonsumer protection laws. A signific
judgment against us or within the industry in castioe with any such litigation could have a matesidverse effect on our financial conditi
results of operations or liquidity.

Employee!
As of December 31, 2012, we had 574 employees biéekdown of the employees is as follows: severewenior management person
279 were servicing personnel; 146 were automolafgract origination personnel; 89 were marketingspenel (77 of whom were market

representatives); 23 were operations and systemsompeel; and 30 were administrative personnel. \&kebe that our relations with ¢
employees are good. We are not a party to anyatiléebargaining agreement.
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business, operating results and financial daomdcould be adversely affected by any of theolwlhg specific risks. The trading price
our common stock could decline due to any of thisskes and other industry risks. This listing okssby its nature cannot be exhaustive, an
order in which the risks appear is not intendedramdication of their relative weight or importandn addition to the risks described below
may encounter risks that we do not currently recgor that we currently deem immaterial, which raégo impair our business operations
the value of our common stock.

Risks Related to Our Business
We Require a Substantial Amount of Cash to Servic®ur Substantial Debt.

To service our existing substantial indebtednessteguire a significant amount of cash. Our abilitgenerate cash depends on many fai
including our successful financial and operatingfgrenance. Our financial and operational perforneadepends upon a number of facl
many of which are beyond our control. These fadiwehide, without limitation:

. the economic and competitive conditions in the talsaeked securities market;

. the performance of our current and future autoneotsintracts;

. the performance of our residual interests fromsmauritizations and warehouse credit facilities;
. any operating difficulties or pricing pressuresmway experience;

. our ability to obtain credit enhancement for owrséizations;

. our ability to establish and maintain dealer relaships;

. the passage of laws or regulations that affectiversely;

. our ability to compete with our competitors; and

. our ability to acquire and finance automobile caats.

Depending upon the outcome of one or more of tifest®ers, we may not be able to generate suffioadash flow from operations or obt
sufficient funding to satisfy all of our obligatisnFrom 2008 through 2010 the credit performanceusfautomobile contracts was adver
affected by general economic conditions, which asklg affected the performance of our residualregts. Such factors could result in
being unable to pay our debts timely or as agrdagle were unable to pay our debts, we would belireq to pursue one or more alterna
strategies, such as selling assets, refinancimgstructuring our indebtedness or selling addifi@tpity capital. These alternative strate
might not be feasible at the time, might prove ggathte or could require the prior consent of ondégs.

We Need Substantial Liquidity to Operate Our Businss.

We have historically funded our operations printijpthrough internally generated cash flows, saléslebt and equity securities, includ
through securitizations and warehouse credit tasli borrowings under senior secured debt agreesmamd sales of subordinated nc
However, we may not be able to obtain sufficiemiding for our future operations from such sour@sing 2008, 2009 and much of 2010,
access to the capital markets was impaired witbe@sto both short-term and lomgrm funding. While our access to such funding
improved since then, our results of operationsrfaial condition and cash flows have been and roafirue to be materially and advers
affected. We require a substantial amount of caslidity to operate our business. Among other thjnge use such cash liquidity to:

. acquire automobile contracts;

. fund overcollateralization in warehousedit facilities and securitizations;
. pay securitization fees and expenses;

. fund spread accounts in connection wittugézations;

. satisfy working capital requirements aag pperating expenses;

. pay taxes; and

. pay interest expense.

Historically we have matched our liquidity needto available sources of funding by reducing aquasition of new automobile contracts
times to merely nominal levels. There can be narasge that we will continue to be successful whtt strategy.
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Recent History of Significant Losses.

Until the fourth quarter of 2011, we had incurred losses every quarter beginning with the quamneled September 30, 2008. We have
adversely affected by the economic recession afig¢he United States as a whole, by increasedhimg costs and decreased availabilit
capital to fund our purchases of automobile comsdtzand by a decrease in the overall level of safleésitomobiles and light trucks. We ex
to earn quarterly profits during 2013; however réhean be no assurance as to that expectationexpactation of profitability is a forward-
looking statement. We discuss the assumptions lymagrthat expectation under the caption “Forwambking Statementsih this report. W
identify important factors that could cause actuesults to differ, generally in the “Risk Factors&ction of this report, and also under
caption “Forward-Looking Statements.”

Our Results of Operations Will Depend on Our Ability to Secure and Maintain Adequate Credit and Warehase Financing on
Favorable Terms.

Our business strategy requires that warehouset degilities be available in order to purchase #gigant volumes of receivables.

Historically, our primary sources of day-iay liquidity have been our warehouse credit faegi in which we sold and contribu
automobile contracts, as often as twice a weekptzialpurpose subsidiaries, where they were "warehousetil' they were financed or
long-term basis through the issuance of abaeked notes. Upon issuance of the notes, fundanaéd under one or more warehouse ¢
facilities were repaid from the proceeds. In Decen?010 and February 2011, we entered into sepagaeements for two new $100 mill
revolving warehouse facilities. In May 2012, thealing period of the February 2011 facility exmrby its terms and we entered into a
$100 million credit facility with a different lendeln December 2012, we extended the December 2ixility to February 2013. Our curre
maximum revolving warehouse financing capacity 20C million. See “Managemest’Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord
Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Reses — Liquidity”.

If we are unable to maintain warehouse financingaoceptable terms, our results of operations, irmrcondition and cash flows could
materially and adversely affected.

Our Results of Operations Will Depend on Our Ability to Securitize Our Portfolio of Automobile Contrads.

Historically we have depended upon our ability fotain permanent financing for pools of automobitentcacts by conducting te
securitization transactions. By "permanent finagtiwe mean financing that extends to cover the teittn during which the underlyi
contracts are outstanding and requires repaymemheasinderlying contracts are repaid or charged B§f contrast, our warehouse cr
facilities permit us to borrow against the valuesath receivables only for limited periods of tinGur past practice and future plan has |
and is to repay loans made to us under our warehoteglit facilities with the proceeds of securtiizas. During 2012, we completed fi
securitizations of approximately $603.5 milliondantracts. We plan to complete similar securitaragiduring 2013. There can be no assul
that securitization transactions will continue ®dvailable on acceptable terms acceptable, df. e timing of any securitization transact
is affected by a number of factors beyond our @dnaény of which could cause substantial delaydpising, without limitation:

. market conditions;

. the approval by all parties of the terrhthe securitization;

. the availability of credit enhancementameeptable terms; and

. our ability to acquire a sufficient numiaxdérautomobile contracts for securitization.

As stated elsewhere in this report, during 2008 20@9 adverse changes in the market for securifimeds of automobile contracts mi
permanent financing in the form of securitizatioansactions difficult to obtain and more costlyrtha prior periods. These changes inclt
reduced liquidity and reduced demand for abseked securities, particularly for securities yiag a financial guaranty or for securities bac
by subprime automobile receivables. During 2012, we catgul four securitizations of approximately $603.fiom under terms that we
substantially better than those available from 2008ugh 2010. Should the terms of future secuatiitins revert to more costly levels preva
from 2008 through 2010, our results of operatiomda be adversely affected.
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Our Results of Operations Will Depend on Cash Flowfom Our Residual Interests in Our Securitization Program and Our Warehouse
Credit Facilities.

When we finance our automobile contracts througluistizations and warehouse credit facilities, weeaive cash and a residual interest it
assets financed. This residual interest repredbatsght to receive the future cash flows to beegated by the automobile contracts in ex
of (i) the interest and principal paid to investorsthe assdtacked notes issued in connection with the finamdii) the costs of servicing t
contracts and (iii) certain other costs incurreg¢amnection with completing and maintaining theusization or warehouse credit facility. \
sometimes refer to these future cash flows as “xspread cash flows."

In our securitizations and warehouse credit fagfliexcess spread cash flows that would othervageai to the holder of the residual inte
are first used to increase overcollateralizatiorai@ retained in a spread account within the seézation trusts or the warehouse facility
provide liquidity and credit enhancement for thiatexd securities.

While the specific terms and mechanics vary ameoagshctions, our securitization and warehousingeagents generally provide that
will receive excess spread cash flows only if theoant of overcollateralization and spread accowtarices have reached specified le
and/or the delinquency, defaults or net lossede@lt the contracts in the automobile contracigpace below certain predetermined level:
the event delinquencies, defaults or net lossematracts exceed these levels, the terms of theitieation or warehouse credit facility:

« may require increased credit enhancement, includimgncrease in the amount required to be on depoghe spread account to
accumulated for the particular pool; &

« in certain circumstances, may permit affected partd require the transfer of servicing on somalbof the securitized or warehou:
contracts from us to an unaffiliated servic

We typically retain residual interests and use tlntollateral to borrow cash. The future excessaspcash flow received in respect of
residual interests is integral to the financingof operations. The amount of cash received fr@idval interests depends in large part on
well our portfolio of securitized and warehousedoawobile contracts performs. If our portfolio ofcseitized and warehoused automo
contracts has higher delinquency and loss ratias #xpected, then the amount of money realized fsanretained residual interests, or
amount of money we could obtain from the sale beofinancing of our residual interests, would éduced. Such higher than expected Ic
occurred from 2008 through 2010, which had an as#veffect on our operations, financial condition @ash flow. Should losses increas
levels experienced in 2008 through 2010, we wowufgket this to result in material adverse effectanfuture results of operations, finan
condition and cash flow.

If We Are Unable to Obtain Credit Enhancement for Qur Securitizations Upon Favorable Terms, Our Resul of Operations Would Be
Impaired.

In our securitizations from 1994 through 2008, wibzed credit enhancement in the form of one orenfinancial guaranty insurance polic
issued by financial guaranty insurance companiash®Bf these policies unconditionally and irrevdgajuarantees timely interest and ultin
principal payments on the senior classes of thariixs issued in those securitizations. Theseajuaes enabled these securities to achie
highest credit rating available. This form of cteginhancement reduced the costs of our securdimmtielative to alternative forms of cre
enhancement available to us at the time. Due tifgigntly reduced investor demand for securitiaeying such a financial guaranty, this fc
of credit enhancement may not be economic for ukhénfuture. The seven securitizaton transactioesexecuted in 2011 and 2012 did
utilize financial guaranty insurance policies, arahe of the securities issued in those transactiecsived the highest possible credit rati
As we pursue future securitizations, we may naalfle to obtain:

» credit enhancement in any form on terms acceptalls, or at all; or
« similar highest available credit ratings for seritasses of securities to be issued in future géations.

We expect to pay a greater credit spread than we $@en in the past between our securitization tieist and riskree investments. As of t
date of this report, interest rates on rigde debt are close to historical lows, which hfised much of the adverse effect on us of greatedil
spreads. When interest rates on fige debt increase, we would expect increaseddstexpense, which could adversely affect our tes
operations.
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If We Are Unable to Compete Successfully, Our Restd of Operations May Be Impaired.

The automobile financing business is highly contpeti We compete with a number of national, regiarad local finance companies.
addition, competitors or potential competitors g other types of financial services companiesh 18 commercial banks, savings and
associations, leasing companies, credit unionsigirgy retail loan financing and lease financing fimw and used vehicles and captive fini
companies affiliated with major automobile manuiiaets. Many of our competitors and potential corntpest possess substantially gre
financial, marketing, technical, personnel and ptiesources than we do, including greater accesapital markets for unsecured comme|
paper and investment grade rated debt instrumants,to other funding sources which may not be alsbdl to us. Moreover, our futt
profitability will be directly related to the avability and cost of capital relative to our compmts. Many of these companies also have lon
standing relationships with automobile dealers ara/ provide other financing to dealers, includihgof plan financing for the deale
purchases of automobiles from manufacturers, whiehdo not offer. There can be no assurance thawiléde able to continue to comp
successfully and, as a result, we may not be abpeitchase contracts from dealers at acceptaldegynivhich could result in reductions in
revenues and cash flow.

If Our Dealers Do Not Submit a Sufficient Number ofSuitable Automobile Contracts to Us for PurchaseQur Results of Operations
May Be Impaired.

We are dependent upon establishing and maintair@lagionships with a large number of unaffiliatadanobile dealers to supply us w
automobile contracts. During the years ended Deee®b, 2012 and 2011, no dealer accounted for riane 1.1% or 1.3%, respectively,
the contracts we purchased. The agreements wewittvelealers to purchase contracts do not requeéadeals to submit a minimum numbe
contracts for purchase. The failure of dealersutonst contracts that meet our underwriting criteagauld result in reductions in our reven
and cash flow, and, therefore, could have an adwfect on our results of operations.

If a Significant Number of Our Automobile Contracts Experience Defaults, Our Results of Operations Mae Impaired.

We specialize in the purchase and servicing ofrects to finance automobile purchases by mtilme customers, those who have lim
credit history, low income, or past credit probler8sich contracts entail a higher risk of mmrformance, higher delinquencies and hi
losses than contracts with more creditworthy cust@m\While we believe that our pricing and the umali¢ing criteria and collection metha
we employ enable us to manage the higher riskgémheén contracts with suprime customers, no assurance can be given thhtmiging
criteria and methods will afford adequate protetagainst such risks. We have experienced incréasesdit losses on our contracts.

If our automobile contracts experience higher dédathan we have anticipated, this could materialifhd adversely affect our results
operations, financial condition, cash flow and ldity. Our results of operations, financial conaiitj cash flow and liquidity, depend, t
material extent, on the performance of automobiletracts that we purchase. A portion of the autafaatontracts we acquire will default
prepay. In the event of payment default, the redlizalue of the related vehicle after repossessitingenerally not cover the outstand
principal balance on that contract and the relatesis of recovery. We maintain an allowance foditi@sses on automobile contracts hel
our balance sheet, which reflects our estimateggralbable incurred credit losses that can be reldpmrstimated for securitizations that
accounted for as financings and warehoused costrifcthe allowance is inadequate, then we woultbgeize the losses in excess of
allowance as an expense and our results of opesatiould be adversely affected. In addition, uilderterms of our warehouse credit facilit
we are not able to borrow against defaulted aut@lmcbntracts, including contracts that are, attitme of default, funded under our warehc
credit facilities, which will reduce the overcokaalization of those warehouse credit facilitied aor cash flow.

If We Lose Servicing Rights on Our Portfolio of Aubmobile Contracts, Our Results of Operations WouldBe Impaired.
We are entitled to receive servicing fees only while act as servicer under the applicable salesandcing agreements governing

warehouse facilities and securitizations. Underhsagreements, we may be terminated as servicer timmccurrence of certain eve
including:

. our failure generally to observe and penfour responsibilities and other covenants;
. certain bankruptcy events; or
. the occurrence of certain events of défandier the documents governing the facilities.
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During 2010 and 2011 we received waivers regardhng potential breach of certain covenants relatmgminimum net worth ar
maintenance of active warehouse credit facilitdthout such waivers, certain credit enhancemenvigers would have had the right
terminate us as servicer with respect to certaitstanding securitization pools. In February 201 temaining notes associated with
securitization transactions for which we receivavwers in 2011 were paid in full. In the event we eequired to seek similar waivers in
future, we believe we can do so because it is gdlgerot in the interest of any party to the setization transaction to transfer servicing. S
our inception in 1991, we have continuously refioed systems and procedures to maximize our effentiss in the servicing and collectio
our subprime automobile portfolio. Successful servicingjuiges diligent telephonic contact, multiple paymeaiternatives, explicit ar
accurate record keeping of interactions with obbgand efficient workload allocation. When we eni#o securitizations and other financ
arrangements that call for us to service specifidfplios of receivables, the parties expect thatwill continuously service those portfol
because they believe that we are effective in miirg the losses that are inherent in sub-priméfplars.

We believe there are many servicers of prime cnedittgage or credit card portfolios, and that prionedit portfolios may be transferi
between servicers without significant risk of ctediégradation. However, there are fewer servicdie gpecialize in suprime automobil
portfolios. In addition, it is generally acknowlestythat third party servicers typically do not hagemuch incentive to maximize portfc
performance as does the entity that holds the tcriséfi of the portfolio. Moreover, it is our opinidhat credit enhancement providers recog
that diligent telephonic contact and continuitytieé relationship between servicer and obligor aitecal and that a transfer of servicing to
entity with subprime experience could still cause interruptionsémvicing that would result in substantially gezabsses than would he
occurred without the transfer.

We feel that the credit enhancement providers vdpeatedly granted us waivers during 2010 and 201ieu of transferring servicit
recognize these factors and based their decisiomghether or not to maintain us as servicer orr thwn best interests.

Nevertheless, there can be no assurance as telefrtieing correct. The loss of our servicing tgybould materially and adversely affect
results of operations, financial condition and clistvs. Our results of operations, financial coritand cash flow, would be materially
adversely affected if we were to be terminatedeagicer with respect to a material portion of ouarmaged portfolio.

If We Lose Key Personnel, Our Results of Operation®ay Be Impaired.

Our senior management team averages over 16 yéasndce with us. Charles E. Bradley, Jr., oueditient and CEO, has been
President since our formation in 1991. Our futuperating results depend in significant part upom ¢bntinued service of our key sel
management personnel, none of whom is bound byrgohogment agreement. Our future operating resisis depend in part upon our abi
to attract and retain qualified management, te@ingales and support personnel for our operatiGompetition for such personnel is intel
We cannot assure you that we will be successfutiracting or retaining such personnel. Layoffscei2008 mayhave reduced employ
loyalty, which may in turn result in decreased emgpk performance. Conversely, adverse general edonconditions may have hac
countervailing effect. The loss of any key emplqytbe failure of any key employee to perform in bisher current position or our inability
attract and retain skilled employees, as needeadd coaterially and adversely affect our result®pérations, financial condition and cash flow.

If We Fail to Comply with Regulations, Our Resultsof Operations May Be Impaired.

Failure to materially comply with all applicableata and regulations could materially and adverséBcaour ability to operate our busine
Our business is subject to numerous federal anel stasumer protection laws and regulations, whaaigng other things:

. require us to obtain and maintain certigenses and qualifications;

. limit the interest rates, fees and otherges we are allowed to charge;

. limit or prescribe certain other termsaf automobile contracts;

. require specific disclosures to our custsn

. define our rights to repossess and sdlteral; and

. maintain safeguards designed to protecséturity and confidentiality of customer inforioat
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Our industry is also at times investigated by ratprs and offices of state attorneys general, whaldd lead to enforcement actions, fi
and penalties, or the assertion of private claimgd &@w suits against us. The Federal Trade Comamskas the authority to investig
consumer complaints against us and to recommermaamhent actions and seek monetary penalties. Faéo comply with applicable lav
and regulations, such failure could result in ptes| litigation losses and expenses, damage toeputation, or the suspension or terming
of our licenses to conduct business, which wouldenelly adversely affect our results of operatiofisancial condition and stock price.
addition, new federal and state laws or regulatmnshanges in the ways that existing rules or lavesinterpreted or enforced could limit
activities in the future or significantly increasee cost of compliance. Furthermore, judges orleggty bodies could interpret current rule:
laws differently than the way we do, leading totsaclverse consequences as described above. THetimsof such matters may reqt
considerable time and expense, and if not resdlvexdir favor, may result in fines or damages, aossjply an adverse effect on our finan
condition.

We believe that we are in compliance in all mataeapects with all such laws and regulations, #ad such laws and regulations have
no material adverse effect on our ability to operatir business. However, we may be materially ahersely affected if we fail to comg
with:

. applicable laws and regulations;

. changes in existing laws or regulations;

. changes in the interpretation of existaags or regulations; or

. any additional laws or regulations thayrba enacted in the future.

Recent Legislation and Proposed Regulations May Havan Adverse Effect on Our Business.

The Dodd-Frank Act mandates the most wide-rangiwertwaul of financial industry regulation in decadése DoddFrank Act was signe
into law on July 21, 2010, and is now in the impéenation stage. The law provides a regulatory fraark and requires that regulators, st
of which are new regulatory bodies created by tloeldFrank Act, draft, review and approve more than #fflementing regulations a
conduct numerous studies that are likely to leadtilbmore regulations. In addition, the Commissioas recently proposed amendmen
regulations first adopted in 2005 known as RegoafAB. The amendments to Regulation AB have ydig@mdopted and are expected t
significantly modified from the form initially pragsed, however, the final form of the amendmen®edgulation AB when adopted are likely
increase the expenses that we will incur in sezatibn transactions.

Compliance with these new laws and regulations beagr likely will be costly and can affect opengtiresults. Compliance requas forms
processes, procedures, controls and the infragteitd support these requirements. Compliance meste operational constraints and p
limits on pricing. Laws in the financial serviceslustry are designed primarily for the protectidrconsumers. The failure to comply co
result in significant statutory civil and criminpkenalties, monetary damages, attorndgs’s and costs, possible revocation of license:
damage to reputation, brand and valued custometiarhips.

At this time, it is difficult to predict the extemd which the Dodd-rank Act or the resulting regulations or the Ratjah AB amendmen

will affect our business. However, compliance witlese new laws and regulations may result in authti cost and expenses, which |
adversely affect our results of operations, finahcondition or liquidity.
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If We Experience Unfavorable Litigation Results, Ou Results of Operations May Be Impaired.

We operate in a litigious society and currently, @aed may in the future be, named as defendanitigation, including individual and cla
action lawsuits under consumer credit, consumeteption, theft, privacy, data security, automatéaliny equipment, debt collections ¢
other laws. Many of these cases present novelsssuavhich there is no clear legal precedent, whicheases the difficulty in predicting b
the potential outcomes and costs of defending thases. We are subject to regulatory examinationgstigations, inquiries, litigation, a
other actions by licensing authorities, state attgs general, the Federal Trade Commission, angl gtbvernmental bodies relating to
activities. The litigation and regulatory actiors which we are or may become subject involve or nmaplve potential compensatory
punitive damage claims, fines, sanctions or injivectelief that, if granted, could require us toypamages or make other expenditure
amounts that could have a material adverse effeciuo financial position and our results of openasi. We have recorded loss contingenci
our financial statements only for matters on wHadses are probable and can be reasonably estintuedssessments of these matters in
significant judgments, and may change from timeirtee. Actual losses incurred by us in connectiothviidgments or settlements of th
matters may be more than our associated reserugbeFmore, defending lawsuits and responding teegunental inquiries or investigatio
regardless of their merit, could be costly and dineanagemens’ attention from the operation of our business.aMofable outcomes in a
such current or future proceedings could materialig adversely affect our results of operationszarfcial conditions and cash flow. A
consumer finance company, we are subject to vammmsumer claims and litigation seeking damages stalitory penalties based ug
among other things, disclosure inaccuracies andgitb repossession, which could take the form pfantiff's class action complaint. We,
the assignee of finance contracts originated byedgamay also be named as adefendant in lawsuits filed by consumers principalyjains
dealers. We are also subject to other litigatiommmn to the automobile industry and to businessegeneral. The damages and pen:
claimed by consumers and others in these typesatters can be substantial. The relief requestethdylaintiffs varies but includes reque
for compensatory, statutory and punitive damages.

While we intend to vigorously defend ourselves aghsuch proceedings, there is a chance that suttseof operations, financial condit
and cash flows could be materially and adversdbcefd by unfavorable outcomes.

Negative publicity associated with litigation, govexmental investigations, regulatory actions, and dier public statements could damage
our reputation.

From time to time there are negative news storlesutithe “subprime’credit industry. Such stories may follow the anmmments ¢
litigation or regulatory actions involving us orhets in our industry. Negative publicity about @lleged or actual practices or about
industry generally could adversely affect our stpdke and our ability to retain and attract empley.

If We Experience Problems with Our Originations, Acounting or Collection Systems, Our Results of Opations May Be Impaired.

We are dependent on our receivables originatioospumnting and collection systems to purchase andcseour portfolio of automobi
contracts. Such systems are vulnerable to damaigg¢eoruption from natural disasters, power losgedommunication failures, terrorist attau
computer viruses and other events. A significamhiper of our systems are not redundant, and oustgiseecovery planning is not suffici
for every eventuality. Our systems are also sulijebteakins, sabotage and intentional acts of vandalisimtgynal employees and contrac
as well as third parties. Despite any precautioasnay take, such problems could result in interomgtin our services, which could harm
reputation and financial condition. We do not cargsiness interruption insurance sufficient to cengate us for losses that may result -
interruptions in our service as a result of sysfeitures. Such systems problems could materially @aversely affect our results of operati
financial conditions and cash flow.

We Have Substantial Indebtedness.

We have and will continue to have a substantialarhof indebtedness. At December 31, 2012, we padoaimately $958.5 million of de
outstanding. Such debt consisted primarily of $39Rillion of securitization trust debt, and alselirded $57.1 million of debt used for
acquisition of the Fireside portfolio, $21.7 mitlif warehouse lines of credit, $13.8 million os$idal interest financing, $50.1 million
senior secured related party debt and $23.3 millicsubordinated renewable notes. We are also milyreffering the subordinated renewe
notes to the public on a continuous basis, and satds have maturities that range from three matothen years.
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Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affiecfinancial condition by, among other things:

« increasing our vulnerability to general adversenecoic and industry conditions;

« requiring us to dedicate a substantial portionwfeash flow from operations to payments on ouebtddness, thereby reducing amounts
available for working capital, capital expendituegsl other general corporate purpo:

- limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the industshioh we operate;

« placing us at a competitive disadvantage comparedit competitors that have less debt; and

- limiting our ability to borrow additional funds.

Although we believe we are able to service andyepeh debt, there is no assurance that we wikiide to do so. If we do not genel
sufficient earnings, our ability to make requiresyments on our debt would be impaired. Failureap @ur indebtedness when due could |
a material adverse effect.

Because We Are Subject to Many Restrictions in OuExisting Credit Facilities and Securitization Transactions, Our Ability to Pay
Dividends or Engage in Specified Transactions May &Impaired.

The terms of our existing credit facilities, terracaritizations and our other outstanding debt irepsignificant operating and financ
restrictions on us and our subsidiaries and reaqusr® meet certain financial tests. These regiristmay have an adverse effect on our bus
activities, results of operations and financial dition. These restrictions may also significanityit or prohibit us from engaging in cert
transactions, including the following:

« incurring or guaranteeing additional indebtedness;

« making capital expenditures in excess of agreeah @paounts;

« paying dividends or other distributions to our gtenders or redeeming, repurchasing or retiringoaital stock or subordinated
obligations;

« making investments;

«  creating or permitting liens on our assets or gsets of our subsidiaries;

« issuing or selling capital stock of our subsidigrie

« transferring or selling our assets;

« engaging in mergers or consolidations;

« permitting a change of control of our company;

« liquidating, winding up or dissolving our company;

« changing our name or the nature of our businegheonames or nature of the business of our seb&dj and

« engaging in transactions with our affiliates outside normal course of business.

These restrictions may limit our ability to obtadditional sources of capital, which may limit @lnility to generate earnings. In addition,
failure to comply with any of the covenants of amremore of our debt agreements could cause a defadér other debt agreements that
be outstanding from time to time. A default, if medived, could result in acceleration of the raedatedebtedness, in which case such debt v
become immediately due and payable. A continuifgudeor acceleration of one or more of our crdddilities or any other debt agreem:
would likely cause a default under other debt agesgs that otherwise would not be in default, inckhcase all such related indebtedi
could be accelerated. If this occurs, we may notlide to repay our debt or borrow sufficient fundsefinance our indebtedness. Even if
new financing is available, it may not be on acabf& terms or it may not be sufficient to refinaatleof our indebtedness as it becomes due.

In addition, the transaction documents for our gégations restrict our securitization subsidiarfeom declaring or making payment to u
(i) any dividend or other distribution on or in pest of any shares of their capital stock, or diily payment on account of the purch
redemption, retirement or acquisition of any optimarrant or other right to acquire shares of thapital stock unless (in each case) at the
of such declaration or payment (and after givinig@fthereto) no amount payable under any trarmactocument with respect to the rel:
securitization is then due and owing, but unpaidese restrictions may limit our ability to receidistributions in respect of the resid
interests from our securitization facilities, whictay limit our ability to generate earnings.
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Risks Related to General Factors
If The Economy of All or Certain Regions of the Unied States Fall into Recession, Our Results of Opegtions May Be Impaired.

Our business is directly related to sales of ned ased automobiles, which are sensitive to employmegtes, prevailing interest rates
other domestic economic conditions. Delinquencieppssessions and losses generally increase decimgomic slowdowns or recessic
Because of our focus on spbime customers, the actual rates of delinquenc&mssessions and losses on our automobile ctstacld b
higher under adverse economic conditions than tleaperienced in the automobile finance industrgémeral, particularly in the states
Texas, California, Ohio, Florida, Pennsylvania &mdisiana, states in which our automobile contrarts geographically concentrated. ;
sustained period of economic slowdown or recessiutd adversely affect our ability to acquire shiégacontracts, or to securitize pools of ¢
contracts. The timing of any economic changes eetain, and weakness in the economy could hawsleerse effect on our business and
of the dealers from which we purchase contractsrasdlt in reductions in our revenues and cash.flow

Our Results Of Operations May Be Impaired As a Reduof Natural Disasters.

Our automobile contracts are geographically comeged in the states of California, Texas, and BlriSuch states may be particul
susceptible to natural disasters: earthquake ircélse of California, and hurricanes and floodinghie states of Florida and Texas. Nal
disasters, in those states or others, could causatarial number of our vehicle purchasers to libsdr jobs, or could damage or des
vehicles that secure our automobile contracts.ithiee case, such events could result in our reagiveduced collections on our automa
contracts, and could thus result in reductionsuinrevenues and cash flow.

If an Increase in Interest Rates Results in a Decese in Our Cash Flow from Excess Spread, Our Ressalof Operations May Be
Impaired.

Our profitability is largely determined by the difence, or "spread,” between the effective intaegst on the automobile contracts tha
acquire and the interest rates payable under wasehoredit facilities and on the asbatked securities issued in our securitizationshénpas
disruptions in the market for asset-backed seesritesulted in an increase in the interest ratggaickon assdtacked securities. Should sim
disruptions take place in the future, we may pahér interest rates on asseteked securities issued in the future. Althoughaee the abilit
to partially offset increases in our cost of fursincreasing fees we charge to dealers when psirgaontracts, or by demanding hic
interest rates on contracts we purchase, there @ssurance that such actions will materially d¢ffisereases in interest we pay to finance
managed portfolio.

Several factors affect our ability to manage ingerate risk. Specifically, we are subject to iatrrate risk during the period between w
automobile contracts are purchased from dealersmuh such contracts are sold and financed in arisigation. Interest rates on wareha
credit facilities are typically adjustable whileetinterest rates on the automobile contracts asalfilf interest rates increase, the interes
must pay to the lenders under warehouse crediitiesiis likely to increase while the interest wellect from those warehoused automc
contracts remains the same. Therefore, during grehwusing period, excess spread cash flow wokidylidecrease. Additionally, contra
warehoused and then securitized during a risingrést rate environment may result in less excessadpcash flow as our securitizati
typically have paid interest rates set at prevgilimerest rates at the time of the closing of gheuritization, which may not take place t
several months after we purchased those contr@uis customers, on the other hand, pay fixed r@tt@sterest on the contracts which are s
the time they purchase the underlying vehicleseérease in excess spread cash flow could adveafetit our earnings and cash flow.

To mitigate, but not eliminate, the shoetm risk relating to floating interest rates pdgalinder the warehouse facilities, we have hisadisi
held automobile contracts in the warehouse creditifies for less than four months. To mitigatet hot eliminate, the lontgrm risk relatin
to interest rates payable in securitizations, weeha the past, and intend to continue to, striecaome of our securitization transaction
include prefunding structures, whereby the amount of secsrisued exceeds the amount of contracts init&lyg into the securitization.
pre-funding, the proceeds from the ffu@ded portion are held in an escrow account wveilsell the additional contracts into the seclatton
In prefunded securitizations, we effectively lock in daarrowing costs with respect to the contracts wessguently sell into the securitizati
However, we incur an expense in poeded securitizations equal to the difference leetwthe money market yields earned on the pro
held in escrow prior to subsequent delivery of cacts and the interest rate paid on the secuigmsed in the securitization. The amour
such expense may vary. Despite these mitigati@iegiies, an increase in prevailing interest rategldvcause us to receive less excess s
cash flow on automobile contracts, and thus codicesely affect our earnings and cash flow.
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Our Common Stock Is Thinly-Traded.

Our stock is thinlyraded, which means investors will have limited appnities to sell their shares of common stockhie open marke
Limited trading of our common stock also contritsute more volatile price fluctuations. Because ¢h@storically has been low trading volu
in our common stock, there can be no assuranceothragtock price will not decline as additional igsaare sold in the public market. As
December 31, 2012, our directors and executiveafi collectively owned 2,928,980 shares of ourrnomstock, or approximately 14.8% .

We Do Not Intend to Pay Dividends on Our Common Sitk.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsuo common stock. We currently intend to retaig future earnings and do not ex;
to pay any dividends in the foreseeable future."32@idend Policy ".

Forward-Looking Statements

Discussions of certain matters contained in thmremay constitute forwartboking statements within the meaning of SectioA 27 the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the " Secarifiet ") and Section 21E of the Exchange Act, and as smnay, involve risks ar
uncertainties. These forwaldeking statements relate to, among other thingpeetations of the business environment in whichoperate
projections of future performance, perceived opputtes in the market and statements regardingnaission and vision. You can gener:
identify forward-looking statements as statementganing the words " will, " " would, " " believ&," may, " " could, " " expect, " anticipate
""intend, " " estimate, " " assumeot other similar expressions. Our actual resuksfggmance and achievements may differ materiatyn
the results, performance and achievements expressedplied in such forward-looking statements. Tdiscussion under " Risk Factots
identifies some of the factors that might causésudifference, including the following:

« changes in general economic conditions;

« changes in performance of our automobile contracts;

« increases in interest rates;

« our ability to generate sufficient operating anthficing cash flows;
« competition;

« level of losses incurred on contracts in our madagetfolio; and

» adverse decisions by courts or regulators.

Forwardlooking statements are not guarantees of performahicey involve risks, uncertainties and assumptidwtual results may diff
from expectations due to many factors beyond oilityaln control or predict, including those dedmd herein, and in documents incorpor
by reference in this report. For these statememtsclaim the protection of the safe harbor for farddooking statements contained in
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

We undertake no obligation to publicly update amnfrdiooking information. You are advised to consult aalgitional disclosure we me
in our periodic reports filed with the SEC. See h&kke You Can Find More Information " and " Docunselnicorporated by Reference. "

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
ltem 2. Property
Our headquarters are located in Irvine, Californidiere we lease approximately 60,000 square feegeoferal office space from

unaffiliated lessor. The annual base rent is agprately $1.65 million, increasing to approximatéfl. 75 million through 2016.
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In March 1997, we established a branch collectaxilify in Chesapeake, Virginia. We lease approxétyal6,500 square feet of gent
office space in Chesapeake, Virginia, at a baskethanis approximately $280,000 per year, incregasd approximately $325,000 through 2(

The remaining two regional servicing centers occapytal of approximately 41,000 square feet oféelspace in Maitland, Florida; ¢
Westchester, lllinois. The termination dates ofsléases range from 2014 to 2017.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Stanwich Litigation We were for some time a defendant in a clagsrathe " Stanwich Case)"brought in the California Superior Col
Los Angeles County. The original plaintiffs in thedise were persons entitled to receive regular paign(the " Settlement Paymentg "
pursuant to earlier settlements of claims, genemdirsonal injury claims, against unrelated defetslaStanwich Financial Services Corp. (
Stanwich "), which was an affiliate of our former chairmantb& board of directors, is the entity that wasigated to pay the Settlem:
Payments. Stanwich defaulted on its payment olitigatto the plaintiffs and in June 2001 filed fenrganization under the Bankruptcy Ct
in the federal bankruptcy court in Connecticut./Bbruary 2005, we had settled all claims broughiresy us in the Stanwich Case.

In November 2001, one of the defendants in thevdtdnCase, Jonathan Pardee, asserted claims feminity against us in a separate ac
which remains pending in federal district courtRhode Island. We have filed counterclaims in thedghlisland federal court against
Pardee, and have filed a separate action againd®Mdee's Rhode Island attorneys, in the samé. dhe litigation between Mr. Pardee ant
was stayed for several years through September, 200diting resolution of an adversary action brdwagminst Mr. Pardee in the bankrug
court, which is hearing the bankruptcy of Stanwich.

Pursuant to an agreement with the representaticesditors in the Stanwich bankruptcy, that adwgrsation has been dismissed. Under
agreement, we paid the bankruptcy estate $800,680abandoned our claims against the estate, andsthée has abandoned its advel
action against Mr. Pardee. With the dismissal efddversary action, all known claims asserted agaiin. Pardee have been resolved wit
his incurring any liability. Accordingly, we believthat this resolution of the adversary action wélbult in limitation of our exposure
Mr. Pardee to no more than some portion of hisriattys fees incurred. The stay in the action agaiash Rhode Island has been lifted,
both we and Mr. Pardee have filed motions for sumniadgment. Those motions were heard on October2R%2, and were taken un
submission. It is not possible to predict whendbert will rule, nor what its rulings on the mot&may be. There is no trial date set.

The reader should consider that an adverse judgagaihst us in the Rhode Island case for indenatifio, if in an amount materially
excess of any liability already recorded in resjleeteof, could have a material adverse effectwrfinancial condition.

Other Litigation. In April 2010, we were named as defendant infafve class action brought in federal distriatiton Chicago, lllinois. |
June 2012 the court gave final approval to a saetld agreed to between us and the plaintiffs, gumsto which (i) a class was certified
settlement purposes only, and (ii) we agreed togéixed amount of plaintiff attorney fees and afsake payments against claims mad
members of the class, the amount of which woulceddmn class membengsponses to our notice of the settlement. As pfedeber 30, 201
all amounts payable pursuant to the settlement baea paid, and the matter is fully and finallytlset The amount paid had been recordec
liability as of June 30, 2012.

We are routinely involved in various legal procemi resulting from our consumer finance activiteesl practices, both continuing
discontinued. We believe that there are substanégal defenses to such claims, and intend to defeam vigorously. There can be
assurance, however, as to their outcomes. We leaoeded a liability as of December 31, 2012 thabelgeve represents a sufficient allowa
for legal contingencies. The amount of losses dhnatat least reasonably possible above what headglbeen accrued for cannot be estim
Any adverse judgment against us, if in an amourtern@ly in excess of the recorded liability, colddve a material adverse effect on
financial position or results of operations.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

Charles E. Bradley, Jr, 53, has been our President and a director sincéormation in March 1991, and was elected Chairof the Boar
of Directors in July 2001. In January 1992, Mr. @ey was appointed Chief Executive Officer. Fromrihp989 to November 1990, he ser
as Chief Operating Officer of Barnard and Companprivate investment firm. From September 1987 aydil 1989, Mr. Bradley, Jr. was
associate of The Harding Group, a private investrbanking firm. Mr. Bradley does not currently sein the board of directors of any o
publicly-traded companies.

Mark A. Creatura53, has been Senior Vice Presider@eneral Counsel since October 1996. From Octob@8 19rough October 1996,
was Vice President and General Counsel at Uretfi@cbnologies, Inc., a polyurethane chemicals foataul Mr. Creatura was previou
engaged in the private practice of law with the Logeles law firm of Troy & Gould Professional Corption, from October 1985 throu
October 1993.

Jeffrey P. Fritz53, has been Senior Vice President - Chief Financiéic&f since April 2006. He was Senior Vice PresideAccounting
from August 2004 through March 2006. He served esrsultant to us from May 2004 to August 2004 vienesly, he was the Chief Financ
Officer of SeaWest Financial Corp. from Februar@2@ May 2004, and the Chief Financial OfficerAdfCO Auto Finance from April 20(
to February 2003. He practiced public accountingplenn M. Gelman & Associates from March 200Afwil 2002 and was Chief Financ
Officer of Credit Services Group, Inc. from May P98 November 2000. He previously served as ouefdinhancial Officer from ot
inception through May 1999.

Robert E. Riedl49, has been Senior Vice President - Chief Investr@éficer since April 2006. Mr. Riedl was Senioice President €hief
Financial Officer from August 2003 until assumings fturrent position. Mr. Riedl joined the Company &enior Vice President Risk
Management in January 2003. Previously, Mr. Riealt & Principal at Northwest Capital Appreciatioh@QA"), a middle market private equ
firm, from 2000 to 2002. For a year prior to joigifNNorthwest Capital, Mr. Riedl served as SenioreViRresident for one of NCA's portfc
companies, SLP Capital. Mr. Riedl was an investnbamtker for ContiFinancial Services, Jefferies &@any and PaineWebber from 198
1999.

Christopher Terry,45, has been Senior Vice President - Servicingesay 2005, and prior to that was Senior Vice Riexs - Asse
Recovery since January 2003. He joined us in Jgrl@95 as a loan officer, held a series of suceessmore responsible positions, and
promoted to Vice PresidentAsset Recovery in June 1999. Mr. Terry was preoasbranch manager with Norwest Financial from Q%€
October 1994.

Teri L. Robinson50, has been the Senior Vice President of Originatginse April 2007. Prior to that, she held the poriof Vice Presidel
of Originations since August 1998. She joined ttmm@any in June 1991 as an Operations Specialistidsly, Ms. Robinson held
administrative position at Greco & Associates.

Michael L. Lavin40, has been Senior Vice President — Legal sincg 2089. Prior to that, he was our Vice Presidehtgal since joinin
the Company in November 2001. Mr. Lavin was presipengaged as a law clerk and an associate watis#m Diego law firm (now defun
of Edwards, Sooy & Byron from 1996 through 2000 &neh as an associate with the Orange County firfirachtman & Trachtman fro
2000 through 2001. Mr. Lavin also clerked for tlem ®iego District Attorney’s office and Orange CtuRublic Defender’s office.

Curtis K. Powell 55, has been Senior Vice President — Project Dpusdmt since May 2010. Previously he was our Séviioe President
Marketing from March 2007 to May 2010. Prior totth@e was our Senior Vice President of Originatifrosn June 2001 to March 2007. P
to that, he was our Senior Vice PresideMarketing, from April 1995 to June 2001. He joingslin January 1993 as an independent mark
representative until being appointed Regional \Rcesident of Marketing for Southern California inovémber 1994. From June 1985 thra
January 1993, Mr. Powell was in the retail autorfeobales and leasing business.
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Item 5.

PART Il

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, anddsuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

The Company’'s Common Stock is traded on the Na&lahal Market, under the symbol " CPSSTHe following table sets forth the hi
and low sale prices as reported by Nasdaq for oanr@on Stock for the periods shown.

January - March 31, 201:

April 1 - June 30, 201

July 1- September 30, 201
October 1- December 31, 201
January - March 31, 201:

April 1 - June 30, 201

July 1- September 30, 201
October 1- December 31, 201

High Low
$1.48 $1.00
1.28 0.94
1.36 0.86
1.04 0.86
1.69 0.90
2.25 1.17
3.36 1.85
6.19 2.92

As of January 21, 2013, there were 52 holders obrek of the Compang’ Common Stock. To date, we have not declared il g
dividends on our Common Stock. The payment of &itdividends, if any, on our Common Stock is wittie discretion of the Board
Directors and will depend upon our income, capiggluirements and financial condition, and otheevaht factors. The instruments goveri
our outstanding debt place certain restrictionshenpayment of dividends. We do not intend to dectémy dividends on our Common Stoc
the foreseeable future, but instead intend tometai cash flow for use in our operations.

The table below presents information regardingtantding options to purchase our Common Stock &eckmber 31, 2012:

Number of
securities to be
issued upon
exercise of
outstanding
options, warrants

Weighted average
exercise price of
outstanding
options, warrants

Number of
securities remaining

available for future
issuance under
equity

Plan category and rights and rights compensation plan:
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs 14,207,03  $ 1.2¢ 1,924,38
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechutgers - - -
Total 14,207,03  $ 1.2¢ 1,924,38
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities in the FourtiQuarter

Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Total Shares Purchased as  Value of Shares that
Number of Average Part of Publicly May Yet be Purchasec
Shares Price Paid Announced Plans or Under the Plans or
Period (1) Purchased per Share Programs (2) Programs
October 201 - $ - - $ 1,106,04
November 201! - - - 1,106,04.
December 2012 - - — 1,106,04.

Total - 3 - -

(1) Each monthly period is the calendar mor

(2) Through December 31, 2012, our board of directad huthorized the purchase of up to $34.5 millibowr outstanding securities, wh
program was first announced in our annual report fiee year 2002, filed on March 26, 2003. All pussks described in the table ab
were under the plan announced in March 2003, wiiak no fixed expiration date. As of December 31220ve have purchased $
million in principal amount of debt securities a$#8.4 million of our common stock representing 6,820 shares

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents our selected constdididinancial data and operating data as of andh®rdates indicated. The data unde
captions " Statement of Operations Data " and ‘aBe¢ Sheet DataHave been derived from our audited and unauditedalwated financi
statements. The remainder is derived from otheordscof ours. You should read the selected coreglit financial data together with
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdition and Results of Operationsifid our audited and unaudited financial staten
and notes thereto that are included in this repad,in our quarterly and periodic filings.
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As of and
For the Year Ended December 31

(in thousands, except per share date 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Statement of Operations Datz
Revenues
Interest incom $ 175,31:  $ 127,85t $ 137,09¢ $ 208,19t $ 351,55:
Servicing fee: 2,30t 4,34¢ 7,657 4,64( 2,06¢
Other income 9,58¢ 10,92 10,43¢ 11,05¢ 14,79¢
Total revenues 187,20t 143,13; 155,18! 223,89! 368,41
Expenses
Employee cost 35,57: 32,27( 33,81« 37,30¢ 48,87
General and administratiy 29,53 26,75¢ 26,06¢ 32,22( 44,36¢
Interest expens 79,42: 83,05¢ 81,57 112,63¢ 156,25:
Provision for credit losse 33,49t 15,50¢ 29,92: 92,01: 148,40t
Loss on sale of receivables — — - - 13,96:
Total expenses 178,02: 157,59: 171,38( 274,171 411,86\
Income (loss) before income tax expense (ber 9,18 (14,46() (16,199 (50,287 (43,459
Income tax expense (benefit) (60,227 — 16,98: 7,80( (17,369
Net income (loss $ 69,40¢ $ (14,460 $ (33,17) $ (58,08) $  (26,09)
Earnings (loss) per sh«basic $ 35¢ $ (0.7¢) $ 190 % 3.1 % (1.3¢6)
Earnings (loss) per she«diluted $ 27z % (0.7¢) $ 190 $ 3.1 % (1.3¢6)
Pre-tax income (loss) per shi-basic (1) $ 047 $ (0.7¢) $ 0.99) % 270 % (2.26)
Pre-tax income (loss) per shi-diluted (2) $ 03¢ $ 0.7¢) % 097 % 270 % (2.2
Weighted average shares outstan-basic 19,47: 19,01 17,47 18,64: 19,23(
Weighted average shares outstan-diluted 25,47¢ 19,01 17,47 18,64: 19,23(
Balance Sheet Data
Total asset $ 1,037,620 $ 890,05( $ 742,39C $ 1,068,260 $ 1,638,80
Cash and cash equivalel 12,96¢ 10,09 16,25: 12,43 22,08
Restricted cash and equivale 104,44! 159,22¢ 123,95¢ 128,51 153,47¢
Finance receivables, n 744,74! 506,27 552,45! 840,09: 1,339,30
Finance receivables measured at fair vi 59,66¢ 160,25: - - -
Residual interest in securitizatio 4,82¢ 4,41¢ 3,841 4,31¢ 3,58
Warehouse lines of crec 21,73: 25,39 45,56+ 4,93 9,91¢
Residual interest financir 13,77 21,88 39,44( 56,93( 67,30(
Debt secured by receivables measured at fair 57,10° 166,82! - - -
Securitization trust del 792,49 583,06! 567,72: 904,83: 1,404,21
Long-term debi 73,41¢ 79,09 65,21( 48,08: 45,82¢
Shareholders' equit 61,31: (14,20°) 2,421 35,577 89,84¢

(1) Income (loss) before income tax benefit dividedvbighted average shares outstanc-basic. Included for illustrative purposes bece
some of the periods presented include significacine tax benefits while other periods have neitimyme tax benefit nor expen

(2) Income (loss) before income tax benefit divideavbighted average shares outstancdiluted. Included for illustrative purposes bece
some of the periods presented include significaeine tax benefits while other periods have neitmyme tax benefit nor expen
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(in thousands, except per share date

Contract Purchases/Securitizations

Automobile contract purchas

Automobile contracts securitize structured as sal¢
Automobile contracts securitized - structured asised

financings

Managed Portfolio Data

Contracts held by consolidated subsidia

Fireside portfolic

Contracts held by nconsolidated subsidiarit

Third party portfolios (1)
Total managed portfoli

Average managed portfol

Weighted average fixed effective interest rateaftotanaged

portfolio) (2)

Core operating expense (% of average managed |hoyif8)
Allowance for finance credit loss
Allowance for finance credit losses (% of total tants held by

consolidated subsidiarie
Total delinquencies (2) (

Total delinquencies and repossessions (2

Net charg-offs (2) (5)

As of and
For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
551,74: $ 284,23t $ 113,020 $ 8,59¢ $ 296,81
- - 103,77. - 198,66.
554,10: 335,59 - - 310,36(
807,88! $ 546,01t $ 597,14. $ 992,68: $ 1,477,881
60,80" 172,16 - - -
17,29¢ 42,97 83,96« 134,89 186,23:
11,58¢ 33,49¢ 75,09' 137,14¢ 79
897,57t $ 794,64¢ $ 756,20: $ 1,194,72. $ 1,664,122
822,57 711,72¢ 928,97 1,342,411 1,934,00:
19.6% 18.5% 16.2% 15.8% 18.0%
7.9% 8.3% 6.4% 5.2% 4.8%
19,59 $ 10,35. $ 13,16¢ $ 38,27¢ $ 78,03¢
2.4% 1.9% 2.2% 4.1% 5.3%
4.0% 4.4% 5.7% 4.9% 5.6%
5.5% 6.2% 9.2% 8.8% 8.6%
3.6% 4.8% 9.0% 11.0% 7.7%

(1) Receivables related to the third party portfolios,which we earn only a servicing fi

(2) Excludes receivables related to the third partytfmios.

(3) Total expenses excluding provision for credit lesésterest expense, loss on sale of receivabldsrapairment loss on residual asse
(4) For further information regarding delinquencies athet managed portfolio, see the table captio" Delinquency Experiencég,in Item 1

Part | of this report and the notes to that tat

(5) Net charg-offs include the remaining principal balance, aftbe application of the net proceeds from the ligtion of the vehic
(excluding accrued and unpaid interest) and amountkected subsequent to the date of the chaif§eincluding some recoveries wh
have been classified as other income in the accagipg financial statements. For further informaticegarding chargesffs, see the tak
captionec" Net Charg-Off Experience" in Item |, Part | of this report and the notes kat table.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion And Analysis Of Rancial Condition And Results Of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should bel i@aconjunction with our consolidated financiahtsiments and notes thereto and ¢
information included or incorporated by refereneedin.

Overview

We are a specialty finance company. Our busine$s [girchase and service retail automobile corgradginated primarily by franchis
automobile dealers and, to a lesser extent, bytsieldependent dealers in the United States irséthe of new and used automobiles, light tr
and passenger vans. Through our automobile conrachases, we provide indirect financing to thetamers of dealers who have limi
credit histories, low incomes or past credit praidewho we refer to as syisime customers. We serve as an alternative sadriieancing fo
dealers, facilitating sales to customers who otfmrwnight not be able to obtain financing from itiadal sources, such as commercial ba
credit unions and the captive finance companidtaaéd with major automobile manufacturers. In gidd to purchasing installment purch
contracts directly from dealers, we have also @Quared installment purchase contracts in four rergnd acquisition transactions,
purchased immaterial amounts of vehicle purchaseesmntans from noffiliated lenders, and (iii) directly originated anmaterial amount
vehicle purchase money loans by lending money tijrée consumers. In this report, we refer to dlsoch contracts and loans as "autom¢
contracts."”

We were incorporated and began our operations irciM@a991. From inception through December 31, 20d have purchased a tota
approximately $9.6 billion of automobile contrafiem dealers. In addition, we acquired a total gpraximately $822.3 million of automob
contracts in mergers and acquisitions in 2002, 22084 and, most recently in September 2011. TixeSwer 2011 acquisition consiste:
approximately $217.8 million of finance receivablbat we purchased from Fireside Bank of Pleasai@aiifornia. In 2004 and 2009, we w
appointed as a third-party servicer for certaintfpios of automobile receivables originated andnea by noraffiliated entities. From 20(
through 2010, our managed portfolio decreased gaahdue to our strategy of limiting contract pashs to conserve our liquidity during
financial crisis and resulting recession, as disedgurther below. However, since October 2009haxe gradually increased contract purc
which, in turn, has resulted in recent increasesunmanaged portfolio. Recent contract purchadenves and managed portfolio levels
shown in the table below:

$ in thousand:
Contracts Purchased  Managed Portfolio at

Year in Period Period End
2008 $ 296,810 $ 1,664,12;
2009 8,59¢ 1,194,72.
2010 113,02: 756,20:
2011 284,23t 794,64¢
2012 551,74: 897,57"

We are headquartered in Irvine, California, whemsthoperational and administrative functions amgtredized. Most credit and underwriti
functions are performed in our California headgerartvith some credit functions performed in ourrigla office. We service our automot
contracts from our California headquarters and fthrae servicing branches in Virginia, Florida dlfidois.

We purchase contracts in our own name (“CPS”) ammti] July 2008, also in the name of our whallyned subsidiary, TFC. Progra
marketed under the CPS name are intended to semigearange of sulprime customers, primarily through franchised new dealers. Oi
TFC program served vehicle purchasers enlistethenlt.S. Armed Forces, primarily through independesgd car dealers. In July 2008,
ended our TFC program.

We purchase automobile contracts with the intentbrfinancing them on a longerm basis through securitizations. Securitizatiare
transactions in which we sell a specified pool atcacts to one of our special purpose subsidianbgch in turn issues asse&cked securitie
to fund its purchase of the pool of contracts. Delieg on the structure of the securitization, trensaction may be treated, for finan
accounting purposes, as a sale of the contraets arsecured financing.
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Securitization and Warehouse Credit Facilities

Throughout the periods for which information is g@rted in this report, we have purchased automaioitgracts with the intention
financing them on a lonterm basis through securitizations, and on animteasis through warehouse credit facilities. Aitls financings hay
involved identification of specific automobile comtts, sale of those automobile contracts (andcédsad rights) to one of our specfaipos:
subsidiaries, and issuance of adsmtked securities to fund the transactions. Dependn the structure, these transactions may beuatex
for under generally accepted accounting principesales of the automobile contracts or as sedimatings.

When structured to be treated as a secured fingrfoinaccounting purposes, the subsidiary is cadatdd with us. Accordingly, the st
automobile contracts and the related debt appeassets and liabilities, respectively, on our cidated balance sheet. We then periodic
(i) recognize interest and fee income on the caotgrdii) recognize interest expense on the seearissued in the transaction, and (iii) recot
expense a provision for credit losses on the cotstrdrrom July 2003 through April 2008, all of aecuritizations were structured in 1
manner. In September 2008, we securitized automaihtracts in a transaction that was in substansale, that was treated as a sal
accounting purposes, and in which we retained iduakinterest in the automobile contracts. Theaiging receivables from that Septerr
2008 securitization were ecuritized in September 2010 in a structure thaintained sale treatment for accounting purpose20L1, wi
completed three securitizations of approximatel338 million in newly originated contracts. Durigg12 we completed four securitization:
approximately $603.5 million in contracts, inclugi$58.2 million in contracts that were repurchaedh 2006 and 2007 securitizations
2012. The 2011 and 2012 securitizations were mitired as secured financings and none utilizeahfiial guarantees.

When structured to be treated as a sale for ackmuptirposes, the assets and liabilities of theigppurpose subsidiary are not consolid:
with us. Accordingly, the transaction removes thél sasutomobile contracts from our consolidated he¢asheet, the related debt does
appear as our debt, and our consolidated balarest shows, as an asset, a retained residual iniarése sold automobile contracts. -
residual interest represents the discounted vafuehat we expect will be the excess of future adlens on the automobile contracts ¢
principal and interest due on the asset-backeditiesu That residual interest appears on our daeed balance sheet asesidual interest
securitizations, ‘and the determination of its value is dependentumestimates of the future performance of the sokdmobile contracts.
our managed portfolio outstanding at December 8122 only our September 2010 securitization wasctired to be treated as a sale
accounting purposes.

Credit Risk Retained

Whether a sale of automobile contracts in conneatitth a securitization or warehouse credit fagilg treated as a secured financing or
sale for financial accounting purposes, the relaftialpurpose subsidiary may be unable to release exesssto us if the credit performal
of the related automobile contracts falls shorpi-determined standards. Such releases representeaahpbrtion of the cash that we us:
fund our operations. An unexpected deterioratiotheéperformance of such automobile contracts cthddefore have a material adverse e
on both our liquidity and our results of operatioregardless of whether such automobile contraetsraated for financial accounting purpc
as having been sold or as having been financede$tonation of the magnitude of such risk, it mayappropriate to look to the size of dur
managed portfolio, which represents both financed and sold automalwl@racts as to which such credit risk is retain@dr manage
portfolio as of December 31, 2012 was approximas@97.6 million, which includes a third party semg portfolio of $11.6 million on whic
we earn only servicing fees and have no credit risk

Critical Accounting Policies

We believe that our accounting policies relatedafoAllowance for Finance Credit Losses, (b) Anmation of Deferred Originations Co
and Acquisition Fees, (c) Term Securitizations,Riohance Receivables and Related Debt MeasurediaVBRlue and (e€) Income Taxes are
most critical to understanding and evaluating eorted financial results. Such policies are desdrbelow.

Allowance for Finance Credit Loss

In order to estimate an appropriate allowance déssés incurred on finance receivables, we usesadib®wvance methodology commo
referred to as " static pooling, Which stratifies our finance receivable portfolista separately identified pools based on the peat
origination. Using analytical and formula drivecheiques, we estimate an allowance for financeitleskes, which we believe is adequate
probable incurred credit losses that can be re&#bpeatimated in our portfolio of automobile comtisa For each monthly pool of contracts
we purchase, we begin establishing the allowantedmmonth of acquisition and increase it overshiesequent 11 months, through a provi
for credit losses charged to our consolidated istaie of operations. Net losses incurred on finaeceivables are charged to the allowance
evaluate the adequacy of the allowance by examicumgent delinquencies, the characteristics ofpiwgfolio, prospective liquidation values
the underlying collateral and general economicraadket conditions. As circumstances change, owl lef/provisioning and/or allowance
change as well.
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Broad economic factors such as recession and &ignifchanges in unemployment levels influencectiedit performance of our portfolio,
does the weighted average age of the receivabksyagiven time. Our internal credit performanceadzonsistently show that new receiva
have lower levels of delinquency and losses earlyheir lives, with delinquencies increasing thrbogt their lives and losses gradu
increasing to a peak between 36 and 42 months, waftech they gradually decrease. The historicalghved average seasoning of our 1
owned portfolio excluding Fireside, is summarizedhe table below:

Weighted Average Age in Months o

December 31 Owned Portfolio
2009 33
2010 37
2011 27
2012 18

The credit performance of our portfolio is alsorsfigantly influenced by our underwriting guidelmend credit criteria we use wt
evaluating contracts for purchase from dealers. réépilarly evaluate our portfolio credit performareed modify our purchase criteria
maximize the credit performance of our portfolidjil® maintaining competitive programs and levelsefvice for our dealers. As a resul
such modifications, for receivables originated begig with the third quarter of 2008, we have fouhd early credit performance of th
static portfolios to be significantly better thashearlier portfolios at similar vintage time frasn

Amortization of Deferred Originations Costs and Aisition Fees

Upon purchase of a contract from a dealer, we gdlgegither charge or advance the dealer an admuidiee. In addition, we incur cert:
direct costs associated with originations of ountacts. All such acquisition fees and direct casts applied to the carrying value of fina
receivables and are accreted into earnings asjastaent to the yield over the estimated life & ttontract using the interest method.

Term Securitizations
Our term securitization structure has generallynkeesfollows:

We sell automobile contracts we acquire to a wholljned special purpose subsidiary, which has betableshed for the limited purpose
buying and reselling our automobile contracts. $pecialpurpose subsidiary then transfers the same autdenobintracts to another ent
typically a statutory trust. The trust issues iestibearing assdiacked securities, in a principal amount equalrtdess than the aggreg
principal balance of the automobile contracts. Wecally sell these automobile contracts to thettat face value and without recourse, ex
that representations and warranties similar toehmevided by the dealer to us are provided byouké trust. One or more investors purcl
the asset-backed securities issued by the trispriiceeds from the sale of the adsatked securities are then used to purchase thenabile
contracts from us. We may retain or sell subordidaassebacked securities issued by the trust or by aeélantity. Through 2008, \
generally purchased external credit enhancemenimfmst of our term securitizations in the form ofimancial guaranty insurance poli
guaranteeing timely payment of interest and ulterdyment of principal on the senior adsatked securities, from an insurance comg
However, in our eight most recent securitizatioinse 2010, we have not purchased financial guarestyrance policies and do not expet
do so in the near future.

We structure our securitizations to include intéaradit enhancement for the benefit the inves(drim the form of an initial cash deposit
an account ( " spread account ") held by the triitin the form of overcollateralization of theenior assebacked securities, where
principal balance of the senior asbatked securities issued is less than the printigknce of the automobile contracts, (iii) in tbem of
subordinated assétcked securities, or (iv) some combination of suweternal credit enhancements. The agreements giogerthe
securitization transactions require that the ihigvel of internal credit enhancement be suppleegtiy a portion of collections from f
automobile contracts until the level of internagdit enhancement reaches specified levels, whielhen maintained. The specified levels
generally computed as a percentage of the prinapeiunt remaining unpaid under the related autolmalmntracts. The specified levels
which the internal credit enhancement is to be taaied will vary depending on the performance ef plortfolios of automobile contracts h
by the trusts and on other conditions, and may ladsearied by agreement among us, our special parpabsidiary, the insurance company
the trustee. Such levels have increased and decrdasn time to time based on performance of th#oua portfolios, and have also var
from one transaction to another. The agreementerging the securitizations generally grant us thgoo to repurchase the sold automc
contracts from the trust when the aggregate owudsigrbalance of the automobile contracts has areattio a specified percentage of the ir
aggregate balance.
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Our September 2008 securitization and the subségesecuritization of the remaining receivables frorahstransaction in September 2
were each in substance sales of the underlyingvaies, and have been treated as sales for fiaaactounting purposes. They differ fr
those treated as secured financings in that tis¢ touvhich our speciglurpose subsidiaries sold the automobile contraetsthe definition of
"qualified special-purpose entity" under Statemehfinancial Accounting Standards No. 140 (ASC 880652). As a result, assets ¢
liabilities of those trusts are not consolidatetth iour consolidated balance sheet.

Historically, our warehouse credit facility strusta were similar to the above, except that (i) specialpurpose subsidiaries that purche
the automobile contracts pledged the automobildéracts to secure promissory notes that they isqiigto increase in the required amoun
internal credit enhancement was contemplated, @)dwe did not purchase financial guaranty inswanSince October 2009, we h
established new funding facilities and graduallgréased our contract purchases. More recentlynereased our shotérm contract financir
resources by $200 million by entering into agreeméor a $100 million credit facility in Decembe®X0 and for another $100 million cre
facility in February 2011ln May 2012 we entered into another $100 millioadit facility with a new lender and in December extended th
December 2010 credit facility to February 2013. @urent maximum revolving warehouse financing cégas $200 million.

Upon each transfer of automobile contracts in ms@ation structured as a secured financing fonfiied accounting purposes, whether a1
securitization or a warehouse financing, we re@inour consolidated balance sheet the related altibencontracts as assets and recort
asset-backed notes or loans issued in the traneadiindebtedness.

Under the September 2008 and September 2010 seationms, and other term securitizations complgteidr to July 2003 that we
structured as sales for financial accounting pugppa/e removed from our consolidated balance gsheedutomobile contracts sold and ac
to our consolidated balance sheet (i) the cashvweteif any, and (ii) the estimated fair valuetb& ownership interest that we retained ir
automobile contracts sold in the transaction. Tetdined or residual interest consisted of (a)cheh held in the spread account, if any
overcollateralization, if any, (c) asdedcked securities retained, if any, and (d) red#ésafrom the trust, which include the net inte
receivables. Net interest receivables represerggtimated discounted cash flows to be receivad fie trust in the future, net of principal
interest payable with respect to the asmatked notes, the premium paid to the insurancepaow if any, and certain other expenses.
excess of the cash received and the assets weagtaver the carrying value of the automobile @it sold, less transaction costs, equale
net gain on sale of automobile contracts we reabrde

We receive periodic base servicing fees for theisieg and collection of the automobile contratisider our securitization structures trei
as secured financings for financial accounting psegs, such servicing fees are included in inténestime from the automobile contracts
addition, we are entitled to the cash flows from ttusts that represent collections on the autol@abintracts in excess of the amounts req
to pay principal and interest on the adsatked securities, base servicing fees, and cesthar fees and expenses (such as trustee andlial
fees). Required principal payments on the akaeked notes are generally defined as the paynseffisient to keep the principal balance
such notes equal to the aggregate principal balahtke related automobile contracts (excludingsthautomobile contracts that have t
charged off), or a prdetermined percentage of such balance. Where #raeptage is less than 100%, the related sectidtizagreemen
require accelerated payment of principal until pinimcipal balance of the asdedicked securities is reduced to the specified p&age. Suc
accelerated principal payment is said to createcoMateralization of the asset-backed notes.

If the amount of cash required for payment of feegenses, interest and principal on the senicetdseked notes exceeds the am
collected during the collection period, the shdlriawithdrawn from the spread account, if anythé cash collected during the period exc
the amount necessary for the above allocationsrplpgired principal payments on the subordinategtésmcked notes, and there is no shoi
in the related spread account or the required olateralization level, the excess is released o Ifi the spread account ¢
overcollateralization is not at the required lewben the excess cash collected is retained irtrtle until the specified level is achiev
Although spread account balances are held by tiséston behalf of our speciplsrpose subsidiaries as the owner of the residteddsts (in tk
case of securitization transactions structuredades dor financial accounting purposes) or thet#r(ig the case of securitization transact
structured as secured financings for financial antiag purposes), we are restricted in use of #shdn the spread accounts. Cash held i
various spread accounts is invested in high qudlguid investment securities, as specified in $keeuritization agreements. The interest
payable on the automobile contracts is signifigagtieater than the interest rate on the asaeked notes. As a result, the residual inte
described above historically have been a signifiaaset of ours.
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In all of our term securitizations and warehousaitrfacilities, whether treated as secured finaggior as sales, we have sold the autom
contracts (through a subsidiary) to the securitimaentity. The difference between the two strugsuis that in securitizations that are treate
secured financings we report the assets and liekilof the securitization trust on our consolidatelance sheet. Under both structt
recourse to us by holders of the adsatked securities and by the trust, for failureh&f automobile contract obligors to make payments
timely basis, is limited to the automobile contsastcluded in the securitizations or warehouse itfedilities, the spread accounts and
retained interests in the respective trusts.

Since the third quarter of 2003, we have conduB&term securitizations. Of these 32, 26 were piigi¢generally quarterly) securitizatic
of automobile contracts that we purchased fromraotnle dealers under our regular programs. In aditn March 2004 and November 20
we completed securitizations of our retained irgexén other securitizations that we and our atfés previously sponsored. The debt fron
March 2004 transaction was repaid in August 2008, the debt from the November 2005 transaction iepaid in May 2007. Also, in Ju
2004, we completed a securitization of automobdatacts purchased under our TFC program and aadjir a bulk purchase. Further
December 2005 and May 2007 we completed secuigirathat included automobile contracts purchasetbuthe TFC programs, automol
contracts purchased under the CPS programs anchabile contracts we repurchased upon terminatigoriof securitizations. Since July 2(
all such securitizations have been structured asrsd financings, except that our September 2008S&ptember 2010 securitizations wel
substance sales of the underlying receivablesyend treated as sales for financial accounting geep.

Our December 2012 securitization included afprading feature in which a portion of the receivabto be pledged to the securitization
were not scheduled to be delivered to the trusl after the initial closing. As a result, our nésted cash balance at December 31, :
included $45.0 million from the proceeds of theesall the securitization notes that were held bytthstee pending delivery of the remair
receivables. In January 2013, the requisite additioeceivables were delivered to the trust andreeeived the related restricted cas
significant portion of which was used to repay amewwed under our warehouse credit facilities.

Finance Receivables and Related Debt Measured iat\fedue

In September 2011 we purchased finance receivabbes Fireside Bank. These receivables are secusedidbt that was structur
specifically for the acquisition of this portfoli®ince the Fireside receivables were originatedahgther entity with its own underwriti
guidelines and procedures, we have elected to atdouthe Fireside receivables and the related debured by those receivables at 1
estimated fair values so that changes in fair valiliebe reflected in our results of operationstlasy occurThere are limited observable inp
available to us for measurement of such receivalole$or the related debt. We use our own assumgtabout the factors that we beli
market participants would use in pricing similace®ables and debt, and are based on the besinafimn available in the circumstances.
valuation method used to estimate fair value maydpce a fair value measurement that may not beatide of ultimate realizable vall
Furthermore, while we believe our valuation methads appropriate and consistent with those usedthgr market participants, the use
different methods or assumptions to estimate thevédue of certain financial instruments coulduiesn different estimates of fair value. Thi
estimated values may differ significantly from tredues that would have been used had a readilyaiaimarket for such receivables or (
existed, or had such receivables or debt beerdiéged, and those differences could be materiddedihancial statements.

Income Taxe

We account for income taxes under the asset ahifitifamethod, which requires the recognition ofeteed tax assets and liabilities for
expected future tax consequences of events tha baen included in the financial statements. Undisr method, deferred tax assets
liabilities are determined based on the differerzetsveen the financial statements and tax basisséts and liabilities using enacted tax
in effect for the year in which the differences axpected to reverse. The effect of a change imates on deferred tax assets and liabiliti
recognized in income in the period that includesd¢hactment date.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized subject to reamagts judgment that realization is more likely than.natvaluation allowance
recognized for a deferred tax asset if, based ewiight of the available evidence, it is more lijfkidnan not that some portion of the defe
tax asset will not be realized. In making such grdgnts, significant weight is given to evidence tan be objectively verified. As a resul
the unprecedented adverse changes in the markstdaritizations, the recession and the resultigly levels of unemployment that occurre
2008 and 2009, we incurred substantial operatisgds from 2009 through 2011 which led us to esfaldi valuation allowance again:
substantial portion of our deferred tax assets. él@n, since the fourth quarter of 2011, we havenep five consecutive quarters of increa
profitability, observed improvement in credit meg; and produced reliable internal financial progets. Furthermore, we have demonstr
an ability to increase our volumes of contract pases, grow our managed portfolio and obtain désttese short- and longerm financing fo
our finance receivables. The tables below summ&egeareas of recent improvements in our business:

Trend in Quarterly Pre-Tax Earnings
dollars in thousanc
For the quarter ende

December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31,
2012 2012 2012 2012 2011
Pre tax incom $ 4,607 $ 2,72¢ $ 1,34C $ 51z $ 23t

Trend in Annualized Net Charge Offs as % of AveragéOwned Portfolio
For the year ende
2012 2011 2010 2009

Annualized net charge offs as % of average ownetiqtio 3.6% 4.8% 9.0% 11.0%

Trend in Annual Contract Purchases and Managed Pofblio
dollars in thousand

2012 2011 2010 2009
Contract purchases during the y $ 551,74 $ 284,23t $ 113,02 $ 8,59¢
Outstanding managed portfolio at the end of the $ 897,57! $ 794,64¢ $ 756,200 $ 1,194,72.

Trend in Weighted Average Securitization Blended Cst of Funds

Date of Securitization Dec-12 Sef-12 Jur-12 Mar-12 Dec-11
Name of Securitizatio 201Zz-D 201:-C 201:-B 201Z-A 2011-C
Weighted average effective coup 2.06% 2.45% 3.15% 3.47% 4.93%

As a result of these and other factors, we detarthat December 31, 2012 that, based on the weighe @vailable objective evidence, it \
more likely than not that we would generate sudfitifuture taxable income to utilize our net deddrtax assets. Accordingly, we reversec
related valuation allowance of $62.8 million in floeirth quarter of 2012.

Although realization is not assured, we believe tha realization of the recognized net deferredasset of $75.6 million as of December
2012 is more likely than not based on forecastéaréunet earnings. Our net deferred tax asset ®6$Tillion consists of approximately $6
million of net U.S. federal deferred tax assets &h8.2 million of net state deferred tax asset® major components of the deferred tax :
are $62.5 million in net operating loss carryfordeand built in losses and $13.1 million in netut#bns which have not yet been taken
tax return. We estimate that we would need to gaaeapproximately $189 million of taxable incomeridg the applicable carryforws
periods to realize fully our federal and statedeferred tax assets.

As of December 31, 2012, we had net operating ¢dasg/forwards for federal and state income tax psegs of $109.9 million and $18
million, respectively. The federal net operatingdes begin to expire in 2022. The state net opgriisses begin to expire in 2013.

In determining the possible future realization efedred tax assets, we have considered future l@xatome from the following sources:
reversal of taxable temporary differences; andfdb@casted future net earnings from operationse8agon those considerations, we t
concluded that it is more likely than not that HHeS. and state net operating loss carryforwardogsriprovide enough time to utilize
deferred tax assets pertaining to the existingopetating loss carryforwards and any net operdtiag that would be created by the revers
the future net deductions which have not yet be&ert on a tax return. Our estimates of taxablenrecare forwardeoking statements, a
there can be no assurance that our estimates bftaxable income will be correct. Factors discusseder "Risk Factors,” and in partict
under the subheading "Risk Factors -- Forward-LoglStatements" may affect whether such projectiooge to be correct.

We recognize interest and penalties related tocogrized tax benefits within the income tax expdimsein the accompanying consolids
statements of operations. Accrued interest andlfiemare included within the related tax liabillige in the consolidated balance sheets.
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Uncertainty of Capital Markets and General EconomicConditions

We depend upon the availability of warehouse crédtiilities and access to long-term financing tlgiouthe issuance of asdedeker
securities collateralized by our automobile cortgaSince 1994, we have completed 57 term secafitizs of approximately $7.7 billion
contracts. We conducted four term securitization®d06, four in 2007, two 2008, one in 2010, thiree011 and four in 2012. From July 2(
through April 2008 all of our securitizations westuctured as secured financings. The second ofvemrsecuritization transactions in 2(
(completed in September 2008) and our securitinagtioSeptember 2010 (a securitization of the remaining receivables frora 8eptemb
2008 transaction) were each in substance a saleeofelated contracts, and have been treated es fal financial accounting purposes
2011, we completed three securitizations of appnakely $335.6 million in newly originated contracBBuring 2012 we completed fc
securitizations of approximately $603.5 million dontracts, including $58.2 million in contracts tthigere repurchased from 2006 and Z
securitizations in 2012. The 2011 and 2012 seeatitins were all structured as secured financingsr@ne utilized financial guarantees.

From the fourth quarter of 2007 through the en@@39, we observed unprecedented adverse changfes imarket for securitized pools
automobile contracts. These changes included redligeidity, and reduced demand for aslatked securities, particularly for securi
carrying a financial guaranty and for securitieskea by sulprime automobile receivables. Moreover, during thexriod many of the firms tt
previously provided financial guarantees, which evan integral part of our securitizations, suspdnafering such guarantees. The adv
changes that took place in the market from thetfoquarter of 2007 through the end of 2009 causetb .conserve liquidity by significan
reducing our purchases of automobile contracts. évew since October 2009, we have established nemirfg facilities and gradua
increased our contract purchases. In September 2@l@ok advantage of improvement in the marketdsset-backed securities by
securitizing the remaining underlying receivablesf our unrated September 2008 securitization. Taissaction was our first rated te
securitization since 1993 that did not utilize maficial guaranty. More recently, we increased bortgerm funding capacity by $200 milli
with the establishment of a new $100 million crddiility in December 2010 and an additional $100iom credit facility in February 201
We entered into a new $100 million credit facilityMay 2012 and in December 2012, extended the mbee 2010 facility to February 20:
Our current maximum revolving warehouse financiagacity is $200 million.

Financial Covenants

Certain of our securitization transactions and warehouse credit facilities contain various finah@ovenants requiring certain minim
financial ratios and results. Such covenants irelm@intaining minimum levels of liquidity and nebsth and not exceeding maximum level
levels. In addition, certain securitization and +s&euritization related debt contain cralegault provisions that would allow certain credstac
declare a default if a default occurred under &ediht facility. As of December 31, 2012 we werecimpliance with all such financ
covenants.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Operating Results for the Year Eridedember 31, 2012 with the Year Ended Decembez(81],

Revenues During the year ended December 31, 2012, revemegee $187.2 million, an increase of $44.1 million 30.8%, from the pri
year revenue of $143.1 million. The primary reafamthe increase in revenues is an increase imestencome. Interest income for the
ended December 31, 2012 increased $47.5 millioB7dt%, to $175.3 million from $127.9 million inghprior year. The primary reason for
increase in interest income is an increase ondasterarned on finance receivables of $47.9 millamch is due primarily to the increase in
balance of finance receivables held by consolidatdxbidiaries. At December 31, 2012 the aggregatganding balance of finance receiva
held by consolidated subsidiaries was $868.7 miltompared to $718.2 million at December 31, 20440 contributing to the increase
interest income was an increase in the weightedageeinterest rate on finance receivables helddnsalidated subsidiaries. The weigt
average interest rate on finance receivables helbhsolidated subsidiaries increased to 19.6%eaeBber 31, 2012, compared to 18.5'
December 31, 2011. The reason for the increadeaiscontracts we purchased in 2012 had a higheghtesl average interest rate than
weighted average interest rate of aggregate fineswagvables held by consolidated subsidiariesesenber 31, 2011.

Offsetting the increase in interest income on fawreceivables held by subsidiaries, was a decierasterest income on our residual inte
in securitizations of $356,000, and a decreasetereést earned on cash deposits (including restricash deposits) of $87,000.

Servicing fees totaling $2.3 million in the yeaded December 31, 2012 decreased $2.0 million, @%4,7from $4.3 million in the prior yei
The decrease in servicing fees is the result ofcthr@inuing amortization of our thirgarty servicing portfolio (owned by a subsidiar
CompuCredit Corporation) and of our owned rmamsolidated portfolio. As of December 31, 2012 a6d1, our managed portfolio owned
consolidated vs. non-consolidated subsidiariesbgnrithird parties was as follows:
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December 31, 201

December 31, 201.

Amount % (1) Amount % (1)
Total Managed Portfolio (% in millions)

Owned by Consolidated Subsidiar

CPS Originated Receivabl $ 807.¢ 920.0% % 546.( 68.7%

Fireside 60.¢ 6.8% 172.2 21.7%
Owned by No-Consolidated Subsidiari 17.2 1.9% 42.¢ 5.4%
Third-Party Servicing Portfolios 11.€ 1.3% 33.t 4.2%
Total $ 897.¢ 100.0% $ 794.¢ 100.0¥

(1) Percentages may not add up to 100% due to riognd

At December 31, 2012, we were generating incomefeas on a managed portfolio with an outstandingcgal balance of $897.6 millic
compared to a managed portfolio with an outstangiicipal balance of $794.6 million as of DecemB#&r 2011. At December 31, 2012
2011, the managed portfolio composition was agWest

December 31, 201; December 31, 201

Amount % (1) Amount % (1)
Originating Entity (% in millions)
CPS $ 825.( 91.9% % 586.¢ 73.9%
Fireside 60.¢ 6.8% 172.% 21.7%
TFC 0.z 0.0% 2.C 0.3%
Third-Party Servicing Portfolios 11.€ 1.3% 33.t 4.2%
Total $ 897.¢ 100.0% $ 794.¢ 100.0¥

(1) Percentages may not add up to 100% due to riognd

Other income decreased $1.3 million, or 11.9%,%® $nillion in the year ended December 31, 201&hf&10.9 million during the prior ye
The year-overear decrease is the result of a variety of fadtorliding $479,000 in negative fair value adjustiseto the portfolio and relat
debt of the Fireside portfolio in 2012, compareds626,000 in positive adjustments in the prior ydaraddition we experienced aggre(
decreases of $452,000 in recoveries on the redeiwétom the 2002 acquisition and sales tax refubdsreases in other income were part
offset by increases $541,000 from direct mail aeldhted products and services that we offer to @malats, and increases of $38,00
remittances from third-party providers of converefiees paid by our customers for web based aredt etbctronic payments.

Expenses Our operating expenses consist primarily of mmions for credit losses, interest expense, emplogests and general ¢
administrative expenses. Provisions for creditdssand interest expense are significantly affebyethe volume of automobile contracts
purchased during a period and by the outstandifanbe of finance receivables held by consolidatdssigliaries. Employee costs and ger
and administrative expenses are incurred as atiplicaand automobile contracts are received, pestksind serviced. Factors that al
margins and net income include changes in the altdenand automobile finance market environmentsl, macroeconomic factors suct
interest rates and the unemployment level.

Employee costs include base salaries, commissimh®@nuses paid to employees, and certain expeels¢sd to the accounting treatmer

stock options, and are one of our most significgerating expenses. These costs (other than thtaang to stock options) generally fluctu
with the level of applications and automobile cants processed and serviced.
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Other operating expenses consist primarily of faedl expenses, telephone and other communicatovicges, credit services, compt
services, marketing and advertising expenses, eprediation and amortization.

Total operating expenses were $178.0 million fa&r ylear ended December 31, 2012, compared to $1Billién for the prior year, &
increase of $20.4 million, or 13.0%. The increasprimarily due to increases in provision for ctddsses and employee costs, which incre
by $18.0 million and $3.3 million, or 116.0% and 2%, respectively.

Employee costs increased by 10.2% to $35.6 mildoning the year ended December 31, 2012, represpi20.0% of total operatil
expenses, from $32.3 million for the prior year witkeey represented 20.5% of total operating experi3ering 2012, we added employee
our Originations and Marketing departments to acoonfate the increase in contract purchases in 26ipared to 2011. These additions t
offset reductions in our Servicing department stiadft have resulted from decreases in the numbacafunts in our managed portfolio dul
2012. The table below summarizes our employeesatagory as well as contract purchases and undasrimanaged portfolio as of, and for
years, ended December 31, 2011 and 2

December 31, 201, December 31, 201.

Amount Amount
(% in millions)
Contracts purchased (dolla $ 551.7 % 284.;
Contracts purchased (uni 36,03( 18,11(
Managed portfolio outstanding (dollai $ 897.¢ $ 794.7
Managed portfolio outstanding (uni 91,54¢ 107,92¢
Number of Originations sta 14¢€ 91
Number of Marketing sta 8¢ 58
Number of Servicing sta 27¢ 322
Number of other sta: 6C 58
Total number of employees 574 53C

Note that although the dollar balance of our madggwtfolio increased by $102.9 million, or 13.0#m December 31, 2011 to Decerr
31, 2012, the number of accounts in our managetfofioractually decreased by 16,379 units, or 15.2%er the same period. The disparit
the changes of the principal amount versus thes wiibur managed portfolio is the result of the bomation of the 2012 contract originatit
with an average original amount financed of $15,ah8 the ongoing maturities, prepayments and chaffgeof older accounts with smal
average balances.

General and administrative expenses increaseddy & $15.4 million and represented 8.7% of tofsrating expenses in the year en
December 31, 2012, as compared to the prior yeanwhch expenses represented 9.3% of total opgetjpenses. General and administr:
expenses include telecommunications costs, postagjeelivery costs and other costs associatedseitricing our managed portfolio.

Provision for credit losses was $33.5 million fbe tyear ended December 31, 2012, an increase d $iiBion, or 116.0%, compared to "
prior year and represented 18.8% of total operagxenses. The provision for credit losses maistdie allowance for finance credit losse
levels that we feel are adequate for the probaideried credit losses that can be reasonably dstimd@he increase in provision expe
compared to the prior year was a result of incréasmtract purchases in 2012 and the related isergathe size of our portfolio of finar
receivables.
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Interest expense for the year ended December 3P, @8creased $3.6 million, or 4.4%, to $79.4 millicompared to $83.1 million in t
previous year. The decrease is due primarily taiggntly lower interest rates on the securitiaatiransactions we entered into during 2
compared to the amortizing balances of securitizadiebt incurred prior to 2012. Those decreases pattially offset by an increase in inte
expense for the Fireside portfolio, which was acefliilate in September 2011. As a result, intergpemse on the Fireside portfolio v
incurred for only a partial year in 2011 comparea full year for 2012.

Interest on securitization trust debt decrease@hg million in 2012 compared to the prior yearisTWas caused by lower overall blen
interest rates on securitizations completed du2idg2 compared to securitizations that existed aebéwer 31, 2011. Interest expense or
residual interest financing decreased by $1.8 onilas the balance outstanding decreased from $3llién at the end of 2011 to $13.8 milli
at the end of 2012.

In September 2011 we established a credit faabtylusively for the acquisition of the Fireside fialio. For the full year 2012 we incurr
$15.7 million in related interest expense compaoe$9.3 million for 2011, which only encompassed greriod from the date of the acquisi
through December 2011.

Interest expense on warehouse debt decreased &yrilon in 2012 compared to the prior year. Altigh we significantly increased ¢
contract purchases to $551.7 million in 2012 coragan $284.2 in 2011, our strategy of utilizing fwading features in our securitizatic
during 2012 allowed us to reduce warehouse fadilitsrowings.

Interest expense on senior secured and subordidetgdncreased by $339,000 in 2012 compared tettioe year. During 2012, we repi
$11.2 million in senior secured related party delithough because there were additions to such digtiig 2011, the monthly weight
average balance of senior secured related partyveee $59.3 million and $57.6 million in 2011 an@fl2, respectively. We also issued a
additional $2.5 million in subordinated renewabi¢as during 2012.

Marketing expenses consist primarily of commisdiased compensation paid to our employee marketipgesentatives. These expel
increased by $2.2 million, or 25.9%, to $10.7 roilli compared to $8.5 million in the previous yead aepresented 6.0% of total opera
expenses. We purchased 36,030 contracts in 201garechto 18,110 in 2011.

Occupancy expenses decreased by $112,000 or 3782,9 million compared to $3.0 million in the pi@vs year, and represented 1.69
total operating expenses.

Depreciation and amortization expenses decreas&d 28,000, or 19.1%, to $543,000 from $672,00Gédrevious year.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, we recor@&dniillion of net tax expense and reduced ouratidn allowance for our deferred
assets by $62.8 million, which resulted in a netitanefit of $60.2 million. Since the fourth quareé 2011, we have reported five consect
quarters of increasing profitability, observed imypgment in credit metrics, and produced reliabterimal financial projections. Furthermc
we have demonstrated an ability to increase our ec@mwiract purchases, grow our managed portfolioabidin cost effective short- and long:
term financing for our finance receivables. As sufeof these and other factors, we determinedestenber 31, 2012 that, based on the w
of the available objective evidence, it was mdkelii thannot that we would generate sufficient future tagahcome to utilize our deferred
assets. Accordingly, we reversed the related vialuatlowance. However, if future events change expected realization of our deferred
assets, we may be required to reestablish theedelatluation allowance in the future.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

Our business requires substantial cash to suppeoechpases of automobile contracts and other operattivities. Our primary sources of ¢
have been cash flow from operating activities,udaig proceeds from term securitization transastiand other sales of automobile contri
amounts borrowed under warehouse credit facilittesyicing fees on portfolios of automobile contsapreviously sold in securitizati
transactions or serviced for third parties, custopayments of principal and interest on financesneables, fees for origination of automol
contracts, and releases of cash from securitizediotios of automobile contracts in which we haetained a residual ownership interest
the related spread accounts. Our primary usessif have been the purchases of automobile contragtayment of amounts borrowed ur
warehouse credit facilities and otherwise, opegateéxpenses such as employee, interest, occupanmgnges and other general
administrative expenses, the establishment of dpieaounts and initial overcollateralization, ifyaand the increase of credit enhanceme
required levels in securitization transactions, amwbme taxes. There can be no assurance thahafliegenerated cash will be sufficien
meet our cash demands. The sufficiency of inteyrganerated cash will depend on the performanaeairitized pools (which determines
level of releases from those portfolios and thelated spread accounts), the rate of expansioordraction in our managed portfolio, and
terms upon which we are able to purchase, sellpantw against automobile contracts.
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Net cash provided by operating activities for tleang ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $33i6maihd $10.8 million, respective
Net cash from operating activities is generallyvisled by net income from operations adjusted fgnisicant noi-cash items such as «
provision for credit losses, accretion of deferaeduisition fees, and, in 2012, the net changeaiirdeferred tax assets of $62.8 million.

Net cash used in investing activities for the yermded December 31, 2012 was $91.5 million compere@t cash used in investing activi
of $155.0 million in 2011. Cash provided by investiactivities primarily results from principal pagnts and other proceeds receive(
finance receivables held for investment. Cash usedvesting activities generally relates to puisds of finance receivables. Purchase
finance receivables held for investment were $55iillfon and $284.2 million in 2012 and 2011, resipeely.

Net cash provided by financing activities for theay ended December 31, 2012 was $59.4 million comdpwith net cash provided
financing activities of $138.0 million in 2011. Gessed or provided by financing activities is priityaattributable to the issuance or repayn
of debt, and in particular, securitization trusbtdand portfolio acquisition financing. We issuéab8.5 million in new securitization trust d
in 2012 compared to $339.5 million of new secuaitian trust debt in 2011. In 2011 we also issue@l7$d million in new debt in conjuncti
with the acquisition of the Fireside portfolio. Regments of securitization debt were $351.0 millard $330.0 million in 2012 and 20
respectively.

We purchase automobile contracts from dealers foash price approximating their principal amoujuated for an acquisition fee wh
may either increase or decrease the automobilegamimiurchase price. Those automobile contractergém cash flow, however, over a pe
of years. As a result, we have been dependent oehaase credit facilities to purchase automobiletraats, and on the availability of ci
from outside sources in order to finance our cauitig operations, as well as to fund the portioraasfomobile contract purchase prices
financed under revolving warehouse credit fac#itie

The acquisition of automobile contracts for subseqdinancing in securitization transactions, amglneed to fund spread accounts and i
overcollateralization, if any, and increase cregihancement levels when those transactions take,plesults in a continuing need for cag
The amount of capital required is most heavily dejemt on the rate of our automobile contract pusebathe required level of initial cre
enhancement in securitizations, and the extenthiclwthe previously established trusts and theéatee spread accounts either release ce
us or capture cash from collections on securitaethmobile contracts. Of those, the factor mosjesuitio our control is the rate at which
purchase automobile contracts.

We are and may in the future be limited in ourigbtb purchase automobile contracts due to liraitsour capital. As of December 31, 2(
we had unrestricted cash of $13.0 million. We h&a.6 million available under one warehouse creafitlity and $95.7 million available unc
our second warehouse credit facility (in both féied advances are subject to available eligiblkatzral). During 2012 we completed f
securitizations aggregating $603.5 million of reebies, and we intend to continue completing sézations regularly during 2013, althot
there can be no assurance that we will be abl@t®sar plans to manage our liquidity include maimtey our rate of automobile contr.
purchases at a level that matches our availabliéataand, as appropriate, minimizing our operatiogts. If we are unable to complete ¢
securitizations, we may be unable to increase atar of automobile contract purchases, in which casenterest income and other portf
related income would decrease.

Our liquidity will also be affected by releases afsh from the trusts established with our secatibns. While the specific terms ¢
mechanics of each spread account vary among tramssicour securitization agreements generally idevthat we will receive excess ¢
flows, if any, only if the amount of credit enhanmeent has reached specified levels and the delirmyyetefaults or net losses related to
automobile contracts in the pool are below certaiedetermined levels. In the event delinquencietaudts or net losses on the automc
contracts exceed such levels, the terms of therieation: (i) may require increased credit enhement to be accumulated for the partic
pool; or (ii) in certain circumstances, may perthi transfer of servicing on some or all of theoautbile contracts to another servicer. Tl
can be no assurance that collections from theelusts will continue to generate sufficient cdgloreover, some of our spread acct
balances are pledged as collateral to our residterest financing and, under certain circumstanessases from our spread account bale
could be diverted to repay such residual inteiiesinicing.

One of our securitization transactions, our warskazredit facilities, our residual interest finargcand our financing for the Fireside portfi
contain various financial covenants requiring dartainimum financial ratios and results. Such cams include maintaining minimum lev
of liquidity and net worth and not exceeding maximig@verage levels. In addition, some agreementtagoorossdefault provisions that wou
allow certain creditors to declare a default ifediadilt occurred under a different facility. As oé&&mber 31, 2012, we were in compliance
all such covenants.
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We have and will continue to have a substantialamof indebtedness. At December 31, 2012, we padoximately $958.5 million of de
outstanding. Such debt consisted primarily of $39illion of securitization trust debt, and alscluded $57.1 million in debt for t
acquisition of the Fireside portfolio, $21.7 milief warehouse lines of credit, $13.8 million osidrial interest financing, $50.1 million
senior secured related party debt and $23.3 milticsubordinated renewable notes. We are alsomlyreffering the subordinated notes to
public on a continuous basis, and such notes haerities that range from three months to 10 years.

Our recent operating results include pre-tax egshiof $9.2 million in 2012, preceded by pee-losses of $14.5 million and $16.2 millior
2011 and 2010, respectively. We believe that odrl2énd 2010 results were materially and adverdédetad by the disruption in the cap
markets that began in the fourth quarter of 2097%hk recession that began in December 2007, amélated high levels of unemployment.

Although we believe we are able to service andyepa debt, there is no assurance that we will lle 0 do so. If our plans for futt
operations do not generate sufficient cash flows earnings, our ability to make required paymemt®or debt would be impaired. Failure
pay our indebtedness when due could have a mateivalrse effect and may require us to issue additidebt or equity securities.
Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our material corttratobligations as of December 31, 2012 (dollahousands):

Payment Due by Period (1

Less than 1to3 4t05 More than

Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Long Term Debt (2 $ 87,18¢ $ 76,027 % 9,81t % 18t % 1,162
Operating Lease $ 10,67 $ 2,71 % 502 % 2,651 $ 28¢

(1) Securitization trust debt, in the aggregate amafr792.5 million as of December 31, 2012, is adifrom this table because it beco
due as and when the related receivables balanecedsaced by payments and chamfés. Expected payments, which will depend o
performance of such receivables, as to which tharebe no assurance, are $314.8 million in 201202 million in 2014, $143.8 millic
in 2015, $83.9 million in 2016, and $29.2 milliam 2017. Similarly, the $57.1 million in debt assted with the Fireside receivab
acquisition measured at fair value is estimateteaepaid in 2013.

(2) Longterm debt includes residual interest debt, senemused debt and subordinated renewable n¢

For debt that is due in 2013, we anticipate repgitivith a combination of cash flows from operasaand issuances of new debt.
Warehouse Credit Facilities

The terms on which credit has been available tioupurchase of automobile contracts have varieg@ent years, as shown in the follow
summary of our warehouse credit facilities:

Facility Established in September 20@n September 25, 2009 we established a $50 miélemured revolving credit facility with Fortre
Credit Corp., which matured on September 25, 20t facility was structured to allow us to fund artn of the purchase price
automobile contracts by borrowing against a créattlity to our consolidated subsidiary Page Founding LLC. The facility provided fi
advances up to 75% of eligible finance receivablas the loans under it accrued interest at a fatee@month LIBOR plus 12.00% per annt
with a minimum rate of 14.00% per annum. As parthaf consideration given to Fortress for committiognake loans under this facility,
issued a 1Qear warrant to purchase up to 1,158,087 of ourrsomshares, at an exercise price of $0.879 peedqmwar refer to this as t
Fortress Warrant). Issuance of the Fortress Warsantired an adjustment to the terms of an existugtanding warrant regarding 1,564,
shares, reducing the exercise price of that otheramt from $1.44 per share to $1.40702 per shadeircreasing the number of she
available for purchase to 1,600,991.
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Facility Established in December 2010. December 2010 we entered into a $100 million-ywar warehouse credit line with affiliates
Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Fortress Investment Grdhp. facility is structured to allow us to fund argion of the purchase price
automobile contracts by borrowing against a créatiflity to our consolidated subsidiary Page Sixifing LLC. The facility provides fi
advances up to 82% of eligible finance receivahled the loans under it accrue interest at a ramefmonth LIBOR plus 5.73% per annt
with a minimum rate of 7.23% per annum. In Deceniti2 we amended the terms of this facility to esltthe maturity date from Decem
2012 to February 2013. There was $4.3 million euding under this facility at December 31, 2012.

Facility Established in February 2010n February 24, 2011, we entered into an additié&@D million twoyear warehouse credit line w
UBS Real Estate Securities, Inc. The facility reeol during the first year and amortizes duringgbeond year. The facility was structure
allow us to fund a portion of the purchase priceaofomobile contracts by drawing against a floatiag variable funding note issued by
consolidated subsidiary Page Seven Funding, LL@. fakility provided for advances up to 76.5% ofilie finance receivables and the ni
under it accrue interest at om@nth LIBOR plus 6.00% per annum. In February 2042 amended this facility to extend the revolvirggipc
from February 2012 to May 2012 and reduced the mami advance from $100 million to $35 million. Thevas $21,000 outstanding un
this facility at December 31, 2012.

Facility Established in May 2012n May 11, 2012, we entered into an additional $@llon oneyear warehouse credit line with Citiba
N.A. The facility is structured to allow us to fudportion of the purchase price of automobile @mis by borrowing from a credit facility
our consolidated subsidiary Page Eight Funding, LLRe facility provides for effective advances 0pB88.4% of eligible finance receivabl
The loans under the facility accrue interest at-moath LIBOR plus 6.00% per annum, with a minimurteraf 6.75% per annum.
December 30, 2012 there was $17.4 million outstandnder this facility.

Capital Resources

Securitization trust debt is repaid from collecoon the related receivables, and becomes duecordance with its terms as the princ
amount of the related receivables is reduced. Alghothe securitization trust debt also has alteéraedtnal maturity dates, those dates
significantly later than the dates at which repaytmaf the related receivables is anticipated, andaatime in our history have any of
sponsored asset-backed securities reached theseadie final maturities.

The acquisition of automobile contracts for subseguransfer in securitization transactions, arerteed to fund spread accounts and il
overcollateralization, if any, when those transatditake place, results in a continuing need fpitak The amount of capital required is
heavily dependent on the rate of our automobildreah purchases, the required level of initial drethhancement in securitizations, and
extent to which the trusts and related spread adsoeither release cash to us or capture cash ¢alactions on securitized automol
contracts. We plan to adjust our levels of autoheobontract purchases and the related capital reaeints to match anticipated release
cash from the trusts and related spread accounts.

Capitalization
Over the period from January 1, 2011 through De@n®i, 2012 we have managed our capitalizationsbying and refinancing debt

summarized in the following table:
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Year Ended December 31
2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands

RESIDUAL INTEREST FINANCING:

Beginning balanc $ 21,88 % 39,44(
Issuance: - -
Payments (8,119 (17,55¢6)

Ending balance $ 13,77 % 21,88¢

SECURITIZATION TRUST DEBT:

Beginning balanc $ 58306¢ $ 567,72
Issuance: 558,50( 339,52
Payments (349,069 (324,18))

Ending balance $ 79249 $ 583,06

SENIOR SECURED DEBT, RELATED PARTY:

Beginning balanc $ 58,34« $ 44,87
Issuance: - 12,80(
Payment: (11,200 (1,600

Debt discount net of amortization 2,991 2,271

Ending balance $ 50,13 % 58,34«

SUBORDINATED RENEWABLE NOTES:

Beginning balanc $ 20,75 % 20,33:
Issuance: 4,957 3,64¢
Payments (2,426 (3,239

Ending balance $ 23,28, $ 20,75(

DEBT SECURED BY RECEIVABLES MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE:

Beginning balanc $ 166,82 % -
Issuance: - 197,26:
Payment: (121,41) (35,24()
Accretion of premiun 4,57¢ 5,60¢
Mark to fair value 7,118 (807)

Ending balance $ 57,107 $ 166,82¢

Residual Interest Financing.

In July 2007, we established a combination termrandlving residual credit facility and have usdidible residual interests in securitizatit
as collateral for floating rate borrowings. The amiothat we were able to borrow was computed uamggreed valuation methodology of
residuals, subject to an overall maximum princgrabunt of $120 million, represented by (i) a $6diom Class A4 variable funding note (tl
“revolving note”), and (ii) a $60 million Class A{2rm note (the “term note"Yhe term note was fully drawn in July 2007 and weginally
due in July 2009. As of July 2008, we had drawn.$28illion on the revolving note. The faciliyrevolving feature expired in July 2008.
July 10, 2008 we amended the terms of the combinagrm and revolving residual credit facility, @)iminating the revolving feature &
increasing the interest rate, (ii) consolidating #mounts then owing on the Class A-1 note with Gless A2 note, (iii) establishing :
amortization schedule for principal reductions loa €lass A2 note, and (iv) providing for an extension, at option if certain conditions we
met, of the Class &- note maturity from June 2009 to June 2010. IreJ2@09 we met all such conditions and extendedrtagurity. Ir
conjunction with the amendment, we reduced thecgral amount outstanding to $70 million by delivgrito the lender (i) warrants valuec
being equivalent to 2,500,000 common shares, 784429, and (ii) cash of $12,765,244. The warraatgesent the right to purch
2,500,000 CPS common shares at a nominal exendgse pt any time prior to July 10, 2018. In MaylRQwe extended the maturity date fi
June 2010 to May 2011. In May 2011, we extendedntla¢urity date of the facility from May 2011 to M&p12. In February 2012,
exchanged certain previously pledged residual éstsrwith new, previously unpledged, residual gty and extended the maturity dat
February 2013. In September 2012, the maturity eads again extended to September 2013 and thereewgnt for monthly princip
repayments was eliminated if certain pool perforogameasures are met. As of December 31, 2012 thegate indebtedness under
facility was $13.8 million.
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Securitization Trust Debt.From July 2003 through April 2008, we have, forafiicial accounting purposes, treated securitizatiof
automobile contracts as secured financings, andaffsetsacked securities issued in such securitizationsaie® on our balance sheet
securitization trust debt. Our September 2008 aedrésecuritization of the remaining receivables fronststransaction in September 2
were each structured as a sale for financial ademyipurposes and the asseteked securities issued in those transactions matvieeen and a
not on our balance sheet. Our four 2012 and thddé& 2ecuritizations are all treated as secureddings.

In March 2010, we entered into a $50 million tewmding facility with a syndicate of note purchaseduding affiliates of Angelo, Gord:
& Co., L.P. and an affiliate of Cohen & Company @Ggties. Under the term funding facility, the ngerchasers agreed to purchase up tc
million in assetbacked notes through December 31, 2010, subjecoltateral eligibility and other terms and conditsp through the end
2010. Amounts outstanding originally accrued irdeed a fixed rate of 11.00%. In June 2011, weuegired the facility to get the senior nc
rated investment grade and issued an addition8l ®@lion in three tranches of new subordinatedesofThe interest rate on the senior r
was reduced to 9.25% as a result of getting arsinvent grade rating. Principal payments on thesate due as the underlying receivable
paid or charged off, and the final maturity is Ju§; 2017. In connection with the establishmerthaf term funding facility, we paid a closi
fee of $750,000 and issued to certain of the natehasers or their designees warrants to purchl2g@®®@ shares of our common stock ¢
exercise price of $1.41 per share (we refer toahithe Page Five Warrant). Issuance of the PageVWWarrant required adjustments to the te
of two existing outstanding warrants. The first reat related to 1,600,991 shares, on which theceseeprice was decreased from $1.407
share to $1.398 per share and the number of shaegdlgble for purchase was increased to 1,611,Ithd.second affected warrant relate
283,985 shares, which was increased to 285,78&shas of December 31, 2012, there was $21.3 mithatstanding under the facility and
additional advances are expected to be made.

Senior Secured DebtFrom 1998 to 2005, we entered into a series ohfiimgy transactions with Levine Leichtman CapitaitRers 11, L.P. I
July 2007 we repaid the final amounts due undesetlimancing transactions. On June 30, 2008, wereditinto a series of agreements purs
to which an affiliate of Levine Leichtman Capitahrfhers purchased a $10 million fiyear, fixed rate, senior secured note from us.
indebtedness is secured by substantially all ofasgets, though not by the assets of our sppuaiglese financing subsidiaries. In July 200!
conjunction with the amendment of the residualrggefinancing as discussed above, the lender psethan additional $15 million note w
substantially the same terms as the $10 milliore.nBursuant to the June 30, 2008 securities pugchgeement, we issued to the lel
1,225,000 shares of common stock. In addition,ssaead the lender two warrants: (i) warrants thatefer to as the FMV Warrants, which
exercisable for 1,611,114 shares of our commorkstatcan exercise price of $1.39818 per share,(@ndarrants that we refer to as the
Warrants, which are exercisable for 285,781 shafesur common stock, at a nominal exercise pricethBhe FMV Warrants and the
Warrants are exercisable in whole or in part anahgttime up to and including June 30, 2018. Weeglthe warrants using the BlaSkhole
valuation model and recorded their value as alifglin our balance sheet because the terms ofvetieants also included a provision wher
the lender could require us to purchase the warifantcash. That provision was eliminated by muagreement in September 2008. The F
Warrants were initially exercisable to purchas®@,600 shares for $2.573 per share, were adjustedhinection with the July 2008 issuanc
other warrants to become exercisable to purchd&® 324 shares at $2.4672 per share, and wereefuattjusted in connection with a J
2009 amendment of our option plan to become exastdsat $1.44 per share. Upon issuance in Septe@®® of the Fortress Warrant,
FMV Warrant was further adjusted to become exebbisto purchase 1,600,991 shares at an exercise @ii$1.407 per share. Upon issus
in March 2010 of the Page Five Warrant, the FMV k&far was further adjusted to become exercisableutchase 1,611,114 shares a
exercise price of $1.39818 per share.
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In November 2009 we entered into an additional egent with this lender whereby they purchased aitiadal $5 million note. The na
accrued interest at 15.0% and was repaid in Decetd® at which time the lender purchased a new8$&iillion note under substantially 1
same terms as the $10 million and $15 million natlksady outstanding. The $27.8 million note acsrimerest at 16.0% and mature
December 2013. Concurrent with the issuance of$2%8 million note, the term $10 and $15 millionte®were amended to change 1
maturity dates to December 2013. In conjunctiorwlhie issuance of the $27.8 million note, we issoeithe lender 880,000 shares of com
stock and 1,870 shares of Series B convertibleemed stock. Each share of the Series B convenpitdéerred stock was exchanged for 1
shares of our common stock on June 15, 2011, upareisolder approval of such exchange. At the tifnesmance, the value of the comr
stock and Series B preferred stock was $753,0005ar&l million, respectively. On March 31, 2011, sad an additional $5 million note ¢
February 29, 2012 to LLCP. In April 2011 we purdadérom LLCP a portion of an outstanding subordidatote issued by our CPS Cayi
Residual Trust 2008, and financed that purchase by issuing to LLG®wa $3 million note which was fully repaid in Jud@12. In Novemb
2011, we sold an additional $5 million note whichsafully repaid in October 2012. In February 2042, extended the maturity of the
million note that was originally due in Februaryl20to March 2012 when it was repaid in full. Eaéhhese last three notes discussed act
interest at 14% per annum.

Subordinated Renewable Notes Delbth. June 2005, we began issuing registered subdedirr@newable notes in an ongoing offering tc
public. Upon maturity, the notes are automaticadijewed for the same term as the maturing notdsssinwe elect not to have the n
renewed or unless the investor notifies us wittirdays after the maturity date for his notes tleatvants his notes repaid. Renewed notes
interest at the rate we are offering at that timether investors with similar note maturities. 8h®n the terms of the individual notes, inte
payments may be required monthly, quarterly, arpwalupon maturity.

We must comply with certain affirmative and negatoovenants related to debt facilities, which rezgjuamong other things, that we main
certain financial ratios related to liquidity, netorth, capitalization, investments, acquisitionsstricted payments and certain divid
restrictions. In addition, certain securitizationdanon-securitization related debt contain crefult provisions that would allow cert
creditors to declare default if a default occurtadier a different facility. As of December 31, 20%& were in compliance with all st
covenants.

Forward-looking Statements

This report on Form 10-K includes certain " forwdodking statements ". Forwatdeking statements may be identified by the usevarfds
such as " anticipates, " " expects, " " plansgstimates, " or words of like meaning. As to thecsfically identified forwardooking statement
factors that could affect chargéfs and recovery rates include changes in the rg¢éeeonomic climate, which could affect the wifjimess ¢
ability of obligors to pay pursuant to the termscohtracts, changes in laws respecting consumandi®, which could affect our ability
enforce rights under contracts, and changes imtudet for used vehicles, which could affect theels of recoveries upon sale of reposse
vehicles. Factors that could affect our revenuethéncurrent year include the levels of cash reledsom existing pools of contracts, wk
would affect our ability to purchase contracts, thems on which we are able to finance such pued)ahe willingness of dealers to
contracts to us on the terms that it offers, aretdrms on which we are able to complete term #emtions once contracts are acqui
Factors that could affect our expenses in the nturear include competitive conditions in the mariee qualified personnel, investor dem:
for asset-backed securities and interest ratesctwhifect the rates that we pay on asset-backadriges issued in our securitizationd)he
statements concerning structuring securitizatiangactions as secured financings and the effectsabf structures on financial items anc
future profitability also are forward-looking statents. Any change to the structure of our secatitin transaction could cause such forwart
looking statements not to be accurate. Both theuanaf the effect of the change in structure on pafitability and the duration of the per
in which our profitability would be affected by tlehange in securitization structure are estimalbe accuracy of such estimates will
affected by the rate at which we purchase andcseitracts, any changes in that rate, the credfbpeance of such contracts, the finan
terms of future securitizations, any changes imgaons over time, and other factors that genesdflyct our profitability.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 2012, the Company adopted ASU206104, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measerg and Disclosu
Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs (ASU 2011-0d3U 201104 represents the converged guidance of the Fiakadacounting
Standards Board (FASB) and the International ActiognStandards Board (IASB) on fair value measumr@maA variety of measures
included in the update intended to either clarikyseng fair value measurement requirements, chgagéicular principles requirements
measuring fair value or for disclosing informatiabout fair value measurements. For many of theireaents, the FASB does not inten:
change the application of existing requirementseariccounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topi®d8Eair Value Measurements. A
201194 was effective for interim and annual periodsibeigg after December 15, 2011. The adoption of tipdate did not have a mate
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 2012, the Company adopted ASU 204.1-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income (28UL-05). ASU 20105 is
intended to increase the prominence of items reddrt other comprehensive income and to facilitaevergence of accounting guidanc
this area with that of the IASB. The amendmentsiiregthat all nonowner changes in shareholdeggiity be presented in a single contint
statement of comprehensive income or in two sepdvat consecutive statements. In December 2011FA®B issued ASU No. 20112,
Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of thfed&ive Date for Amendments to the PresentatioiRetlassifications of ltems Out
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in AccognStandards Update No. 2011-05 (ASU 2011-12). AB1A2 defers the provisio
of ASU 201165 that require the presentation of reclassificatidjustments on the face of both the statemeimtcoime and statement of ot
comprehensive income. Amendments under ASU 201th&bwere not deferred under ASU 2012 will be applied retrospectively for fisi
years, and interim periods within those years, ti@gg after December 15, 2011. The adoption ofupigate did not have a material impac
the consolidated financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures abotgefiing Assets and Liabilities (AS
2011-11). The amendments in ASU 2011 require the disclosure of information on offsgftand related arrangements for financial
derivative instruments to enable users of its fai@nstatements to understand the effect of thasengements on its financial positi
Amendments under ASU 20111t will be applied retrospectively for fiscal yeaasd interim periods within those years, beginraftgr Januai
1, 2013. The Company is evaluating the effectnif,adoption of ASU 2011-11 will have on its corndated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accleted Other Comprehensive (A
2013-02). This guidance is the culmination of th&SB’s deliberation on reporting reclassification adjustts from accumulated otl
comprehensive income (AOCI). The amendments in 28W302 do not change the current requirements for tegpnet income or oth
comprehensive income. However, the amendmentsreedisiclosure of amounts reclassified out of AOCit$ entirety, by component, on
face of the statement of operations or in the nibteseto. Amounts that are not required to be ssdfi@d in their entirety to net income mus
crossreferenced to other disclosures that provithtianal detail. This standard is effective praspeely for annual and interim reporti
periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The Gmyps evaluating the effect, if any, the adopt@nASU 201302 will have on it
consolidated financial statements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

From July 2003 through April 2008 all of our seti@dtions were structured as secured financingsfif@ncial accounting purposes.
September 2008, we securitized $198.7 million afautomobile contracts in a structure that is #dats a sale of the receivables for finai
accounting purposes. The terms of the Septembed 86€uritization provide for us (1) to continueviging the sold portfolio, (2) to retair
5.0% interest in the bonds issued by the trusth@lvwe sold the automobile contracts and (3) to ealditional compensation contingent u
(a) the return to the holders of the senior bosdsad by the trust reaching certain targets otliflejime” cumulative net chargeifs on the
automobile contracts being below a pre-determimese@ll In September 2010 we seeuritized the remaining receivables from the S&ape
2008 transaction in a similar "off balance sheétlicture. The September 2010 transaction is treased sale of the receivables for finar
accounting purposes. See "Critical Accounting Regditfor a detailed discussion of our securitizabructure.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

We are subject to interest rate risk during théopkelbetween when contracts are purchased from eatel when such contracts become
of a term securitization. Specifically, the intdreste due on our warehouse credit facilities ajesiable while the interest rates on the cont
are fixed. Historically, our term securitizationsvie had fixed rates of interest. To mitigate soffnthis risk, we have in the past, and gene
intend to continue to structure our term securii@atransactions to include pfending structures, whereby the amount of notaseidsexceec
the amount of contracts initially sold to the teudh pre-funding, the proceeds from the faneded portion are held in an escrow account
we sell the additional contracts to the trust. te-fanded securitizations, we lock in the borrowingstsowith respect to the contracts
subsequently deliver to the trust. However, we liremuexpense in priemded securitizations equal to the difference leetwthe money mart
yields earned on the proceeds held in escrow poi@ubsequent delivery of contracts and the inteas paid on the notes outstanding,
amount as to which there can be no assurance.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

This report includes Consolidated Financial Stats)enotes thereto and an Independent Audit@eport, at the pages indicated belov
the " Index to Financial Statements. "

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account&on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and ProceduresdUnder the supervision and with the participatidrihe Company Chief Executive Officer and Ch
Financial Officer, management of the Company haduasted the effectiveness of the design and operafithe Companyg disclosure contrc
and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) &ddL%(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1834 " Exchange Act ) as of Decemb
31, 2012 (the " Evaluation Datg."Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Execud¥fecer and Chief Financial Officer concluded thas, of th
Evaluation Date, the Compasydisclosure controls and procedures are effeéfjite ensure that information required to be diseld by us i
reports that the Company files or submits underBRehange Act is recorded, processed, summarizddeported within the time peric
specified in the rules and forms of the Securitied Exchange Commission; and (ii) to ensure tHatnimation required to be disclosed in
reports that the Company files or submits under Exehange Act is accumulated and communicated toneanagement, including t
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finah@fficer, to allow timely decisions regarding végd disclosures.

The certifications of our chief executive officandachief financial officer required under Sectidi23of the SarbaneSxley Act have bee
filed as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to this report.

Internal Control.Managemens Report on Internal Control over Financial Repaytis included in this Annual Report, immediateidw.
During the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2€ige were no changes in our internal control dvemncial reporting that have materic
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeef, our internal control over financial reporting

Management’'s Report on Internal Control over Finah®eporting. We are responsible for establishing and maiitgiadequate interr
control over financial reporting as defined in RUBa15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934r ternal control over financi
reporting is designed to provide reasonable assaremour management and Board of Directors reggritie preparation and fair presents
of published financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or detamisstatements. Therefore, even tl
systems determined to be effective can only prokédsonable assurance with respect to financisdratnt preparation and presentation.

Management, with the participation of the chief@rere and chief financial officers, assessed fifecveness of our internal control o
financial reporting as of December 31, 2012. In imgkthis assessment, we used the criteria set foytlthe Committee of Sponsor|
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQpiarnal Control —ntegrated Framework. Based on this assessmenggearent, wit
the participation of the chief executive and cHiencial officers, believes that, as of Decembgr 3012, our internal control over finan:
reporting is effective based on those criteria.

This annual report does not include an attestatigort of our registered public accounting firm asdjng internal control over financ
reporting. Managemerst'report was not subject to attestation by oursteged public accounting firm pursuant to rulesha Securities ar
Exchange Commission that permit us to provide omyragement’s report in this annual report.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not Applicable.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance

Information regarding directors of the registrastincorporated by reference to the registsamtefinitive proxy statement for its ann
meeting of shareholders to be held in 2013 (th@132Proxy Statement)” The 2013 Proxy Statement will be filed not latean April 30, 201!
Information regarding executive officers of theisdgant appears in Part | of this report, and eoiporated herein by reference.
Item 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference to the 2013 Proxy Statéme
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

Incorporated by reference to the 2013 Proxy Stat¢éme
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

Incorporated by reference to the 2013 Proxy Statéme

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Incorporated by reference to the 2013 Proxy Stat¢éme
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statements listed below under thetioap' Index to Financial Statementsate filed as a part of this report. No finan
statement schedules are filed as the requiredn&tion is inapplicable or the information is presehin the Consolidated Financial Statem
or the related notes. Separate financial statentéritee Company have been omitted as the Compapiyrisarily an operating company anc
subsidiaries are wholly owned and do not have ntinequity interests held by any person other tttenCompany in amounts that toge
exceed 5% of the total consolidated assets as shypwlme most recent year-end Consolidated BalaheetS

The exhibits listed below are filed as part of tlaport, whether filed herewith or incorporatedrbference to an exhibit filed with the reg
identified in the parentheses following the degaip of such exhibit. Unless otherwise indicatealghe such identified report was filed by
with respect to the registrant.

Exhibit Number
Description  “**” indicates compensatory plan or agreeme

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Néweem8, 2001, by and among the Registrant, CPS dfisuf, Inc. and
MFN Financial Corporation. (Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8fiked on November 19, 2001 by MFN Financial Comtaon)

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation (Exhibit 80 Form 10-K filed March 31, 2009)

3.1.1 Certificate of Designation re Series B Prefg(Exhibit 3.1.1 to Form 8-K filed by the regestt on December 30, 2010)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (Exhibit 3.3 torF8+K filed July 20, 2009)

4.1 Instruments defining the rights of holderdarfg-term debt of certain consolidated subsidiaciethe registrant are omitted

pursuant to the exclusion set forth in subdivisigh¥iv)(iii))(A) and (b)(v) of Item 601 of Regulath S-K (17 CFR
229.601). The registrant agrees to provide copifesuch instruments to the United States Securidied Exchange
Commission upon request.

4.2 Form of Indenture re Renewable Unsecured Sutsetl Notes (“RUS Notes”). (Exhibit 4.1 to Forr2Sno. 333-121913)

421 Form of RUS Notes (Exhibit 4.2 to Form S$@, 333-121913)

4.3 Form of Indenture re additional Renewable Unsst Subordinated Notes (“ARUS Notes”) (Exhibit #01Form S-1, no.
333-168976)

431 Form of ARUS Notes (Exhibit 4.2 to Form S, 333-168976)

4.4 Supplement dated December 7, 2010 to Indentudd&RUS Notes (Exhibit 4.3 to Form S-1, no. 333968)

4.23 Indenture dated as of June 1, 2007, respewtites issued by CPS Auto Receivables Trust 200&xBibit 4.23 to Form 8-
K filed by the registrant on June 29, 2007)

4.24 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of dur907, related to notes issued by CPS Auto Rab#ss Trust 2007-B
(exhibit 4.24 to Form 8-K filed by the registramt dune 29, 2007.)

4.25 Indenture dated as of September 1, 2007, csgenotes issued by CPS Auto Receivables Tru87-ZD (exhibit 4.25 to
Form 8-K filed by the registrant on November 2, 200

4.26 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Bdgatel, 2007, related to notes issued by CPS AeteRables Trust 2007-

C (exhibit 4.26 to Form 8-K filed by the registramt November 2, 2007.)
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4.27

4.28

4.29
4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

4.41

4.42

10.1
10.2
10.2.1
10.14

10.14.1

10.14.2

10.15

10.15.1

10.15.2

10.16

10.17

Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Reclggakrust 2008-A (exhibit 4.27 to Form 8-K filed the registrant on April
15, 2008)

Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Mar@008, related to notes issued by CPS Auto Rabkis Trust 2008-A
(exhibit 4.28 to Form 8-K filed by the registrant April 15, 2008)

Revolving Credit Agreement dated Decembe2@20 (Exhibit 4.29 to Form 10-K filed March 31,120

Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Reckigsalrust 2012-A (exhibit 4.37 to Form 10-Q fileglthe registrant on April
24, 2012)

Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Mar@012, related to notes issued by CPS Auto Rabkis Trust 2012-A
(exhibit 4.38 to Form 10-Q filed by the registrant April 24, 2012)

Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Reckigsafrust 2012-B (exhibit 4.39 to Form 8-K filed the registrant on June
26, 2012)

Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Jurd®12, related to notes issued by CPS Auto Rab#ss Trust 2012-B
(exhibit 4.40 to Form 8-K filed by the registramt dune 26, 2012)

Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Reckagabrust 2012-A (exhibit 4.41 to Form 10-Q filegl the registrant on
November 6, 2012)

Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Mar@012, related to notes issued by CPS Auto Rabkis Trust 2012-A
(exhibit 4.42 to Form 10-Q filed by the registrant November 6, 2012)

1991 Stock Option Plan & forms of Option Agremts thereunder (Exhibit 10.19 to Form S-2,388-121913) **

1997 Long-Term Incentive Stock Plan ("199MPIl&Exhibit 10.20 to Form S-2, no. 333-121913) **

Form of Option Agreement under 1997 Plarh{liik10.2.1 to Form 10-K filed March 13, 2006) **

2006 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan as arednid date (Exhibit 10.5 to Form S-1, post-effeztamendment thereto,
filed December 23, 2011)**

Form of Option Agreement under the 2006g-06arm Equity Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.14.1 taisdrant's Form 10-K
filed March 9, 2007)**

Form of Option Agreement under the 2006g-darm Equity Incentive Plan (Exhibit 99.(D)(2) tegistrant's Schedule TO
filed November 12, 2009)**

Securities Purchase Agreement between tligtreey and Levine Leichtman Capital Partners IVPL("LLCP"), relating to
the sale of an aggregate of $25 million of Notéscdrporated by reference to exhibit 99.2 to Sched@D filed by LLCP
on July 10, 2008)

Amendment dated July 10, 2008 to Secuitigehase Agreement dated June 30, 2008 betweerdistrant and LLCP.
(Exhibit 10.15.1 to registrant's Form 10-Q filedgust 11, 2008)

Amendment dated December 23, 2010 to SesuRurchase Agreement dated June 30, 2008 betiveemregistrant and
LLCP. (incorporated by reference to Schedule 18D évine Leichtman Capital Partners 1V, L.P. onukny 3, 2011.
Registration Rights Agreement between thistregit and LLCP. (Incorporated by reference toilgx99.6 to Schedule 13D
filed by LLCP on July 10, 2008)

Investor Rights Agreement between the registand LLCP. (Incorporated by reference to extibi7 to Schedule 13D
filed by LLCP on July 10, 2008)
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10.18

10.18.1

10.19

10.19.1

10.20
10.21
10.22
10.23
10.24
10.25
10.26
10.27
10.27.1
14

21

23.1
31.1

31.2
32

FMV Warrant dated June 30, 2008, issued GR.L(Incorporated by reference to the FMV warrgpearing as pages A-1
through A-13 of the preliminary proxy statemengdilby the registrant on July 28, 2008.)

Amendment dated March 30, 2012 to FMV Wdrdated June 30, 2008, issued to LLCP. (Incorpdréiy reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the current report on Form 8-K diléarch 30, 2012, as amended and filed on Form/H/the registrant
on May 30, 2012.)

N Warrant dated June 30, 2008, issued to LL{@Rorporated by reference to the FMV warrantespjng as pages B-1
through B-13 of the preliminary proxy statemeredilby the registrant on July 28, 2008.)

Amendment dated March 30, 2012 to N Wawated June 30, 2008, issued to LLCP. (Incorporbyectference to Exhibit
10.2 to the current report on Form 8-K dated M&@8h2012, as amended and filed on Form 8-K/A byrélggstrant on May
30, 2012.)

Amended and Restated Note Purchase Agreatatsd July 10, 2008 among the registrant, its sidosi Folio Funding II,
LLC, and Citigroup Financial Products Inc. (Exhib®.20 to registrant's Form 10-Q filed August 2008)

Amended and Restated Indenture dated JulgQ® among Folio Funding II, LLC, Citigroup FindalcProducts Inc. and
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10.21 to registtariForm 10-Q filed August 11, 2008)

Performance Guaranty dated July 10, 200&ds8y the registrant in favor of Citigroup Finandfaoducts Inc. (Exhibit
10.22 to registrant's Form 10-Q filed August 11080

Warrant dated July 10, 2008, issued to @itigrGlobal Markets Inc. (Exhibit 10.23 to registtar-orm 10-Q filed August
11, 2008)

Purchase and Sale Agreement re Motor Veliolgtracts dated as of September 26, 2008 (Exhib4lto Form 8-K/A
filed by the registrant on November 7, 2008)

Transfer and Servicing Agreement dated &eptember 26, 2008 (Exhibit 10.25 to Form 8-K/&dilby the registrant on
November 7, 2008)

Revolving Credit Agreement dated SeptemberR@89 among the registrant, its subsidiary Page Fonding, LLC, and
Fortress Credit Corp. ("Fortress") (Exhibit 10.Irégistrant's Form 8-K filed October 1, 2009)

Warrant dated September 25, 2009, issued #iféiate of Fortress. (Exhibit 10.2 to registtanForm 8-K filed October 1,
2009)

Amendment dated March 30, 2012 to WarrateddSeptember 25, 2009, issued to an affiliateoofress. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the current reportromm 8-K dated March 30, 2012, as amended and direBorm 8-K/A by
the registrant on May 30, 2012.)

Registrant’s Code of Ethics for Senior Finan€ifficers (Exhibit 14 to Form 10-K filed March 12006)
List of subsidiaries of the registrant (filecdith)

Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP (filed herewith)

Rule 13a-14(a) certification by chief execeatofficer (filed herewith)

Rule 13a-14(a) certification by chief finana@icer (filed herewith)

Section 1350 certification (filed herewith)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas caused this report to be si
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duth@nzed.

CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. (registrant)

February 15, 2013 By: /s/ CHARLES E. BRADLEY, JR
Charles E. Bradley, JiPresident

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthefollowing persons on behalf
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

February 15, 2013 /s/ CHARLES E. BRADLEY, JR
Charles E. Bradley, JDirector,
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

February 15, 2013 /s/ CHRIS A. ADAMS
Chris A. AdamsDirector

February 15, 2013 /s/ BRIAN J. RAYHILL
Brian J. Rayhill Director

February 15, 2013 /s/ WILLIAM B. ROBERTS
William B. RobertsDirector

February 15, 2013 /sl GREGORY S. WASHEI
Gregory S. WasheBirector

February 15, 2013 /s/ DANIEL S. WOOD
Daniel S. WoodDirector

February 15, 2013 /s/ JEFFREY P. FRIT.
Jeffrey P. Fritz,Sr. Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc. @bmpany) as of December 31, 2
and 2011, and the related consolidated statemémigenations, comprehensive income (loss), shadesl equity and cash flows for the e
then ended. These financial statements are thensiylity of the Company management. Our responsibility is to expresspamian on thes
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to hasewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrirdl control over financial reportir
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigranglit procedures that are appropriate ir
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compsairyternal control over financial reportii
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audiiudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in
financial statements. An audit also includes assggbe accounting principles used and signifiasttmates made by management, as w
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@riaWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbhsis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteaeferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of Consu
Portfolio Services, Inc. as of December 31, 201& 2011, and the results of its operations and ashdlows for the years then ende:
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accountnigciples.

/s/ CROWE HORWATH LLP
Costa Mesa, California
February 15, 2013
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cash and equivale

Finance receivable
Less: Allowance for finance credit losses
Finance receivables, n

Finance receivables measured at fair vi
Residual interest in securitizatio
Furniture and equipment, n

Deferred financing cos

Deferred tax assets, r

Accrued interest receivab

Other assets

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expet
Warehouse lines of crec

Residual interest financir

Debt secured by receivables measured at fair \

Securitization trust del
Senior secured debt, related pe
Subordinated renewable notes

Commitments and contingenci
Shareholders' Equity

Preferred stock, $1 par value; authorized 4,998sI0es; none issu

Series A preferred stock, $1 par value; author&@00,000 shares; none isst
Series B preferred stock, $1 par value; authoriz8@0 shares; none issued and outstandir

December 31, 2012 and 2011, respecti'

Common stock, no par value; authorized 75,000,0@0es; 19,838,913 and 19,526,968 shi

issued and outstanding at December 31, 2012 artl 28dpectivel

Retained earnings (accumulated defi
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancééBtents.
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December 31

December 31

2012 2011
$ 12,96¢  $ 10,09«
104,44 159,22
764,34: 516,63
(19,599 (10,35)
744,74 506,27
59,66¢ 160,25:
4,82 4,41
72€ 87t
9,14( 8,03¢
75,64( 15,00(
10,41 6,43:
15,05 19,43¢
$ 1,037,621 $ 890,05
$ 17,78 $ 27,99
21,73 25,39
13,77 21,88
57,10 166,82
792,49 583,06
50,13 58,34
23,28 20,75
976,30 904,25
65,67 62,46t
1,27¢ (68,139
(5,637) (8,53%)
61,31 (14,20)
$ 1,037,62 $ 890,05




CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011
Revenues:
Interest incomt $ 17531  $ 127,85t
Servicing fee: 2,30¢ 4,34¢
Other income 9,58¢ 10,92°
187,20¢ 143,13:
Expenses:
Employee cost 35,57 32,27(
General and administrati 15,42¢ 14,59(
Interest 79,42 83,05
Provision for credit losse 33,49¢ 15,50¢
Marketing 10,66" 8,491
Occupancy 2,894 3,00¢
Depreciation and amortization 542 672
178,02: 157,59;

Income (loss) before income tax expe 9,187 (14,46()
Income tax expense (benefit) (60,227 -
Net income (loss $ 69,40¢ $ (14,460
Income (loss) per shar

Basic $ 35¢ % (0.7¢)

Diluted 2.72 (0.76)
Number of shares used in computing income (losskipare

Basic 19,47 19,01

Diluted 25,47¢ 19,01

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinanceéBtents
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME(LOS S)

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011
Net income (loss $ 69,40¢ % (14,460
Other comprehensive income (loss); change in
funded status of pension plan, net of $150 ar
in tax for 2012 and 2011, respectively 2,89¢ (3,18))
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 72,306 3 (17,647

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financéé®tents.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at December 31, 20

Common stock issued upon exercise of
options and warran

Preferred stock conversic

Purchase of common sto

Pension benefit obligatic

Stoclk-based compensatic

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2011

Common stock issued upon exercise of
options and warran

Purchase of common sto

Pension benefit obligatic

Stoclk-based compensatic

Reclassification of warrants from de

Net income

Balance at December 31, 2012

(In thousands)

Retained Accumulated

Series B Preferred Earnings/ Other
Stock Common Stocl (Accumulater  Comprehensiv

Shares Amount Shares Amount Deficit) Loss Total
2 $ 1,601 18,120 $ 59,85 $ (53,679 $ (5,359 $ 2,421
- - 9 7 - - 7
2 (1,609 1,87( 1,601 - - -
- - (47%) (529 - - (529
- - - - - (3,18 (3,18
- - - 1,53( - - 1,53(
- - - - (14,460 - (14,460
- $ - 19,527 $ 62,46¢ $ (68,139 $ (8,539 $ (14,20)
- - 632 1,20¢ - - 1,20¢
- - (320 (43%) - - (43E)
- - - - - 2,89¢ 2,89¢
- - - 1,13¢ - - 1,13¢
- - - 1,307 - - 1,307
- - - - 69,40¢ - 69,40¢
- 8 - 19,83¢ $§ 65,67¢ $ 1,27C $ (5,637) $ 61,31

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financéé®tents.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss $ 69,40¢ $ (14,46()
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to resthcprovided by operating activitie
Accretion of deferred acquisition fe (15,957 (9,829
Accretion of purchase discount on receivables nredsat fair value (4,149 (5,979
Amortization of discount on securitization trusbd 1,91 5,772
Amortization of discount on senior secured debategl party 2,29¢ 2,271
Accretion of premium on debt secured by receivabieasured at fair valt 4,57¢ 5,60¢
Mark to fair value on debt secured by receivabtdaiavalue 7,11z (807)
Mark to fair value of receivables at fair val (6,639 (179
Depreciation and amortizatic 54: 672
Amortization of deferred financing cos 5,95¢ 4,58¢
Provision for credit losse 33,49t 15,50¢
Stocl-based compensation expel 1,13¢ 1,53(
Net change in residual ass (410 (573
Change in fair value of warrar 69t -
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accrued interest receivab (3,979 (267)
Other asset 5,62¢ 4,14¢
Deferred tax asse (60,640 -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (6,002) 2,77¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 34,98¢ 10,79:
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of finance receivables held for invest: (551,749 (284,23)
Payments received on finance receivables helchf@stmen 295,73: 322,27.
Purchases of receivables portfolio at fair ve - (199,559
Payments on receivables portfolio at fair ve 111,36: 41,92¢
Change in repossessions held in inven (1,237 287
Decreases (increases) in restricted cash and gashatents, ne 54,78: (35,27()
Purchase of furniture and equipment (394) (409
Net cash used in investing activities (91,497 (154,979
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of securitization trust 558,50( 339,52
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated renewalés 4,957 3,64¢
Proceeds from issuance of senior secured debtedeberty - 12,80(
Proceeds from portfolio acquisition financi - 197,26:
Payments on subordinated renewable n (2,426 (3,239
Net proceeds from (repayments to) warehouse lihesedit (3,662 (20,177)
Repayment of residual financing d¢ (8,117 (17,556
Repayment of securitization trust d (350,98) (329,95)
Repayment of senior secured debt, related | (12,200 (1,600
Repayment of portfolio acquisition financi (121,419 (35,24()
Payment of financing cos (7,059 (6,939
Purchase of common sto (43%) (529
Exercise of options and warrants 1,20¢ 7
Net cash provided by financing activities 59,37¢ 138,02
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivi 2,87 (6,15¢)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 10,09 16,25:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 12,96¢ $ 10,09

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financéé®tents.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid (received) during the period
Interest $ 75,65 $ 69,69¢
Income taxe: 1,13¢ 20C
Non-cash financing activities
Pension benefit obligation, n (2,899 3,181
Derivative warrants reclassified from liabilities ¢common stock upon amendm: 1,307 -
Common stock issued for convertible preferred s - 1,601

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancééBtents.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Busines

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc. (" CPS ") wasorporated in California on March 8, 1991. CPS #sdubsidiaries (collectively, tHe
Company ") specialize in purchasing and servicitgil automobile installment sale contracts ( 'h@€acts ") originated by licensed mot
vehicle dealers ( " Dealers)'located throughout the United States. Dealeratémtin California, Texas, Pennsylvania, and Feornepresente
13.5%, 9.5%, 9.2% and 5.0%, respectively, of camdrpurchased during 2012 compared with 14.3%,%408.0% and 5.9%, respectively
2011. No other state had a concentration in exoE&s0% in 2012. We specialize in Contracts withrbaers who generally would not
expected to qualify for traditional financing prded by commercial banks or automobile manufactucargtive finance companies.

We are subject to various regulations and lawheg telate to the extension of credit in consunedit transactions. Failure to comply wv
such laws and regulations could have a materia¢@gveffect on the Company.

Principles of Consolidatio

The Consolidated Financial Statements include ticeunts of Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc. aadviholly-owned subsidiaries, certain
which are Special Purpose Subsidiaries (" SPSdrmed to accommodate the structures under wiviglpurchase and securitize our contr.
The Consolidated Financial Statements also incthdeaccounts of CPS Leasing, Inc., an 80% ownesdidialy. All significant intercompar
balances and transactions have been eliminatezhisotidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, wasider all highly liquid debt instruments with drigl maturities of three months or les
be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consiststf ea hand and due from banks and money marketiatcdSubstantially all of our cast
deposited at two financial institutions. We mainteash due from banks in excess of the banks'édsdeposit limits. We do not believe we
exposed to any significant credit risk on theseod@p. As part of certain financial covenants esfato debt facilities, we are requirec
maintain a minimum unrestricted cash balance. A3exfember 31, 2012, our unrestricted cash balaasebd3.0 million.

Finance Receivable

Finance receivables, which we have the intent &ilidyato hold for the foreseeable future or umtihturity or payoff, are presented at cost
finance receivable contracts are held for investmiaterest income is accrued on the unpaid praidialance. Origination fees, net of cer
direct origination costs, are deferred and recaghin interest income using the interest methodhaut anticipating prepayments. Gener:
payments received on finance receivables are cte=drito certain securitized pools, and the relatedtracts cannot be resold. Fina
receivables are charged off pursuant to the cdimgodocuments of certain securitized pools, geheiaefore they become contractu:
delinquent five payments. Contracts that are deeorembllectible prior to the maximum delinquency ipdrare charged off immediate
Management may authorize an extension of paymemsté collection appears likely during the nextecelar month.

Our portfolio of finance receivables consists ofafifbalance homogeneous contracts that are collectiedyuated for impairment or
portfolio basis. We report delinquency on a coritratbasis. Once a Contract becomes greater thata@® delinquent, we do not recog!
additional interest income until the obligor undlee Contract makes sufficient payments to be lkas 80 days delinquent. Any payme
received on a Contract that is greater than 90 dalsquent are first applied to accrued interest #hen to principal reduction.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Allowance for Finance Credit Losses

In order to estimate an appropriate allowance &msés likely incurred on finance receivables, we asloss allowance methodolt
commonly referred to as " static poolingyhich stratifies the finance receivable portfolida separately identified pools based on theirqu
of origination, then uses historical performancesefisoned pools to estimate future losses on ¢upmals. Historical loss experience
adjusted as necessary for current economic conditidVe consider our portfolio of finance receivabte be relatively homogenous
consequently we analyze credit performance primamithe aggregate rather than stratification by particular credit quality indicator. Usi
analytical and formula driven techniques, we edinaan allowance for finance credit losses, whichbekeve is adequate for probable incu
credit losses that can be reasonably estimatediirportfolio of finance receivable contracts. Faclke monthly pool of contracts that
purchase, we begin establishing the allowancedmibnth of acquisition and increase it over thesegbent 11 months, through a provisior
credit losses charged to our consolidated stateofemperations. Net losses incurred on financeivabées are charged to the allowance.
evaluate the adequacy of the allowance by examioingent delinquencies, the characteristics of gbefolio, the value of the underlyi
collateral and historical loss trends. As condiichange, our level of provisioning and/or alloweantay change.

Finance Receivables and Related Debt Measured iatviadue

In September 2011, we acquired $217.8 million office receivables from Fireside Bank for a purctmsz of $201.3 million. Tt
receivables were acquired by our whatiyned special purpose subsidiary, CPS Fender Reges; LLC, which issued a note for $1¢
million, with a fair value of $196.5 million.

The receivables acquired are securing debt thatstvastured specifically for the acquisition ofghportfolio. Since the Fireside receival
were originated by another entity with its own umadting guidelines and procedures, we have eletbealccount for the Fireside receival
and the related debt secured by those receivabli®ia estimated fair values so that changes invi@ue will be reflected in our results
operations as they occur. We use our own assungptibout the factors that we believe market paditip would use in pricing simil
receivables and debt, and are based on the bestiation available in the circumstances. The vananethod used to estimate fair value
produce a fair value measurement that may not diedtive of ultimate realizable value. Furthermosjle we believe our valuation methi
are appropriate and consistent with those usedh®r onarket participants, the use of different radthor assumptions to estimate the fair v
of certain financial instruments could result iffelient estimates of fair value. Those estimatddesamay differ significantly from the valt
that would have been used had a readily availalaléken for such receivables or debt existed, ordaah receivables or debt been liquide
and those differences could be material to thenfire statements. Interest income from the recé@égmbnd interest expense on the deh
included in interest income and interest expensspeactively. Changes to the fair value of the reddes and debt are also to be include
interest income and interest expense, respectively.

Charge Off Policy

Delinquent Contracts for which the related finangedicle has been repossessed are generally chafigatithe earliest of (1) the month
which the proceeds from the sale of the financddcle are received, (2) the month in which 90 dagge passed from the date of reposse
or (3) the month in which the Contract becomes sesaheduled payments past due (see RepossesséuttamrdAssets below). The amo
charged off is the remaining principal balance hed Contract, after the application of the net pedsefrom the liquidation of the financ
vehicle. With respect to delinquent Contracts fdniak the related financed vehicle has not beensggxsed, the remaining principal bal:
thereof is generally charged off no later thanehd of the month that the Contract becomes fivedualed payments past due, and no later
the end of the month that the Contract becomes sitfteduled payments past due for other receivables

Contract Acquisition Fees and Origination Costs
Upon purchase of a Contract from a Dealer, we gdiyegither charge or advance the Dealer an adénsiee. Dealer acquisition fees

deferred origination costs are applied to the ¢agryalue of finance receivables and are accratém e@arnings as an adjustment to the »
over the estimated life of the Contract using titerest method.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Repossessed and Other As:

If a Contract obligor fails to make or keep prorsiser payments, or if the obligor is uncooperativeattempts to evade contact or hide
vehicle, a supervisor will review the collectiortiaity relating to the account to determine if repession of the vehicle is warranted. Gene
such a decision will occur between the 45th and @@ly past the obliga’payment due date, but could occur sooner or, ldégrending on th
specific circumstances. At the time the vehicleeigossessed we stop accruing interest on the @tnérad reclassify the remaining Cont
balance to the line item "Other assets" on our Glitlsted Balance Sheet at its estimated fair vidas costs to sell. Included in other asse
the accompanying balance sheets are repossessietevgiending sale of $5.7 million and $4.5 milliah December 31, 2012 and 2(
respectively.

Treatment of Securitizations
Our term securitization structure has generallynteefollows:

We sell Contracts we acquire to a wholly-owned gdgmurpose subsidiary (" SP9,"which has been established for the limited psepo
buying and reselling our contracts. The SPS thamsters the same Contracts to another entity, dilpia statutory trust (" Trust): The Trus
issues interest-bearing asset-backed securitiedtés "), in a principal amount equal to or less thandggregate principal balance of
contracts. We typically sell these contracts toThest at face value and without recourse, exdegt tepresentations and warranties simil
those provided by the Dealer to us are providedudyto the Trust. One or more investors purchaseNies issued by the Trust (tHe
Noteholders" ); the proceeds from the sale of the Notes are tsenl to purchase the contracts from us. We maynret sell subordinat
Notes issued by the Trust. In addition, we haveviged " Credit Enhancement for the benefit of the financial institution prouig the
financial guaranty on the senior Notes (the “Natsurer”),if any, and the Noteholders in three forms: (1)irmitial cash deposit to a ba
account (a " Spread Accoun) held by the Trust, (2) overcollateralization bétNotes, where the principal balance of the Ns®sed is les
than the principal balance of the contracts, andn(3he form of subordinated Notes. The agreemgat&rning the securitization transacti
(collectively referred to as the " SecuritizatiogrAements ‘) require that the initial level of Credit Enhanaamhbe supplemented by a por
of collections from the contracts until the levélGredit Enhancement reaches specified levels, lwhie then maintained. The specified le
are generally computed as a percentage of theipainamount remaining unpaid under the relatedreatd. The specified levels at which
Credit Enhancement is to be maintained will varpateding on the performance of the portfolios oftcaxts held by the Trusts and on o
conditions. Such levels have increased and deatdes®m time to time based on performance of théousr portfolios, and have also variec
from one Trust to another.

Our warehouse securitization structures are siniilahe above, except that (i) the SPS that pussh#ise contracts pledges the contrac
secure promissory notes or loans that it issues,(i§nno increase in the required amount of Cré&dihancement is contemplated. Upon
sale of contracts in a securitization structuredaasecured financing, we retain as assets on onsdlidated Balance Sheet the securil
contracts and record as indebtedness the Notesdigsuhe transaction/

For all of the securitizations that we have congaesince July 2003 (other than the September 2008&aptember 2010 securitizations).
have the power to direct the most significant aditéig of the SPS. In addition, we have the oblgatio absorb losses and the rights to re«
benefits from the SPS, both of which could be piadi significant to the SPS. These types of sii@zation structures are treated as sec
financings, in which the receivables remain on camsolidated balance sheet, and the debt issu¢iteb$PS is shown as a securitization
debt of the Company.

Under the September 2008 and September 2010 seatioits and other term securitizations completgdrgo July 2003 (which we
structured as sales for financial accounting pugppswe removed from our Consolidated Balance Steetontracts sold and added to
Consolidated Balance Sheet (i) the cash receivedhy, and (ii) the estimated fair value of the anship interest that we retained in contr
sold in the securitization. That retained or realdaterest (the " Residual)'consists of (a) the cash held in the Spread Aagafiany, (b
overcollateralization, if any, (c) Notes retainddany, and (d) receivables from the Trust, whicblude the net interest receivables (" NIRs
NIRs represent the estimated discounted cash flowee received from the Trust in the future, nepidficipal and interest payable with res)
to the Notes, the premium paid to the Note Insuf@ny, and certain other expenses.

We recognize gains or losses attributable to amngés in the estimated fair value of the Residua#sns in fair value are recognizec
Other Income and losses are recorded as an imp#iloss in the Consolidated Statement of Operatid/e are not aware of an active ma
for the purchase or sale of interests such as ¢s@Rals; accordingly, we determine the estimaa@dvhlue of the Residuals by discounting
amount of anticipated cash flows that we estimaliebe released to us in the future (the cash oethmd), using a discount rate that we bel
is appropriate for the risks involved. The antitgzhcash flows may include collections from bothrent and charged off receivables. We t
used an effective pre-tax discount rate of 20%&apeum.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We receive periodic base servicing fees for theisieig and collection of the contracts. In additieve are entitled to the cash flows from
Trusts that represent collections on the contriacéxcess of the amounts required to pay principal interest on the Notes, the base serv
fees, and the premium paid to the Note Insurer,canthin other fees (such as trustee and custfia). Required principal payments on
Notes are generally defined as the payments seffiidb keep the principal balance of the Notes lefguthe aggregate principal balance of
related contracts (excluding those contracts thaelbeen charged off), or a petermined percentage of such balance. Where #naeptag
is less than 100%, the related Securitization Agesgs require accelerated payment of principall wind principal balance of the Note
reduced to the specified percentage. Such acoetepaincipal payment is said to create " overcetkization " of the Notes.

If the amount of cash required for payment of faagrest and principal on the senior Notes excabhdsamount collected during -
collection period, the shortfall is generally withdin from the Spread Account, if any. If the cashiected during the period exceeds
amount necessary for the above allocations plugined) principal payments on the subordinated Ndfesmy, and there is no shortfall in -
related Spread Account or other form of Credit Erdement, the excess is released to us. If the @tdit Enhancement amount is not ai
required level, then the excess cash collecte@taned in the Trust until the specified level chiaved. Cash in the Spread Accoun
restricted from our use. Cash held in the variopge&d Accounts is invested in high quality, ligindestment securities, as specified in
Securitization Agreements. In determining the valtithe Residuals, we have estimated the futuesrat prepayments, delinquencies, defe
default loss severity, and recovery rates, asfali@se factors affect the amount and timing ofakmated cash flows. Our estimates are
on historical performance of comparable contracts.

Following a securitization that is structured asade for financial accounting purposes, we recagimiterest income on the balance of
Residuals. In addition, we will recognize additibrevenue in other income if the actual performaofcthe contracts related to the Residue
better than our estimate of the value of the Redidfithe actual performance of the contracts dsse than our estimate, then a reduction t
carrying value of the Residuals and a related impet charge would be required. In a securitizatractured as a secured financing
financial accounting purposes, interest incomeegnized when accrued under the terms of theeteladntracts and, therefore, presents
potential for fluctuations in performance when camga to the approach used in a transaction stedtas a sale for financial accoun
purposes.

In all of our term securitizations, whether treadesdsecured financings or as sales, we have treedfihe receivables (through a subsidiar
the securitization Trust. The difference betweentthio structures is that in securitizations that aeated as secured financings we repol
assets and liabilities of the securitization Trastour Consolidated Balance Sheet. Under both tsires the Noteholdersind the relate
securitization Truststecourse to us for failure of the contract obligtirsnake payments on a timely basis is limitedgéneral, to our Finan
receivables, Spread Accounts and Residuals.

Servicing

We consider the contractual servicing fee receimedur managed portfolio held by noonsolidated subsidiaries to be equal to ade
compensation. Additionally, we consider that thfeses would fairly compensate a substitute servigieould one be required. As a result
servicing asset or liability has been recognizegtvi8ing fees received on the managed portfolial HBl noneonsolidated subsidiaries
reported as income when earned. Servicing feesvast®n the managed portfolio held by consolidatalsidiaries are included in intel
income when earned. Servicing costs are chargeaense as incurred. Servicing fees receivablegtwaie included in Other Assets in
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, repriEsearned but not yet remitted to us by theeeus

Furniture and Equipmer
Furniture and equipment are stated at cost net@iraulated depreciation. We calculate depreciaiiging the straightine method over tt
estimated useful lives of the assets, which ramgm fthree to five years. Assets held under capéi@ses and leasehold improvements

amortized over the lesser of the estimated usafes lof the assets or the related lease terms. igation expense on assets acquired L
capital lease is included with depreciation exparsewned assets.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disp@$ed

Long-ived assets and certain identifiable intangibles reviewed for impairment whenever events or charig circumstances indicate 1
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recbigerRecoverability of assets to be held and useddasured by a comparison of the car
amount of an asset to future net cash flows exfdotée generated by the asset. If such asset®asidered to be impaired, the impairmel
be recognized is measured by the amount by whieledihrying amount of the assets exceeds the fhie vd the assets. Assets to be dispos
are reported at the lower of carrying amount arvyalue less costs to sell.
Other Income

The following table presents the primary componehnSther Income:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Direct mail revenue $ 594¢ % 5,40¢
Convenience fees charged to oblig 2,907 2,86¢
Recoveries on previously char¢off contracts 392 57€
Sales tax refund 227 39t
Other 114 1,67¢
$ 9,58¢ § 10,927

Earnings (Loss) Per Sha
The following table illustrates the computationbafsic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011
(In thousands,
except per share data)

Numerator:
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings (loss)gbeaire $ 69,40¢ % (14,460

Denominator
Denominator for basic earnings (loss) per shareighted
average number of common shares outstanding dtiving

year 19,47: 19,01
Incremental common shares attributable to exewafise

outstanding options and warrants 6,00¢ —
Denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per share 25,47¢ 19,01
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 356 $ (0.76)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 272 % (0.76)

Incremental shares of 979,000 and 2.9 million eslab stock options and warrants have been excltrded the diluted earnings per sh
calculation for the years ended December 31, 20t22811, respectively, because the effect isdihttive. The exercise prices of these s
options were greater than the average market pfitike Companys common shares or the Company was in a net lasgooand, therefor
the effect would be anti-dilutive to earnings (lJogsr share.

Deferral and Amortization of Debt Issuance C¢
Costs related to the issuance of debt are defamddamortized using the interest method over timtractual or expected term of the rel:

debt.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income Taxe

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consoldidggleral income tax return and combined or s@ode state franchise tax returns
certain states. We utilize the asset and liabitigthod of accounting for income taxes, under whieferred income taxes are recognized fo
future tax consequences attributable to the diffees between the financial statement values ofiegiassets and liabilities and their respe«
tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilitiesra@sured using enacted tax rates expected to &pfayable income in the years in which tf
temporary differences are expected to be recovaredttled. The effect on deferred taxes of a chamgax rates is recognized in income in
period that includes the enactment date. We estimataluation allowance against that portion of deéerred tax asset whose utilizatiol
future periods is not more than likely.

Purchases of Company Stc
We record purchases of our own common stock atasabtreat the shares as retired.
Stock Option Plan

We recognize compensation costs in the financéésients for all shafeased payments granted subsequent to January @ b26868d on tt
grant date fair value estimated in accordance thighprovisions of ASC 718 “Stock CompensatioBbmpensation cost is recognized ove!
required service period, generally defined as #sting period.

New Accounting Pronouncemel

Effective January 2012, the Company adopted ASU200104, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measerg and Disclosu
Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs (ASU 2011-84U 201104 represents the converged guidance of the FASBtlan Internation:
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) on fair value m@ament. A variety of measures are included inupéate intended to either clal
existing fair value measurement requirements, chgagticular principles requirements for measufaig value or for disclosing informati
about fair value measurements. For many of theirempents, the FASB does not intend to change tipdicapion of existing requiremer
under Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) ToBRD, Fair Value Measurements. ASU 2@l was effective for interim and ann
periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The wopf this update did not have a material impatthe consolidated financial statements

Effective January 2012, the Company adopted ASU 204.1-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income (28UL-05). ASU 20105 is
intended to increase the prominence of items redart other comprehensive income and to facilitatievergence of accounting guidanc
this area with that of the IASB. The amendmentsiiregthat all nonowner changes in shareholdeggiity be presented in a single contint
statement of comprehensive income or in two sepdvat consecutive statements. In December 2011FA®B issued ASU No. 20112,
Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of thfed&ive Date for Amendments to the PresentatioiRetlassifications of ltems Out
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accogn8tandards Update No. 2011-05 (ASU 2011-12). ABW1A2 defers the provisio
of ASU 201165 that require the presentation of reclassificatidjustments on the face of both the statemeimtcoime and statement of ot
comprehensive income. Amendments under ASU 201th&bwere not deferred under ASU 2012 will be applied retrospectively for fisi
years, and interim periods within those years, ti@gg after December 15, 2011. The adoption ofupigate did not have a material impac
the consolidated financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures abotgefiing Assets and Liabilities (AS
2011-11). The amendments in ASU 2011 require the disclosure of information on offsgftand related arrangements for financial
derivative instruments to enable users of its foi@nstatements to understand the effect of thasgngements on its financial positi
Amendments under ASU 20111t will be applied retrospectively for fiscal yeaasd interim periods within those years, beginraftgr Januai
1, 2013. The Company is evaluating the effectnif,adoption of ASU 2011-11 will have on its corndated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Acclaed Other Comprehensive (A
2013-02). This guidance is the culmination of th&SB’s deliberation on reporting reclassification adjustts from accumulated otl
comprehensive income (AOCI). The amendments in 28W302 do not change the current requirements for tegpnet income or oth
comprehensive income. However, the amendmentsreedisiclosure of amounts reclassified out of AOCit$ entirety, by component, on
face of the statement of operations or in the nitteseto. Amounts that are not required to be ssdii@d in their entirety to net income mus
crossreferenced to other disclosures that provide amfuhdi detail. This standard is effective prospedyiier annual and interim reporti
periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The Gmyps evaluating the effect, if any, the adopt@nASU 201302 will have on it
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America require:
to make estimates and assumptions that affecteimerted amounts of assets and liabilities as ofilie of the financial statements, as we
the reported amounts of income and expenses dthimgeported periods. Specifically, a number oineeties were made in connection v
determining an appropriate allowance for finanaditrlossesyaluing finance receivables measured at fair valug the related debt, valu
residual interest in securitizations, accreting awguisition fees, amortizing deferred costs, vejuvarrants issued, and recording deferre
assets and reserves for uncertain tax positidhese are material estimates that could be subtepth changes in the near term :
accordingly, actual results could differ from th@stimates.

Reclassificatior

Certain amounts for the prior year have been reifiad to conform to the current yearmresentation with no effect on previously repd
earnings or shareholders’ equity.

Financial Covenant

Certain of our securitization transactions, ourdeal interest financing and our warehouse cregitlities contain various financial covene
requiring certain minimum financial ratios and suSuch covenants include maintaining minimunels\of liquidity and net worth and r
exceeding maximum leverage levels. In additiontadersecuritization and non-securitization relatketht contain crosdefault provisions th
would allow certain creditors to declare a defafila default occurred under a different facilitys Af December 31, 2012 we were
compliance with all such financial covenants.
(2) Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash and cash equivatenunts relating to our outstanding securitiratrusts and credit facilities. The amc
of restricted cash on our consolidated balancetsheszs $104.4 million and $159.2 million as of Deber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Certain of our financing agreements require thaiest@blish cash reserves, or spread accountsdamoadl credit enhancement. These «
reserves, which are included in restricted cashe®25.6 million and $82.4 million as of Decemb#y 3012 and 2011, respectively.

(3) Finance Receivables
We consider our portfolio of finance receivabled&ohomogenous and consist of a single segmentlass. We analyze credit performa
primarily in the aggregate rather than stratifigatby any particular credit quality indicator. Tfalowing table presents the component

Finance Receivables, net of unearned interest:

December 31

2012 2011
Finance Receivable (In thousands)
Automobile finance receivables, net of unearneéret $ 795,78t $ 536,77:
Less: Unearned acquisition fees and discounts (31,449 (20,149
Finance Receivables $ 764,34. $ 516,63

We consider an automobile contract delinquent wdrenbligor fails to make at least 90% of a contralty due payment by the following ¢
date, which date may have been extended withimicglitnitations specified in the servicing agreemtseifhe period of delinquency is basel
the number of days payments are contractually ¢ghaest Automobile contracts less than 31 days deéingare not included. In cases where
due date may have been extended, the only modificaf terms is to advance the obligoriext due date by one month and extend the mg
date of the receivable by one month. There arether@oncessions such as a reduction in interést fi@argiveness of principal or of accn
interest. Accordingly, we consider such extensionise insignificant delays in payments rather ttraabled debt restructurings. The follow
table summarizes the delinquency status of finaeceivables as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:
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December 31

2012 2011
(In thousands)

Delinquency Statu

Current $ 764,74: $ 512,80:
31- 60 days 16,92¢ 9,34«
61- 90 days 9,01¢ 6,03¢
91 + days 5,101 8,59:

$ 795,78t $ 536,77

Finance receivables totaling $5.1 million and $13i0ion at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respegtjviehve been placed on naoerua
status as a result of their delinquency status.

The following table presents a summary of the @gtifor the allowance for finance credit losseg, thee years ended December 31, 2012
2011:

December 31

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Balance at beginning of ye $ 10,35 % 13,16¢
Provision for credit losse 33,49t 15,50¢
Chargeoffs (37,639 (35,51¢)
Recoveries 13,38¢ 17,19:
Balance at end of year $ 19,59: § 10,35:

Excluded from finance receivables are contracts wexe previously classified as finance receivalles were reclassified as other as
because we have repossessed the vehicle secueil@ptiiract. The following table presents a sumno&rsuch repossessed inventory toge
with the allowance for losses on repossessed iowent

December 31

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Gross balance of repossessions in inver $ 12,10 % 9,24¢
Allowance for losses on repossessed inventory (6,389 (4,76%)
Net repossessed inventory included in other a $ 571t  § 4,481

(4) Finance Receivables Measured at Fair Value

In September 2011 we purchased approximately $2hill®n of finance receivables from Fireside Baiikese receivables are recorde:
our balance sheet at fair value.

The following table presents the components of f@eaReceivables measured at fair value and incl&d€8,000 and $1.5 million
repossessed inventory at December 31, 2012 andhibere31, 2011, respectively:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Finance Receivables Measured at Fair Vi (In thousands)
Finance receivables and accrued interest, netedmed interes $ 60,80« $ 172,16
Less: Fair value adjustment (1,130 (11,919
Finance receivables measured at fair value $ 59,66¢ $ 160,25:
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The following table summarizes the delinquencyustatf finance receivables measured at fair valuef &ecember 31, 2012 and Decen
31, 2011:
December 31, December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)

Delinquency Statu

Current $ 57,55¢ $ 164,62
31- 60 days 2,20¢ 4.87:
61- 90 days 71¢ 1,767
91 + days 332 90:<

$ 60,80« $ 172,16

(5) Residual Interest in Securitizations

In September 2008 we completed a structured lo&n isawhich we retained a residual interest. Thenaiming receivables from su
transaction were reecuritized in September 2010. The residual inténethe cash flows from this transaction was $4iion and $4.4 milliol
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, aasl determined using a discounted cash flow mdue included estimates -
prepayments and losses. The discount rate utilizzesl 20%. The assumptions utilized were based orhistorical performance adjusted
current market conditions.
(6) Furniture and Equipment

The following table presents the components ofifura and equipment:

December 31

2012 2011

(In thousands)
Furniture and fixture $ 1,13¢ % 1,13¢
Computer and telephone equipm 3,61¢ 3,22¢
Leasing asse! - 673
Leasehold improvements 633 63C
5,391 5,67(
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (4,665 (4,79%)
$ 72€ % 87¢

Depreciation expense totaled $543,000 and $67Zd@08e years ended December 31, 2012 and 201decteely.
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(7) Securitization Trust Debt

We have completed numerous term securitizatiors#retions that are structured as secured borroviimgmancial accounting purposes. -
debt issued in these transactions is shown onansadidated balance sheets as “Securitization treist,” and the components of such deb!
summarized in the following table:

Weighted

Average

Final Receivables Outstanding Outstanding Interest

Scheduled Pledged at Principal at Principal at Rate at

December December December December
Payment 31, Initial 31, 31, 31,
Series Date (1) 2012 (2) Principal 2012 2011 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

CPS 200-B January 201 $ - $ 257,50( $ - $ 6,60 -
CPS 200-C June 201 - 247,50! - 14,87: -
CPS 200-D August 201 - 220,00( - 15,71¢ -
CPS 200-A November 201 - 290,00( - 34,31: -
CPS 200-TFC December 201 - 113,29: - 7,771 -
CPS 200-B January 201 - 314,99¢ - 40,91¢ -
CPS 200-C May 201« - 327,49¢ - 52,72 -
CPS 200-A October 201 19,91¢ 310,35¢ 40,71 77,28¢ 8.85%
Page Five Fundin January 201 22,68¢ 46,05¢ 21,25: 36,70: 9.44Y%
CPS 201-A April 2018 51,71¢ 100,36 48,36¢ 75,62¢ 3.92¥
CPS 201-B September 20: 73,99¢ 109,93t 70,86 101,26¢ 4.59%
CPS 201-C March 201! 89,75¢ 119,40( 88,26¢ 119,27: 5.01¥%
CPS 201-A June 201 107,16: 155,00( 105,48! - 3.59%
CPS 201-B September 20: 128,32: 141,50( 122,32¢ - 3.08%
CPS 201-C December 201 137,45t 147,00( 135,21¢ - 2.39¥%
CPS 2012-D (3) March 202 112,76: 160,00( 160,00( - 1.96%

$ 743,77¢ $ 3,060,400 $ 792,49 $ 583,06!

(1) The Final Scheduled Payment Date represents fagallmaturity of the securitization trust debt. @#ezation trust debt is expected
become due and to be paid prior to those datesedas amortization of the finance receivables péedtp the Trusts. Expec
payments, which will depend on the performanceidi seceivables, as to which there can be no asmaaare $314.8 million in 201
$220.8 million in 2014, $143.8 million in 2015, $83nillion in 2016, and $29.2 million in 201

(2) Includes repossessed assets that are includedhar@tssets on our Consolidated Balance St
(3) An additional $45.0 million of receivables weredgded to CPS 20:-D in January 2013

All of the securitization trust debt was issuegiivate placement transactions to qualified instinal investors. The debt was issued thrc
wholly-owned, bankruptcy remote subsidiaries of CPS asddared by the assets of such subsidiaries, bltynother assets of the Compe
Principal and interest payments on the senior nfiesour securitization transactions through 2008 guaranteed by financial guare
insurance policies.

The terms of the various securitization agreemsgitted to the issuance of the securitization tdedtt require that certain delinquency
credit loss criteria be met with respect to thdatetal pool, and require that we maintain minimievels of liquidity and net worth and 1
exceed maximum leverage levels. We were in compdianth all such covenants as of December 31, 2012.

We are responsible for the administration and ctibe of the contracts. The securitization agredmeaitso require certain funds be hel
restricted cash accounts to provide additionalitmhancement for the Notes or to be applied tkarzayments on the securitization t
debt. As of December 31, 2012, restricted cash nimgevarious agreements totaled approximately $l64llion. This amount includes $4!
million in pre-funding proceeds related to CPS 2@l aAnterest expense on the securitization trust detomposed of the stated rate of inte
plus amortization of additional costs of borrowirgdditional costs of borrowing include facility feeinsurance premiums, amortizatior
transaction costs, and amortization of discountsuired on the notes at the time of issuance. Deflefinancing costs related to
securitization trust debt are amortized using thierest method. Accordingly, the effective cosbofrowing of the securitization trust deb
greater than the stated rate of interest.
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The wholly-owned, bankruptcy remote subsidiariesC®S were formed to facilitate the above abseked financing transactions. Sim
bankruptcy remote subsidiaries issue the debtandatg under our warehouse line of credit. Banlaypemote refers to a legal structur
which it is expected that the applicable entity Wdomot be included in any bankruptcy filing by fiarent or affiliates. All of the assets of th
subsidiaries have been pledged as collateral forétated debt. All such transactions, treatedeasired financings for accounting and
purposes, are treated as sales for all other pespdscluding legal and bankruptcy purposes. Nonthe assets of these subsidiaries
available to pay other creditors of the Companisoaffiliates.

(8) Debt
The terms of our debt outstanding at December @12 2nd 2011 are summarized below:

December 31
2012 2011
(In thousands

Residual interest financin

Notes secured by our residual interests in seeatitins. In September 2012, the maturity was exe

to September 2013. The aggregate indebtedness thiddacility was $13.8 million at December

2012. It bears interest at 12.875% over-month LIBOR, which was 13.08% at December 31, 2 $ 13,77 $ 21,88¢

Senior secured debt, related pa

Notes payable to Levine Leichtman Capital Partd¥€rsL.P. (“LLCP”). LLCP is considered a relal

party because its beneficial ownership interesbun common stock is greater than 20%. The 1|

consist of three 16% term notes for $52.75 milndue in December 2013. The amount outstandi

December 31, 2012 is net of the unamortized dedstodint of $2.6 million relating to the valuatior

1,225,000 shares of stock, warrants to purchaskll,64 shares of our common stock at an ext

price of $1.3982, warrants to purchase 285,781uofoommon stock at an exercise price of $0.01

$1.4 million in cash paid to the lender at issuaht@ddition, the unamortized debt discount inekith

valuation of 2,750,000 shares of common stock @d3million in cash paid to the lender at issuani

one of the 16% notes. All LLCP debt is secured blystantially all of our assets that are not seg

warehouse, residual interest or securitizatiort lebt. 50,13t 58,34«
Subordinated renewable not

Notes bearing interest rates ranging from 6.009468@5%, with a weighted average rate of 14.:

Maturities range from January 2013 to December 2022 a weighted average maturity of June 2

We began issuing the notes in June 2005 and irtussriance costs of $250,000. Payments are

monthly, quarterly, annually or upon maturity basedhe terms of the individual notes. 23,28 20,75(

$ 87,18¢ $ 100,97

In December 2010 we entered into a $100 million-pear warehouse credit line with affiliates of Golim Sachs & Co. and Fortr
Investment Group. The facility is structured toallus to fund a portion of the purchase price dbawbile contracts by borrowing again:
credit facility to our consolidated subsidiary P&je Funding LLC. The facility provides for advascgp to 82% of eligible finance receival
and the loans under it accrue interest at a rateneimonth LIBOR plus 5.73% per annum, with a minimurteraf 7.23% per annum.
December 2012 we amended the terms of this fatdigxtend the maturity date from December 201Retforuary 2013. There was $4.3 mill
outstanding under this facility at December 31,201

On May 11, 2012, we entered into an additional $t0l0on oneyear warehouse credit line with Citibank, N.A. Thaeility is structured t
allow us to fund a portion of the purchase pricaatiomobile contracts by borrowing from a creddilfty to our consolidated subsidiary Pi
Eight Funding, LLC. The facility provides for effiace advances up to 88.4% of eligible finance reables. The loans under the facility act
interest at onenonth LIBOR plus 6.00% per annum, with a minimureraf 6.75% per annum. At December 30, 2012 there $17.4 millio
outstanding under this facility.

The outstanding debt on our warehouse lines ofitoreas $21.7 million as of December 31, 2012, coregdo $25.4 million outstanding
of December 31, 2011.

The costs incurred in conjunction with the abovetdsre recorded as deferred financing costs oratitempanying consolidated bala
sheets and are more fully described in Note 1.

We must comply with certain affirmative and negatoovenants related to debt facilities, which regyjuamong other things, that we main
certain financial ratios related to liquidity, ngbrth and capitalization. Further covenants inclathgters relating to investments, acquisiti
restricted payments and certain dividend restnctiGee the discussion of financial covenants ire No
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The following table summarizes the contractual exglected maturity amounts of debt as of Decembg2@12:

Residual Senior Subordinated
interest secured renewable
Contractual maturity date financing (1) debt (2) notes Total
(In thousands)

2013 $ 13,77 $ 50,13¢ $ 12,11¢ $ 76,02¢
2014 - - 5,521 5,521
2015 - - 1,55¢ 1,55¢
2016 - - 2,73¢ 2,73¢
2017 - - 16€ 16€
Thereafter - - 1,181 1,181
Total $ 13,77 $ 50,13¢ $ 23,28: $ 87,18¢

(1) The contractual maturity date for the residual et financing debt was extended to September :

(2) The senior secured debt is shown net of unamortizbtl discounts of $2.6 million. On a gross basesgcheduled maturity of this d
is $52.8 million in December 201

(9) Shareholders’ Equity
Common Stock

Holders of common stock are entitled to such diwdseas our Board of Directors, in its discretiomyndeclare out of funds available, suk
to the terms of any outstanding shares of prefesteck and other restrictions. In the event ofiligtion of the Company, holders of comr
stock are entitled to receivpro rata, all of the assets of the Company available fetritiution, after payment of any liquidation prefiece ti
the holders of outstanding shares of preferredkstbiolders of the shares of common stock have noversion or preemptive or ot
subscription rights and there are no redemptiosirdkiing fund provisions applicable to the commarckt

We are required to comply with various operating &inancial covenants defined in the agreement&igong the warehouse lines of cre
senior debt, residual interest financing and subatdd debt. The covenants for the senior debiguwakinterest financing and subordine
debt restrict the payment of certain distributidns|uding dividends (See Note 8).

Stock Purchases

At five different times between 2000 and 2011, Board of Directors has authorized the repurchasgpdb $34.5 million of our securitit
As of December 31, 2012, we had purchased $5.domilbrincipal amount of debt securities, and $28lion of our common stoc
representing 9,800,720 shares.

Options and Warrants

In 2006, the Company adopted and its shareholggsaed the CPS 2006 Long-Term Equity IncentivenRtae “2006 Plan"pursuant t
which our Board of Directors, or a dusiythorized committee thereof, may grant stock aotioestricted stock, restricted stock units andk
appreciation rights to our employees or employdesuo subsidiaries, to directors of the Companyd amindividuals acting as consultant:
the Company or its subsidiaries. In June 2008 arddy 2012, the shareholders of the Company appraveamendment to the 2006 Pla
increase the maximum number of shares that maylbect to awards under the 2006 Plan to 5,000,0@07a200,000, respectively, in e
case plus shares authorized under prior plans angsued. Options that have been granted unde2Gfié Plan and a previous plan appr¢
in 1997 have been granted at an exercise pricel éguar greater than) the stoskfair market value at the date of the grant, wéms
generally of 10 years and vesting generally owear fiears.
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The per share weightealrerage fair value of stock options granted dutivggyears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was &adL$0.5:
respectively. That fair value was estimated usimgBlackScholes option pricing model using the weightedrage assumptions noted in
following table. We estimate the expected life atle option as the average of the vesting periodthadontractual life of the option. T
volatility estimate is based on the historical ¥ititg of our stock over the period that equals tiepected life of the option. Volatili
assumptions ranged from 54% to 82% for 2012 and &2%1% for 2011. The riskee interest rate is based on the yield on a Ur&asur
bond with a maturity comparable to the expectasidif the option. The dividend yield is estimatedéozero based on our intention not to i
dividends for the foreseeable future.

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011
Expected life (years 5.62 4.3
Risk-free interest rat 1.32% 2.17%
Volatility 7% 80%

Expected dividend yiel - -

For the year ended December 31, 2012 and 201leeeeded stockased compensation costs in the amount of $1.ioméind $1.5 millior
respectively. As of December 31, 2012, unrecogn&tedkbased compensation costs to be recognized oveefptriods was equal to $
million. This amount will be recognized as expeaser a weighted-average period of 3.1 years.

At December 31, 2012, the options outstanding aedcgsable had intrinsic values of $32.9 milliordeB21.1 million, respectively. The ta
intrinsic value of options exercised was $1.2 milland $4,000 for the year ended December 31, 8042011, respectively. New shares \
issued for all options exercised during the yeateenDecember 2012 and cash of $847,000 was receiveax benefit of $357,000 w
recorded for the options exercised in 2012. At Datmer 31, 2012, there were a total of 1.9 milliowitidnal shares available for grant un
the 2006 Plan.

Stock option activity for the year ended Decemldgr2®12 for stock options under the 2006 and 198@sis as follows:

Weighted
Number of Weighted Average
Shares Average Remaining
(in Exercise Contractual
thousands) Price Term
Options outstanding at the beginning of pel 8,431 % 1.5¢ N/A
Grantec 1,34( 1.72 N/A
Exercisec (632) 1.3¢ N/A
Forfeited/Expired (487) 1.41 N/A
Options outstanding at the end of period 8,65: $ 1.5¢ 6.07 years
Options exercisable at the end of period 5702 $ 1.6¢ 4.87 years

The per share weighted average exercise priceook stptions granted whose exercise price was gquak market price of the stock on
grant date during the years ended December 31, 2042011, was $1.72 and $1.01, respectively.

The per share weighted average exercise priceook giptions granted whose exercise price was atimenarket price of the stock on

grant date during the year ended December 31, 2%1$1.67. We did not issue any stock options wittexercise price above the market |
of the stock on the grant date in the year endezkidéer 31, 2012.
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We have not issued any stock options with an egengiice below the market price of the stock orngttaat date.

On June 30, 2008, we entered into a series of agnets pursuant to which a lender purchased a $1mfive-year, fixed rate, seni
secured note from us. In July 2008, in conjunctigith the amendment of the residual interest finagcas discussed above, the lel
purchased an additional $15 million note with sabsally the same terms as the $10 million notes®ant to the June 30, 2008 secur
purchase agreement, we issued to the lender 1@258ltares of common stock. In addition, we issheddnder two warrants: (i) warrants |
we refer to as the FMV Warrants, which are exehtes#or 1,611,114 shares of our common stock, agxamcise price of $1.39818 per sh
and (ii) warrants that we refer to as the N Waianthich are exercisable for 285,781 shares otomrmon stock, at a nominal exercise p
Both the FMV Warrants and the N Warrants are egafiie in whole or in part and at any time up to iaethding June 30, 2018.

In connection with the amendment to and partiahyepent of our residual interest financing in JudP&, we issued warrants exercisable
2,500,000 common shares for $4,071,429. The warnmapresent the right to purchase 2,500,000 CPSnooirshares at a nominal exer
price, at any time prior to July 10, 2018. In Mag10 we repurchased 500,000 shares for $1.0 millio

A warrant to purchase 1,158,087 shares of our camstack at an exercise price of $0.879 per shamtstanding at December 31, 2
which was issued in connection with our $50 milli@volving credit facility established in SeptemR&09. In addition, warrants to purch
500,000 of our common shares at an exercise pfis¢.d1 per share were issued to certain note psers in our March 2010 $50 million te
funding facility.

(10) Interest Income
The following table presents the components ofr@sincome:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Interest on finance receivabl $ 174,01¢  $ 126,11¢
Residual interest incorr 45€ 814
Other interest income 837 924
Interest income $ 175,31: % 127,85t

(11) Income Taxes
Income taxes consist of the following:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Current federal tax expense (bene $ 36 % =
Current state tax expense (bene 49 -
Deferred federal tax expense (bene 2,82¢ (4,877
Deferred state tax expense (bene (6549) (239)
Change in valuation allowance (62,81)) 5,10¢
Income tax expense (benefit) $ (60,227) $ -

F- 22




Income tax expense/(benefit) for the years endezkiber 31, 2012 and 2011 differs from the amoutdrdened by applying the statut

CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

federal rate of 35% to income before income tasef®iows:

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011
(In thousands)

Expense (benefit) at federal tax r $ 3,21t % (5,06)
State taxes, net of federal income tax ef 1,19C (232
Other adjustments to tax rese (1,159 (36€)
Effect of change in state tax re (1,109 1,08t
Change in valuation allowan (62,81) 5,10¢
Stocl-based compensatic 321 52C
Other 122 (1,057)

$  (60,22) $ -

The tax effected cumulative temporary differendes give rise to deferred tax assets and liakiliie of December 31, 2012 and 2011 a
follows:

December 31
2012 2011
(In thousands)

Deferred Tax Assets:

Finance receivable $ 10,84( % 3,07:
Accrued liabilities 1,60¢ 1,20¢
Furniture and equipme 218 10z
NOL carryforwards 48,14( 54,82«
Built in losses 14,40¢ 15,09¢
Pension accruz 2,08( 3,401
AMT credit carryforwarc 69t 282
Other 712 91¢
Total deferred tax assets 78,69: 78,90:
Valuation allowance - (61,699
78,69: 17,21(

Deferred Tax Liabilities:
FAS 91 deferred cos (1,119 (519
Investment residual (1,939 (1,699
Total deferred tax liabilities (3,057 (2,210
Net deferred tax asset $ 75,64( % 15,00(

CPS acquired certain net operating losses andibuidss assets as part of the acquisitions of NHiNancial Corp. (“MFN”)in 2002 and TF
Enterprises, Inc. (“TFC”)n 2003. Moreover, both MFN and TFC have undergam@wnership change for purposes of Internal Rev&uad:
(“IRC”") Section 382. In general, IRC Section 382 imposearanual limitation on the ability of a loss corpiiwa (that is, a corporation witt
net operating loss (“NOL") carryforward, credit pgorward, or certain built-in losses (“BILs")) tatilize its preechange NOL carryforwards
BILs to offset taxable income arising after an ovshé change.

In determining the possible future realization efaired tax assets, we have considered future l@katpme from the following sources:
reversal of taxable temporary differences; anddk)planning strategies that, if necessary, woeldnipplemented to accelerate taxable inc
into years in which net operating losses might otiiee expire. As of December 31, 2011 our tax plagrstrategies included the prospec
sale of certain assets such as finance receivaiEdual interests in securitized finance recdasbcharged off receivables and base serv
rights. The expected proceeds for such asset lsatebeen estimated based on our expectation ofuyats of the assets would consider t
reasonable assumptions for net cash flows andnedjtates of return for each of the various aggetst. At December 31, 2011 we recogniz
$61.7 million valuation allowance against that fortof the deferred tax assets whose utilizatiofutore periods was not more than likely.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized subject to reamags judgment that realization is more likely than.natvaluation allowance
recognized for a deferred tax asset if, based ewttight of the available evidence, it is more lijjkidnan not that some portion of the defe
tax asset will not be realized. In making such prdgnts, significant weight is given to evidence ttzm be objectively verified. As a resul
the unprecedented adverse changes in the markstdaritizations, the recession and the resultigh levels of unemployment that occurre
2008 and 2009, we incurred substantial operatisgds from 2009 through 2011 which led us to esfaldi valuation allowance again:
substantial portion of our deferred tax assets. él@w, since the fourth quarter of 2011, we haventeg five consecutive quarters of increa
profitability, observed improvement in credit meg;i and produced reliable internal financial profets. Furthermore, we have demonstr
an ability to increase our volumes of contract pases, grow our managed portfolio and obtain dfsttese short and long term financings
our finance receivables. As a result of these d@hdrdactors, we determined at December 31, 2042 based on the weight of the availi
objective evidence, it was more likely than nottthe@ would generate sufficient future taxable ineota utilize our net deferred tax ass
Accordingly, we reversed the related valuationvadlace of $62.8 million in the fourth quarter of 201

Although realization is not assured, we believé tha realization of the recognized net deferredasset of $75.6 million as of December
2012 is more likely than not based on forecasttaréunet earnings. Our net deferred tax asset ®6dmillion consists of approximately $6
million of net U.S. federal deferred tax assets &h8.2 million of net state deferred tax asset® major components of the deferred tax :
are $62.5 million in net operating loss carryfordeand built in losses and $13.1 million in netut#bns which have not yet been taken
tax return. We estimate that we would need to geaeapproximately $189 million of taxable incomeridg the applicable carryforwa
periods to realize fully our federal and statedeferred tax assets.

As of December 31, 2012, we had net operating ¢dasg/forwards for federal and state income tax pseg of $109.9 million and $18
million, respectively. The federal net operatingdes begin to expire in 2022. The state net opegriisses begin to expire in 2013.

The following is a tabular reconciliation of thedbamounts of unrecognized tax benefits includitigrest and penalties for the year:

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Unrecognized tax bene- opening balanc $ 2,408 % 3,022
Gross increase- tax positions in prior perio 543
Gross decreast tax positions in prior perio -
Gross increase- tax positions in current peric 25C -
Settlement: (153%) -
Lapse of statute of limitations (1,177 (1,160
Unrecognized tax benefit - ending balance $ 1,331 $ 2,40t

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax bemefitDecember 31, 2012, are $1.3 million of taxelienthat, if recognized, would affect-
effective tax rate.

We recognize a tax position as a benefit only i itmore likely than not'that the tax position would be sustained in a teat@nation, with
tax examination being presumed to occur. The ammatgnized is the largest amount of tax benefit th greater than 50% likely of be
realized on examination. For tax positions not ingethe “more likely than not” test, no tax bendfirecorded.

We recognize potential interest and penaltiesedl& unrecognized tax benefits as income tax esgpeRelated to the uncertain tax ben
noted above, we reduced penalties by $160,000 enckased gross interest by $289,000 during 20120fA3ecember 31, 2012, we hi
recognized a total liability for penalties of $0dagross interest of $407,000.

We anticipate a settlement with the taxing autfesitvithin the next 12 months. The expected setttgramount is approximately $665,!
including interest.

We are subject to taxation in the US and varioategtirisdictions. The Comparsytax years for 2008 through 2011 are subject éonéxatior
by the tax authorities. With few exceptions, we acelonger subject to U.S. federal, state, or l@aminations by tax authorities for ye
before 2008.
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(12) Related Party Transactions

In December 2007, one of our directors purchasi4l@million subordinated renewable note pursuauwiir ongoing program of issuing si
notes to the public. The note was purchased throlughregistered agent and under the same termsanitions, including the interest re
that were offered to other purchasers at the theenbte was issued. As of December 31, 2012, $dlid@mremains outstanding on this note.
(13) Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

The Company leases its facilities and certain cderpequipment under nazencelable operating leases, which expire throif8 2Futur
minimum lease payments at December 31, 2012, uhdse leases are due during the years ended Dec8tnhs follows:

Amount
(In
thousands)
2013 $ 2,712
2014 2,58(
2015 2,44C
2016 1,99¢
2017 6632
Thereafter 282
Total minimum lease payments $ 10,67

Rent expense for the years ended December 31,£212011, was $2.9 million and $3.2 million, regjwedy.

Our facility leases contain certain rental conaassiand escalating rental payments, which are rézed as adjustments to rental expenst
are amortized on a straight-line basis over thmgeanf the leases.

Litigation

Stanwich LitigationWe were for some time a defendant in a class atimn“Stanwich Case'Hrought in the California Superior Court, |
Angeles County. The original plaintiffs in that easere persons entitled to receive regular paym@ms“Settlement Paymentsfiursuant t
earlier settlements of claims, generally persomailry claims, against unrelated defendants. StamWinancial Services Corp. (“Stanwichgy
affiliate of the former chairman of our board ofetitors, is the entity that was obligated to pay Settlement Payments. Stanwich defaulte
its payment obligations to the plaintiffs and im@w001 filed for reorganization under the BankeypEode, in the federal bankruptcy coul
Connecticut. By February 2005, we had settledlalis brought against us in the Stanwich Case.

In November 2001, one of the defendants in thevtdnCase, Jonathan Pardee, asserted claims feminity against us in a separate ac
which is now pending in federal district court ihdrle Island. We have filed counterclaims in the d@hisland federal court against Mr. Par
and have filed a separate action against Mr. PardRiede Island attorneys, in the same court. igation between Mr. Pardee and us
stayed for several years through September 2014itiag resolution of an adversary action broughdiast Mr. Pardee in the bankruptcy cc
which is hearing the bankruptcy of Stanwich.

Pursuant to an agreement with the representaticesditors in the Stanwich bankruptcy, that adwgrsationhas been dismissed. Under
agreement, we paid the bankruptcy estate $800,00abandoned our claims against the estate, wigleestate has abandoned its adve
action against Mr. Pardee. With the dismissal efdldversary action, all known claims asserted agaim. Pardee have been resolved wit
his incurring any liability. Accordingly, we believthat this resolution of the adversary action wébult in limitation of our exposure
Mr. Pardee to no more than some portion of hisriattys fees incurred. The stay in the action agaiash Rhode Island has been lifted,
both we and Mr. Pardee have filed motions for sumnjiadgment. Those motions were heard on October2R%2, and were taken un
submission. It is not possible to predict whendbert will rule, nor what its rulings on the mot®may be. There is no trial date set.
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The reader should consider that an adverse judgmemisigss in the Rhode Island case for indemnifiegtib in an amount materially
excess of any liability already recorded in respleeteof, could have a material adverse effectwrfinancial condition.

Other Litigation

In April 2010, we were named as defendant in atpugtaclass action brought in federal district comrtChicago, Illinois. In June 2012 1
court gave final approval to a settlement agreefietween us and the plaintiffs, pursuant to whigha(class was certified for settlem
purposes only, and (ii) we agreed to pay a fixedwmh of plaintiff attorney fees and also make paytsegainst claims made by membel
the class, the amount of which would depend orsatasmberstesponses to our notice of the settlement. As pfe®eber 30, 2012 all amou
payable pursuant to the settlement have been gadithe matter is fully and finally settled. Thecamt paid had been recorded as a liabilil
of June 30, 2012.

We are routinely involved in various legal procewpi resulting from our consumer finance activiesl practices, both continuing
discontinued. We believe that there are substanégal defenses to such claims, and intend to defeam vigorously. There can be
assurance, however, as to their outcomes. We leaoeded a liability as of December 31, 2012 thabelgeve represents a sufficient allowa
for legal contingencies. The amount of losses dhnatat least reasonably possible above what headglbeen accrued for cannot be estim
Any adverse judgment against us, if in an amounterialy in excess of the recorded liability, couldve a material adverse effect on
financial position or results of operations.

(14) Employee Benefits

The Company sponsors a pretax savings and prdiirghplan (the “401(k) Planualified under Section 401(k) of the Internal Rawe
Code. Under the 401(k) Plan, eligible employeesasite to contribute up to 15% of their compensafsubject to stricter limitation in the c:
of highly compensated employees). We may, at aerdtion, match 100% of employeesntributions up to $1,500 per employee per cale
year. Our contributions to the 401(k) Plan were,8Q0 for the year ended December 31, 2011. We alidnake any matching contribution:s
2012.

We also sponsor a defined benefit plan, the MFNuivanal Corporation Pension Plan (the “Plafhe Plan benefits were frozen on June
2001.

The following tables represents a reconciliatiorttaf change in the plasmbenefit obligations, fair value of plan assets] funded status
December 31, 2012 and 2011:
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December 31
2012 2011
(In thousands)

Change in Projected Benefit Obligatior

Projected benefit obligation, beginning of y: $ 19,44: 3 17,057
Service cos - -
Interest cos 87t 912
Assumption change 2,332 2,232
Actuarial (gain) los: 2 (128)
Settlement: - -
Benefits paid (860) (630
Projected benefit obligation, end of yt $ 21,79  $ 19,44:
Change in Plan Asset:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of y $ 10,61 $ 11,15¢
Return on asse 5,43¢ (527)
Employer contributior 1,47: 665
Expense! (53 (50
Settlement: - -
Benefits paid (860) (630)
Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ 16,61: $ 10,61:
Funded Status at end of yea $ (5,180 $ (8,830)

Additional Information
Weighted average assumptions used to determinditebiégations and cost at December 31, 2012 &l 2vere as follows:

December, 31

2012 2011
Weighted average assumptions used to determine bédih@bligations
Discount rate 3.91% 4.60%
Weighted average assumptions used to determine n@triodic benefit cost
Discount rate 4.60% 5.45%
Expected return on plan ass 8.50% 8.50%

Our overall expected long-term rate of return osessis 8.50% per annum as of December 31, 20EeXpected longerm rate of return
based on the weighted average of historical retomisdividual asset categories, which are desdribenore detail below.
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December 31

2012

2011

Amounts recognized on Consolidated Balance She

(In thousands)

Other asset $ - $ -
Other liabilities (5,180 (8,830
Net amount recognized $ (5,180 $ (8,830
Amounts recognized in accumulated other compreheng income consists ol
Net loss (gain $ 8,95: % 11,75¢
Unrecognized transition asset - -
Net amount recognized $ 8,95 % 11,75¢
Components of net periodic benefit cost
Interest Cos $ 87t % 91z
Expected return on asst (928) (94¢)
Amortization of transition ass - -
Amortization of net loss 68C 44¢
Net periodic benefit cot 627 413
Settlement (gain)/loss - -
Total $ 627 $ 413
Benefit Obligation Recognized in Other Comprehensi& Income
Net loss (gain $ (2,748 % 3,181
Prior service cost (credi - -
Amortization of prior service cost - -
Net amount recognized in other comprehensive income $ (2,749 $ 3,181
Accumulated Pension Benefit Obligation $ (5,63) $ (8,535

The estimated net loss that will be amortized famoumulated other comprehensive income into nébgiierbenefit cost in 2013 is $469,01

The weighted average asset allocation of our parsmefits at December 31, 2012 and 2011 werellasvio

December 31

Weighted Average Asset Allocation at YeeEnd
Asset Category

Equity securitie:

Debt securitie:

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

2012 2011
83% 80%
16% 20%
1% 0%
100% 100%

Our investment policies and strategies for the jpenkenefits plan utilize a target allocation oR&®quity securities and 25% fixed incc
securities (excluding company stock). Our investnggrals are to maximize returns subject to specifk management policies. We add
risk management and diversification by the use pfafessional investment advisor and several aiisors which invest in domestic
international equity securities and domestic fixacome securities. Each salovisor focuses its investments within a speciéicter of thi
equity or fixed income market. For the satlvisors focused on the equity markets, the seaterslifferentiated by the market capitalizatidre
relative valuation and the location of the undenyiissuer. For the sudvisors focused on the fixed income markets, #toss ar
differentiated by the credit quality and the matuof the underlying fixed income investment. Thedstments made by the sabivisors ar

readily marketable and can be sold to fund bepeaffment obligations as they become payable.
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Cash Flows

Estimated Future Benefit Payments (In thousands

2013 $ 70t
2014 721
2015 81t
2016 82t
2017 85¢
Years 201¢- 2022 4,93(
Anticipated Contributions in 201 $ =

The fair value of plan assets at December 31, 2022011, by asset category, is as follows:

December 31, 201,

Level 1 (1) Level 2 (2) Level 3 (3) Total

Investment Name: (in thousands)
Company Common Stoc $ 4,791 % - $ - $ 4,791
Fundamental Valu - 2,04¢ - 2,04¢
Mid Cap Growth - 59¢ - 59¢
Focus Value - 607 - 607
Small Co. Value - 604 - 604
Growth - 2,681 - 2,681
International Growtt - 2,431 - 2,431
Core Bonc - 1,78( - 1,78(
High Yield - 368 - 368
Inflation Protected Bon - 472 - 472
Money Market — 23¢ - 23¢

Total $ 4,791 $ 11,82 $ - 3 16,61:

December 31, 201

Level 1 (1) Level 2 (2) Level 3 (3) Total

Investment Name: (in thousands)

Company Common Stoc $ 85z % - % - $ 852
Fundamental Valu - 1,77¢ - 1,77¢
Mid Cap Growth - 49z - 49z
Focus Value - 51C - 51C
Small Co. Value - 497 - 497
Growth - 2,20¢ - 2,20¢
International Growtt - 1,85( - 1,85(
Core Bonc - 1,64¢ - 1,64¢
Income - 31¢ - 31¢
Inflation Protected Bon - 45( - 45C
Money Market 11 7 - 18
Total $ 86 $ 9,75( $ - $ 10,61:

(1) Assets with quoted prices in active markets fontidal assets
(2) Assets with significant observable inpt

(3) Assets with significant unobservable inpi
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(15) Fair Value Measurements

In September 2006, the FASB issued ASC 820, "Falu®& Measurements" which clarifies the principlatthair value should be based on
assumptions market participants would use wheringrian asset or liability and establishes a falu@dierarchy that prioritizes the informat
used to develop those assumptions. Under the sthniddr value measurements would be separatellatied by level within the fair val
hierarchy.

ASC 820 defines fair value, establishes a frameviamrkneasuring fair value, establishes a tHex@! valuation hierarchy for disclosure of
value measurement and enhances disclosure requitefoe fair value measurements. The three levelslafined as follows: level linputs tc
the valuation methodology are quoted prices (ursdil) for identical assets or liabilities in activearkets; level 2 dnputs to the valuatic
methodology include quoted prices for similar assetd liabilities in active markets, and inputst thee observable for the asset or liabi
either directly or indirectly, for substantiallyetHull term of the financial instrument; and le&}l inputs to the valuation methodology
unobservable and significant to the fair value mezrment.

At the time of issuance, five warrants issued betw2008 and 2010 in conjunction with various détdricing transactions contained feat
that make them subject to derivative accounting.dféissify these warrants as level 3 in the thesel valuation hierarchy as the inputs tc
valuation methodology are unobservable and sigaitic We valued these warrants using a binomialatedn model using assumptic
described in the table below. We estimated theevaluthese warrants to be $967,000, which wasifiledss a liability on our consolidat
balance sheet as of December 31, 2011. On MarcB®2 we agreed with the holders to amend threbeofive warrants to remove the pi
reset features that resulted in derivative accagntdn the date of the amendment, we valued eatttedhree warrants using a binomial pric
model. The aggregate value of the three amendedamiarof $1,056,000 was then reclassified from iliteds to Common Stock. On June
2012 we agreed with the holder to amend one otlzaerant that contained the “down roundy’ price reset, features to remove those spi
price reset terms. The $251,000 aggregate valtieiohmended warrant was reclassified from Liabgito Common Stock on the date of
amendment. The remaining warrant subject to devivatccounting has not been amended, was valu$d@5&,000 as of December 31, 2
using a binomial pricing model and is included iocAunts payable and accrued expenses. Until the peBet feature is removed, this wai
will continue to be subject to quarterly valuations

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
Expected life (years 7.3C 7.0C
Risk-free interest rat 1.2€% 1.4(%
Volatility 40% 39%

In September 2008 we sold automobile contractssecaritization that was structured as a saleifiantial accounting purposes. In that ¢
we retained both securities and a residual inteireshe transaction that are measured at fair valdle describe below the valuat
methodologies we use for the securities retainedtlaa residual interest in the cash flows of tia@saction, as well as the general classific.
of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hofia The securities retained were sold in Septer@B20 in the resecuritization transactis
described in Note 1. In the same transaction,ebigual interest was reduced by $1.5 million. Tésdual interest in such securitization is !
million as of December 31, 2012 and is classifisdewvel 3 in the threksvel valuation hierarchy. We determine the valighat residue
interest using a discounted cash flow model theluiges estimates for prepayments and losses. Wa diseount rate of 20% per annum a
cumulative net loss rate of 14%. The assumptionsiseeare based on historical performance of autdenobntracts we have originated
serviced in the past, adjusted for current markatltions. No gain or loss was recorded as a redukte resecuritization transaction descril
above.
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In September 2011, we acquired $217.8 million office receivables from Fireside Bank for a purchage of $199.6 million. Tt
receivables were acquired by our whatiyned special purpose subsidiary, CPS Fender Rages; LLC, which issued a note for $1¢
million, with a fair value of $196.5 million. Sindle Fireside receivables were originated by anmahgty with its own underwriting guidelin
and procedures, we have elected to account foFitleside receivables and the related debt secwrdélldse receivables at their estimated
values so that changes in fair value will be ré#ddn our results of operations as they occuerbst income from the receivables and int
expense on the note are included in interest incamaeinterest expense, respectively. Changes ttathealue of the receivables and debt
also to be included in interest income and integgpense, respectively. Our level 3, unobservaigats reflect the our own assumptions a
the factors that market participants use in pricgigilar receivables and debt, and are based onb#fs¢ information available in t
circumstances. They include such inputs as esttnadé chargeffs and timing of the amortization of the portfolf finance receivables. C
estimate of the fair values of the Fireside redeliesis performed on a pool basis, rather thanraggg on each individual receivable.

The table below presents a reconciliation for Le&/aksets measured at fair value on a recurririg bamg significant unobservable inputs:

2012 2011
(in thousands) (in thousands)

Residual Interest in Securitizations:

Balance at beginning of ye $ 4,41¢  $ 3,841
Cash paid (receivet (48 -
Included in earnings 45¢ 573
Balance at end of year $ 482: % 4,41¢
Warrant Derivative Liability:

Balance at beginning of ye $ 967 $ 1,63¢
Included in earning 69t (672)
Reclassification to equity (1,309 -
Balance at end of year $ 358§ 967
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The table below presents a reconciliation of thrguaed finance receivables and related debt medsirfair value on a recurring basis us

significant unobservable inputs:

Finance Receivables Measured at Fair Value
Balance at beginning of ye

Acquisitions

Payments on finance receivables at fair vi
Chargeoffs on finance receivables at fair va
Discount accretiol

Mark to fair value

Balance at end of year

December 31,
2012 2011
(in thousands)

Debt Secured by Finance Receivables Measured at Faalue:

Balance at beginning of ye

New issuance

Principal payments on debt at fair va

Premium accretio

Mark to fair value

Balance at end of ye:

Reduction for principal payments collected and jpéya
Adjusted balance at end of year

$ 160,25:  $ -
- 199,55

(104,68 (41,926

(6,687) (3,529)

4,141 5,97¢

6,63+ 174

$ 59,66¢ $ 160,25:
$ 166,82¢ $ -
- 196,47:

(121,419 (34,45()

4,57¢ 5,60¢

7,11¢ (801)

57,10 166,82

(5,54¢) (12,219)

$ 5155( $ 154,61(

The table below compares the fair values of thedidle receivables and the related secured deheilodontractual balances for the per

shown:

Fireside receivables portfol

Debt secured by Fireside receivables portf

December 31, 201; December 31, 201

Contractual Fair Contractual Fair
Balance Value Balance Value

(In thousands)

$ 60,80 $ 59,66¢ $ 172,16° $ 160,25:

41,36¢ 57,10° 162,81 166,82t

The terms of the debt secured by the Fireside g@artprovide for the lenders to receive a sharehef cashflows from the underlyi
receivables after the contractual balance of tH# derepaid and our initial investment in the Bide portfolio is returned. The discour
present value of the lenders’ projected portiothefresidual cash flows is a component of thevalue.

Repossessed vehicle inventory, which is include®finer Assets on our balance sheet, is measuriir atalue using Level 2 assumptic
based on our actual loss experience on sale osepeed vehicles. At December 31, 2012, the finegmvables related to the reposse
vehicles in inventory totaled $12.1 million. We aapplied a valuation adjustment of $6.4 millioesulting in an estimated fair value
carrying amount of $5.7 million. The fair value acdrrying amount of the repossessed vehicle inverdab December 31, 2011 was $

million after applying a valuation adjustment of.&4million.

There were no transfers in or out of Level 1 anddl@ assets and liabilities for 2012 and 2011.
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The following summary presents a description of thethodologies and assumptions used to estimatdathesalue of our financii
instruments. Much of the information used to deiaarfair value is highly subjective. When applieghleadily available market informat
has been utilized. However, for a significant pmrtdf our financial instruments, active marketsnd exist. Therefore, considerable judgm
were required in estimating fair value for certaéms. The subjective factors include, among othergs, the estimated timing and amour
cash flows, risk characteristics, credit qualitydanterest rates, all of which are subject to clearfgince the fair value is estimated a
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the amounts that wiliadly be realized or paid at settlement or méatuaf the instruments could
significantly different. The estimated fair valugfsfinancial assets and liabilities at DecemberZ11,2 and 2011, were as follows:

As of December 31, 201

Financial Instrument

(In thousands)

Carrying Fair Value Measurements Using
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 12,96¢ $ 12,96¢ $ - $ - $ 12,96¢
Restricted cash and equivale 104,44 104,44! - - 104,44!
Finance receivables, n 744,74¢ - - 740,51: 740,51:
Finance receivables measured at fair v 59,66¢ - - 59,66¢ 59,66¢
Residual interest in securitizatio 4,82¢ - - 4,82¢ 4,82¢
Accrued interest receivab 10,41: - - 10,41: 10,41:
Liabilities:
Warrant derivative liability $ 358 % - $ - $ 3BE % 35t
Warehouse lines of crec 21,73: - - 21,73: 21,73:
Accrued interest payab 2,79t - - 2,79t 2,79t
Residual interest financir 13,77 - - 13,77 13,77
Securitization trust del 792,49 - - 803,29( 803,291
Debt secured by receivables measured at fair 57,10° - - 57,10° 57,10°
Senior secured de 50,13t - - 50,13t 50,13t
Subordinated renewable no 23,28: - - 23,28: 23,28:
As of December 31, 2011
Financial Instrument (In thousands)
Carrying Fair Value Measurements Using:
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivale $ 10,090 $ 10,090 $ - % - $ 10,09-
Restricted cash and equivale 159,22¢ 159,22¢ - - 159,22¢
Finance receivables, n 506,27 - - 506,64 506,64
Finance receivables measured at fair vi 160,25: - - 160,25: 160,25:
Residual interest in securitizatio 4,41¢ - - 4,41¢ 4,41¢
Accrued interest receivab 6,43: - - 6,43: 6,43:
Liabilities:
Warrant derivative liability $ 967 $ - 3 - 3 967 $ 967
Warehouse lines of crec 25,39:¢ - - 25,39 25,39:
Accrued interest payab 6,89:2 - - 6,89: 6,89:
Residual interest financir 21,88 - - 21,88 21,88
Securitization trust del 583,06! - - 594,22: 594,22.
Debt secured by receivables measured at fair 166,82! - - 166,82t 166,82!
Senior secured de 58,34« - - 58,34 58,34
Subordinated renewable no 20,75( - - 20,75( 20,75(
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Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash andviabarits
The carrying value approximates fair value.
Finance Receivables,n

The fair value of finance receivables is estimdtedliscounting future cash flows expected to béectéd using current rates at which sin
receivables could be originated.

Finance Receivables at Fair Value and Debt SecbseBeceivables at Fair Valt
The carrying value equals fair value.
Residual Interest in Securitizatio

The fair value is estimated by discounting futuasttflows using credit and discount rates that eliebe reflect the estimated credit, inte
rate and prepayment risks associated with simjlaeg of instruments.

Accrued Interest Receivable and Paye

The carrying value approximates fair value becdlisaelated interest rates are estimated to reflacent market conditions for similar ty|
of instruments.

Warrant Derivative Liability
The method used to estimate fair value is describede.
Warehouse Lines of Credit, Residual Interest Fiiragcand Senior Secured Debt and Subordinated RafnlevlNotes

The carrying value approximates fair value becdlsaelated interest rates are estimated to refleacent market conditions for similar ty|
of secured instruments.

Securitization Trust Debt

The fair value is estimated by discounting futuamsicflows using interest rates that we believeeotdlthe current market rates.
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statements No. 333-168976 on Form S-1,388-152969 on Form 3$-and Nos¢
333-58199, 333-35758, 333-75594, 333-115622, 3FBAB, 333-161448, and 333-166892 on For@ &-Consumer Portfolio Services, |
of our report dated February 15, 2013, relatingh® consolidated financial statements of Consuneetfdtio Services, Inc. appearing in t
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

/s/ Crowe Horwath LLP

Costa Mesa, California
February 15, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Charles E. Bradley, Jr., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16tKonsumer Portfolio Services, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ort@mstate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in thégport, fairly present in all material resp
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer andré responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as de
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iaretnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f) anc
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesder caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be designed under our supervi
to ensure that material information relating to tegistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgorting, or caused such internal control oveariicial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgeparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtéds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant's internal control over financial repogtithat occurred during the registrant's r
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdlsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatrhaterially affected, or is reasonably likel
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer andalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafimternal control over financial reportil
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitferegistrant's board of directors (or personfopming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material Weasses in the design or operation of internal robraver financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefreaincial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ilwes management or other employees who have &isagtti role in the registrant's inter
control over financial reporting.

February 15, 2013

By: /s/ CHARLES E. BRADLEY, JR

Charles E. Bradley, J
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE!




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Jeffrey P. Fritz, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16tKConsumer Portfolio Services, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ort@mstate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in thégport, fairly present in all material resp
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer andré responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as de
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iaretnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f) anc
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesder caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be designed under our supervi
to ensure that material information relating to tegistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgorting, or caused such internal control oveariicial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgeparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtéds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant's internal control over financial repogtithat occurred during the registrant's r
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdlsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatrhaterially affected, or is reasonably likel
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer andalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafimternal control over financial reportil
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitferegistrant's board of directors (or personfopming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material Weasses in the design or operation of internal robraver financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefreaincial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ilwes management or other employees who have &isagtti role in the registrant's inter
control over financial reporting.

February 15, 2013
By: /s/ JEFFREY P. FRIT.

Jeffrey P. Fritz
SR. VICE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICE|




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies, for thippses of Section 1350 of chapter 63 of title fithe United States Code, in his capacit
an officer of Consumer Portfolio Services, Incatihto his knowledge, the Annual Report of ConsuPentfolio Services, Inc. on Form 10-
for the year ended December 31, 2012 fully compliék the requirements of Section 13(a) of the $ities Exchange Act of 1934 and that
information contained in such report fairly preserin all material respects, the financial conditnd results of operations of Consu
Portfolio Services, Inc.

February 15, 2013 By: /sl CHARLES E. BRADLEY, JR
Charles E. Bradley, J
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEI

February 15, 2013 By: /s JEFFREY P. FRIT,
Jeffrey P. Fritz
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




